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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 of Section 15 (d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
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to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer� , �accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company x
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates, based on the last reported sales prices of $5.00 per share on the last
business day of the second quarter of 2011 was $44,876,692.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant�s common stock was 10,010,178 as of February 27, 2012.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:
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PART I

Item 1. Business
General

New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. (New Peoples) is a Virginia bank holding company headquartered in Honaker, Virginia. Prior to January 1, 2009,
New Peoples was a financial holding company. New Peoples subsidiaries include: New Peoples Bank, Inc., a Virginia banking corporation (the
Bank) and NPB Web Services, Inc., a web design and hosting company (NPB Web). In July 2004, NPB Capital Trust I was formed for the
issuance of trust preferred securities. In September 2006, NPB Capital Trust 2 was formed for the issuance of trust preferred securities. NPB
Financial Services, Inc., an insurance and investment services corporation (NPB Financial) was a subsidiary of New Peoples until January 1,
2009 when it became a subsidiary of the Bank. Upon change of ownership the Bank formed a division doing business as New Peoples Bank
Financial Services which offers investment services through its broker dealer relationship with LPL Financial Services, Inc. The subsdiary, NPB
Financial, offers insurance services only.

The Bank offers a range of banking and related financial services focused primarily on serving individuals, small to medium size businesses, and
the professional community. We strive to serve the banking needs of our customers while developing personal, hometown relationships with
them. Our board of directors believes that marketing customized banking services enables us to establish a niche in the financial services
marketplace where we do business.

The Bank is headquartered in Honaker, Virginia and operates 27 full service offices in the southwestern Virginia counties of Russell, Scott,
Washington, Tazewell, Buchanan, Dickenson, Wise, Lee, Smyth, and Bland; Mercer County in southern West Virginia and the eastern
Tennessee counties of Sullivan and Washington. The close proximity and mobile nature of individuals and businesses in adjoining counties and
nearby cities in Virginia, West Virginia and Tennessee places these markets within our Bank�s targeted trade area, as well.

We provide professionals and small and medium size businesses in our market area with responsive and technologically enabled banking
services. These services include loans that are priced on a deposit relationship basis, easy access to our decision makers, and quick and
innovative action necessary to meet a customer�s banking needs. Our capitalization and lending limit enable us to satisfy the credit needs of a
large portion of the targeted market segment. When a customer needs a loan that exceeds our lending limit, we try to find other financial
institutions to participate in the loan with us.

Our History

The Bank was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia on December 9, 1997 and began operations on October 28, 1998.
On September 27, 2001, the shareholders of the Bank approved a plan of reorganization under which they exchanged their shares of Bank
common stock for shares of New Peoples common stock. On November 30, 2001, the reorganization was completed and the Bank became New
Peoples� wholly owned subsidiary.

In June 2003, New Peoples formed two new wholly-owned subsidiaries, NPB Financial Services, Inc. and NPB Web Services, Inc.

NPB Financial is a full-service insurance agency, dealing in personal and group life, health, and disability products, and fixed rate annuities.
However, the Bank, through its division New Peoples Bank Financial services, offers variable annuities, fee based asset management and other
investment products through a broker/dealer relationship with LPL Financial Services, Inc.

NPB Web is inactive.

In July 2004, NPB Capital Trust I was formed to issue $11.3 million in trust preferred securities.

In September 2006, NPB Capital Trust 2 was formed to issue $5.2 million in trust preferred securities.
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Branch Locations

We initially opened with full service branches in Honaker and Weber City, Virginia and in 1999 opened a full service branch in Castlewood,
Virginia. During 2000, we opened full service branches in Haysi and Lebanon, Virginia. During 2001, we opened branches in Pounding Mill,
Virginia and Princeton, West Virginia. In 2002, we opened branch offices in Gate City, Clintwood, Big Stone Gap, Tazewell and Davenport,
Virginia. During 2003, we expanded into Grundy, Dungannon, and Bristol, Virginia. We expanded into Tennessee and opened an office in
Bloomingdale, Tennessee in 2003, as well. In 2004, we opened offices in Richlands, Abingdon, and Bristol, Virginia. In 2005 full service
branches were opened in Bluefield and Cleveland, Virginia. During 2006, we opened full service branches in Esserville, Pound, and Lee County,
Virginia and Jonesborough, Tennessee. During 2007, we opened full service offices in Bland, and Chilhowie, Virginia; and Bramwell, West
Virginia. We purchased two operating branches from another bank, including deposits and loans located in Norton and Pennington Gap, Virginia
in June 2007. During 2008, we opened one full service office in Bluewell, West Virginia. During 2010, as part of an initiative by the Board and
Management to reduce operating expenses, we closed our offices in Bramwell, West Virginia and Cleveland, Davenport, and Dungannon,
Virginia.

In order to open additional banking offices, we must obtain prior regulatory approval which takes into account a number of factors, including,
among others, a determination that we have adequate capital and a finding that the public interest will be served.

Our Market Areas

Our primary market area consists of southwestern Virginia, southern West Virginia and northeastern Tennessee. Specifically, we operate in the
southwestern Virginia counties of Russell, Scott, Washington, Tazewell, Buchanan, Dickenson, Wise, Lee, Smyth, and Bland; Mercer County in
southern West Virginia and the eastern Tennessee counties of Sullivan and Washington (collectively, the �Tri-State Area�). The close proximity
and transient nature of individuals and businesses in adjoining counties and nearby cities in Virginia, West Virginia and Tennessee place these
markets within our bank�s targeted trade area, as well.

The Tri-State Area has a diversified economy supported by natural resources, which include coal, natural gas, limestone, and timber; agriculture;
healthcare; education; technology; manufacturing and services industries. Predominantly, the market is comprised of locally owned and operated
small businesses. The area has also been named a technology corridor. Considerable investments in high-technology communications,
high-speed broadband network and infrastructure have been made which has opened the area to large technology companies and future business
development potential for new and existing businesses. The area is becoming known as one of the East Coast�s new centers for electronic
information technology, energy, education and emerging specialty manufacturing. Leaders in their industries are taking advantage of the low
cost of doing business, training opportunities, available workforce and an exceptional quality of life experience for employers and employees
alike.

Education is a priority in workplace preparedness and the Tri-State area places great emphasis on educating our regional workforce for today
and jobs of the future. Starting in elementary school, students are exposed to technology resources, distance learning, robotics and math
competitions, as well as STEM programs-Science, Technology, Engineering and Math. The Tri-State Area is home to numerous higher
education institutions including East Tennessee State University, The University of Virginia�s College at Wise, Bluefield State College,
Appalachia School of Law, Appalachia School of Pharmacy, and various private colleges and community colleges.

Educational Highlights include:

� FastTrack software programming, IT help desk training, and advanced manufacturing technology training offered by Mountain
Empire and Southwest Virginia community colleges.

� The University of Virginia�s College at Wise, the only four-year branch of the University of Virginia, offers the state�s only
undergraduate software engineering degree, one of a handful of such programs nationally.

� IT, professional development and leadership training are offered at the Southwest Virginia Technology Development Center, also
operated by The University of Virginia�s College at Wise.
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� Undergraduate and graduate degree programs are offered at the Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center in Abingdon.
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Accessibility to Interstates I-77, I-81, I-26, I-64 and I-75 as well as major state and U.S. highways including US 19, US 23, US 58, US 460 and
US 421 make the area an ideal location to serve markets in both the East and Mid-America. The area is strategically located midway between
Atlanta-Pittsburgh, Charlotte-Cincinnati, and Richmond-Louisville, and is within a day�s drive of more than half of the U.S. population. A
regional airport located in Bristol, Tennessee serves the area for commercial flights to and from major cities in the United States. General
aviation airports accommodating small jet service include Lonesome Pine Regional Airport, Wise, VA; Lee County Airport, Jonesville, VA;
Tazewell County Airport, Claypool Hill, VA; Virginia Highlands Airport, Abingdon, VA; and Mercer County Airport, Bluefield, WV. Rail
service providers include CSX Transportation and Norfolk Southern Railways.

Internet Site

In March 2001, we opened our internet banking site at www.newpeoplesbank.com. The site includes a customer service area that contains
branch and ATM locations, product descriptions and current interest rates offered on deposit accounts. Customers with internet access can
access account balances, make transfers between accounts, enter stop payment orders, order checks, and use an optional bill paying service.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC).
Our SEC filings are filed electronically and are available to the public over the internet at the SEC�s web site at www.sec.gov. In addition, any
document we file with the SEC can be read and copied at the SEC�s public reference facilities at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.
Copies of documents can be obtained at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. We also provide a link to our filings on the SEC website, free of charge, through our internet website www.npbankshares.com
under �Investor Relations.�

Banking Services

General. We accept deposits, make consumer and commercial loans, issue drafts, and provide other services customarily offered by a
commercial bank, such as business and personal checking and savings accounts, walk-up tellers, drive-in windows, and 24-hour automated teller
machines. The Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve System and its deposits are insured under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act to the
limits provided thereunder.

We offer a full range of short-to-medium term commercial, 1-4 family residential mortgages and personal loans. Commercial loans include both
secured and unsecured loans for working capital (including inventory and receivables), business expansion (including acquisition of real estate
and improvements) and purchase of equipment and machinery. Consumer loans may include secured and unsecured loans for financing
automobiles, home improvements, education, personal investments and other purposes.

Our lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed by state law. While differing limits apply in certain circumstances based
on the type of loan or the nature of the borrower (including the borrower�s relationship to the Bank), in general, the Bank is subject to a
loan-to-one borrower limit of an amount equal to 15% of its capital and surplus in the case of loans which are not fully secured by readily
marketable or other permissible types of collateral. The Bank voluntarily may choose to impose a policy limit on loans to a single borrower that
is less than the legal lending limit.

We obtain short-to-medium term commercial and personal loans through direct solicitation of business owners and continued business from
existing customers. Completed loan applications are reviewed by our loan officers. As part of the application process, information is obtained
concerning the income, financial condition, employment and credit history of the applicant. If commercial real estate is involved, information is
also obtained concerning cash flow after debt service. Loan quality is analyzed based on the Bank�s experience and its credit underwriting
guidelines.
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Loans by type as a percentage of total loans are as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Commercial, financial and agricultural 14.35% 15.48% 15.56% 15.26% 17.77% 
Real estate � construction 5.42% 7.39% 9.41% 8.96% 5.63% 
Real estate � mortgage 73.79% 69.13% 66.02% 67.04% 67.87% 
Installment loans to individuals 6.44% 8.00% 9.01% 8.74% 8.73% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Commercial Loans. We make commercial loans to qualified businesses in our market area. Our commercial lending consists primarily of
commercial and industrial loans to finance accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment. Commercial business loans generally
have a higher degree of risk than residential mortgage loans, but have commensurately higher yields. Residential mortgage loans are generally
made on the basis of the borrower�s ability to make repayment from employment and other income and are secured by real estate whose value
tends to be easily ascertainable. In contrast, commercial business loans typically are made on the basis of the borrower�s ability to make
repayment from cash flow from its business and are secured by business assets, such as commercial real estate, accounts receivable, equipment
and inventory. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial business loans may be substantially dependent on the
success of the business itself.

Further, the collateral for commercial business loans may depreciate over time and cannot be appraised with as much precision as residential real
estate. To manage these risks, our underwriting guidelines require us to secure commercial loans with both the assets of the borrowing business
and other additional collateral and guarantees that may be available. In addition, we actively monitor certain measures of the borrower, including
advance rate, cash flow, collateral value and other appropriate credit factors.

Residential Mortgage Loans. Our residential mortgage loans consist of residential first and second mortgage loans, residential construction
loans, home equity lines of credit and term loans secured by first and second mortgages on the residences of borrowers for home improvements,
education and other personal expenditures. We make mortgage loans with a variety of terms, including fixed and floating or variable rates and a
variety of maturities.

Under our underwriting guidelines, residential mortgage loans are generally made on the basis of the borrower�s ability to make repayment from
employment and other income and are secured by real estate whose value tends to be easily ascertainable. These loans are made consistent with
our appraisal policies and real estate lending policies, which detail maximum loan-to-value ratios and maturities.

Construction Loans. Construction lending entails significant additional risks, compared to residential mortgage lending. Construction loans often
involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. Construction loans also involve additional risks
attributable to the fact that loan funds are advanced upon the security of property under construction, which is of uncertain value prior to the
completion of construction. Thus, it is more difficult to evaluate the total loan funds required to complete a project and related loan-to-value
ratios accurately. To minimize the risks associated with construction lending, loan-to-value limitations for residential, multi-family and
non-residential construction loans are in place. These are in addition to the usual credit analysis of borrowers. Management feels that the
loan-to-value ratios help to minimize the risk of loss and to compensate for normal fluctuations in the real estate market. Maturities for
construction loans generally range from 4 to 12 months for residential property and from 6 to 18 months for non-residential and multi-family
properties.

Consumer Loans. Our consumer loans consist primarily of installment loans to individuals for personal, family and household purposes. The
specific types of consumer loans that we make include home improvement loans, debt consolidation loans and general consumer lending.
Consumer loans entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans do, particularly in the case of consumer loans that are unsecured, such as lines
of credit, or secured by rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles. In such cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan
may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance as a result of the greater likelihood of damage, loss or
depreciation. The remaining deficiency often does not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower. In addition, consumer
loan collections are dependent on the borrower�s continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss,
divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws, including federal and state bankruptcy
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Our underwriting policy for consumer loans seeks to limit risk and minimize losses, primarily through a careful analysis of the borrower. In
evaluating consumer loans, we require our lending officers to review the borrower�s level and stability of income, past credit history and the
impact of these factors on the ability of the borrower to repay the loan in a timely manner. In addition, we maintain an appropriate margin
between the loan amount and collateral value.

Deposits. We offer a variety of deposit products for both individual and business customers. These include demand deposit, interest-bearing
demand deposit, savings deposit, and money market deposit accounts. In addition, we offer certificates of deposit with terms ranging from 7
days to 60 months and individual retirement accounts with terms ranging from 12 months to 60 months.

Investment Services. We offer a variety of investment services for both individual and business customers. These services include fixed income
products, variable annuities, mutual funds, indexed certificates of deposit, individual retirement accounts, long term care insurance, employee
group benefit plans, college savings plans, financial planning, managed money accounts, and estate planning. We offer these services through
our broker-dealer relationship with LPL Financial Services, Inc.

Other Bank Services. Other bank services include safe deposit boxes, cashier�s checks, certain cash management services, direct deposit of
payroll and social security checks and automatic drafts for various accounts. We offer ATM card services that can be used by our customers
throughout Virginia and other regions. We also offer MasterCard and VISA credit card services through an intermediary. Electronic banking
services include debit cards, internet banking, telephone banking and wire transfers.

We do not presently anticipate exercising trust powers, but we are able to provide similar services through our affiliation with LPL Financial
Services, Inc.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive. We compete as a financial intermediary with other commercial banks, savings and loan
associations, credit unions, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money
market mutual funds and other financial institutions operating in the southwestern Virginia, southern West Virginia, and eastern Tennessee
market area and elsewhere. Our market area is a highly competitive, highly branched banking market.

Competition in the market area for loans to small businesses and professionals, the Bank�s target market, is intense, and pricing is important.
Many of our larger competitors have substantially greater resources and lending limits than we have. They offer certain services, such as
extensive and established branch networks and trust services that we do not expect to provide or will not provide in the near future. Moreover,
larger institutions operating in the market area have access to borrowed funds at lower costs than are available to us. Deposit competition among
institutions in the market area also is strong. As a result, it is possible that we may pay above-market rates to attract deposits.

While pricing is important, our principal method of competition is service. As a community banking organization, we strive to serve the banking
needs of our customers while developing personal, hometown relationships with them. As a result, we provide a significant amount of service
and a range of products without the fees that customers can expect from larger banking institutions.

According to a market share report prepared by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC), as of June 30, 2010, the most recent date
for which market share information is available, the Bank�s deposits as a percentage of total deposits in its major market areas were as follows:
Russell County, VA � 30.55%, Scott County, VA � 37.96%, Dickenson County, VA � 28.29%, Tazewell County, VA � 9.05%, Smyth County, VA �
3.49%, Lee County, VA � 6.25%, Buchanan County, VA � 8.90%, Wise County, VA � 9.08%, city of Norton, VA � 18.00%, Bland County, VA �
27.89%, combined Washington County, VA and the City of Bristol, VA � 2.85%, Mercer County, WV � 9.19%, City of Kingsport, TN � 0.98%,
and City of Jonesborough, TN � 4.76%.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 312 total employees, of which 301 were full-time employees. None of our employees is covered by a
collective bargaining agreement, and we consider relations with employees to be excellent.
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Supervision and Regulation

General. As a bank holding company, we are subject to regulation under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (�BHCA�), and the
examination and reporting requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the �Federal Reserve�). We are also subject to
Chapter 13 of the Virginia Banking Act, as amended (�Virginia Act�). As a state-chartered commercial bank, the Bank is subject to regulation,
supervision and examination by the Virginia State Corporation Commission�s Bureau of Financial Institutions (�BFI�). As a member of the Federal
Reserve system, the Bank is also subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve. Other federal and state laws,
including various consumer protection and compliance laws, govern the activities of the Bank, such as the investments that it makes and the
aggregate amount of loans that it may grant to one borrower.

The following description summarizes the most significant federal and state laws applicable to New Peoples and its subsidiaries. To the extent
that statutory or regulatory provisions are described, the description is qualified in its entirety by reference to that particular statutory or
regulatory provision.

The Bank Holding Company Act. Under the BHCA, the Federal Reserve examines New Peoples periodically. New Peoples is also required to
file periodic reports and provide any additional information that the Federal Reserve may require. Activities at the bank holding company level
are generally limited to:

� banking, managing or controlling banks;

� furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries; and

� engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve has determined by regulation or order to be so closely related to banking as to be
a proper incident to these activities.

Thus, the activities we can engage in are restricted as a matter of law.

With some limited exceptions, the BHCA requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before:

� acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;

� acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after such acquisition it would own or control
more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank (unless it already owns or controls the majority of such shares); or

� merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.
As a result, our ability to engage in certain strategic activities is conditioned on regulatory approval.

In addition, and subject to some exceptions, the BHCA and the Change in Bank Control Act require Federal Reserve approval prior to any
person or company acquiring �control� of a bank holding company as defined in the statutes and regulations. These requirements make it more
difficult for control of our company to change.

The Virginia Act. As a bank holding company registered with the BFI, we must provide the BFI with information concerning our financial
condition, operations and management, among other reports required by the BFI. New Peoples is also examined by the BFI in addition to its
Federal Reserve examinations. Similar to the BHCA, the Virginia Act requires that the BFI approve the acquisition of direct or indirect
ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any Virginia bank or bank holding company like us.
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Payment of Dividends. New Peoples is a separate legal entity that derives the majority of its revenues from dividends paid to it by its
subsidiaries. The Bank is subject to laws and regulations that limit the amount of dividends it can pay. In addition, both New Peoples and the
Bank are subject to various regulatory restrictions relating to the payment of dividends, including requirements to maintain capital at or above
regulatory minimums. Banking regulators have indicated that banking organizations should generally pay dividends only if the organization�s net
income available to common shareholders over the past year has been sufficient to fully fund the dividends and the
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prospective rate of earnings retention appears consistent with the organization�s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The
FDIC has the general authority to limit the dividends paid by FDIC insured banks if the FDIC deems the payment to be an unsafe and unsound
practice. The FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete a bank�s capital base to an inadequate level would be an unsound and unsafe
banking practice. During the year ended December 31, 2009 the Bank declared and paid dividends to New Peoples totaling $500 thousand in
order to service debt obligations. However, in October 2009, the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond (�Richmond FRB�) restricted the Bank from
paying dividends to the Company. It is therefore highly unlikely that the Company will pay any dividends at least until the Richmond FRB�s
restriction is removed.

As the recession continues to impact asset quality and earnings at financial institutions as the above discussion states, the regulatory authorities
have broad discretion to, and may, further restrict the payment of dividends by affected financial institutions and this could impact us.

Capital Requirements. The Federal Reserve has issued risk-based and leverage capital guidelines applicable to banking organizations that it
supervises. Under the risk-based capital requirements, the Bank and the Company are each generally required to maintain a minimum ratio of
total capital to risk-weighted assets (including certain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) of 8%. At least half of the
total capital must be composed of �Tier 1 Capital�, which is defined as common equity, retained earnings and qualifying perpetual preferred stock,
less certain intangibles. The remainder may consist of �Tier 2 Capital�, which is defined as specific subordinated debt, some hybrid capital
instruments and other qualifying preferred stock and a limited amount of the loan loss allowance. These risk-based capital standards attempt to
measure capital adequacy relative to the institution�s risk profiles. In addition, each of the federal banking regulatory agencies has established
minimum leverage capital requirements for banking organizations. Under these requirements, banking organizations must maintain a minimum
ratio of Tier 1 capital to adjusted average quarterly assets of between 3% and 5%, subject to federal bank regulatory evaluation of an
organization�s overall safety and soundness. The principal objective of the leverage ratio is to constrain the degree to which an institution may
leverage its equity capital base. In sum, the capital measures used by the federal banking regulators are:

� the Total Capital ratio, which is the total of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital;

� the Tier 1 Capital ratio; and

� the leverage ratio.
Under these regulations, a bank will be:

� �well capitalized� if it has a Total Capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 6% or greater, a leverage ratio of 5% or
greater, and is not subject to any written agreement, order, capital directive, or prompt corrective action directive by a federal bank
regulatory agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure;

� �adequately capitalized� if it has a Total Capital ratio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 4% or greater, and a leverage ratio of
4% or greater � or 3% in certain circumstances � and is not well capitalized;

� �undercapitalized� if it has a Total Capital ratio of less than 8%, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of less than 4% � or 3% in certain circumstances;

� �significantly undercapitalized� if it has a Total Capital ratio of less than 6%, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of less than 3%, or a leverage ratio
of less than 3%; or

� �critically undercapitalized� if its tangible equity is equal to or less than 2% of average quarterly tangible assets,
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The risk-based capital standards of the Federal Reserve explicitly identify concentrations of credit risk and the risk arising from non-traditional
activities, as well as an institution�s ability to manage these risks, as important factors to be taken into account by the agency in assessing an
institution�s overall capital adequacy. The capital guidelines also provide that an institution�s exposure to a decline in the economic value of its
capital due to changes in interest rates be considered as a factor in evaluating a banking organization�s capital adequacy. Thus, the capital level of
a bank can be of regulatory concern even if it is �well-capitalized� under the regulatory formula and a �well-capitalized� bank can be required to
maintain even higher capital levels based on its asset quality or other regulatory concerns.

9

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 14



Table of Contents

The regulators may take various corrective actions with respect to a financial institution considered to be capital deficient. These powers include,
but are not limited to, requiring the institution to be recapitalized, prohibiting asset growth, restricting interest rates paid or dividends, requiring
prior approval of capital distributions by any bank holding company that controls the institution, requiring divestiture by the institution of its
subsidiaries or by the holding company of the institution itself, requiring new election of directors, and requiring the dismissal of directors and
officers. As discussed above, in October 2009 the Richmond FRB imposed a prohibition on the Bank paying dividends to preserve capital. Bank
holding companies can be called upon to boost their subsidiary bank�s capital and to partially guarantee the institution�s performance under its
capital restoration plan. If this occurs, capital which otherwise would be available for holding company purposes, including possible
distributions to shareholders, would be required to be downstreamed to one or more subsidiary bank. In this respect, the Richmond FRB also
notified New Peoples that we must defer dividends on our trust preferred issuances which we did as of October 2009. As of December 31, 2011,
the Bank was �well capitalized,� with a Total Capital ratio of 10.56%; a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 9.28%; and a leverage ratio 5.99%.

In addition, under the terms of the Written Agreement, both the Company and the Bank have agreed to submit capital plans to maintain
sufficient capital at the Company, on a consolidated basis, and the Bank, on a stand-alone basis, and to refrain from declaring or paying
dividends without prior regulatory approval. The Company has agreed that it will not take any other form of payment representing a reduction in
the Bank�s capital or make any distributions of interest, principal, or other sums on subordinated debentures or trust preferred securities without
prior regulatory approval. The Company may not incur, increase or guarantee any debt without prior regulatory approval and has agreed not to
purchase or redeem any shares of its stock without prior regulatory approval.

In December 2010, the Basel Committee released its final framework for strengthening international capital and liquidity regulation, now
officially identified by the Basel Committee as �Basel III�. Basel III, when implemented by the U.S. banking agencies and fully phased-in, will
require bank holding companies and their bank subsidiaries to maintain substantially more capital, with a greater emphasis on common equity.
Our Company�s size and no on-balance sheet foreign exposure excludes us from the requirements of Basel III. However, we anticipate that the
Dodd-Frank Act may impose higher capital standards at a future date in time.

Other Safety and Soundness Regulations. There are a number of obligations and restrictions imposed on bank holding companies and their bank
subsidiaries by federal law and regulatory policy that are designed to reduce potential loss exposure to the depositors of such depository
institutions and to the FDIC insurance funds in the event that the depository institution is insolvent or is in danger of becoming insolvent. For
example, the Federal Reserve requires a bank holding company to serve as a source of financial strength to its subsidiary depository institutions
and to commit resources to support such institutions in circumstances where it might not do so otherwise. These requirements can restrict the
ability of bank holding companies to deploy their capital as they otherwise might.

Interstate Banking and Branching. Banks in Virginia may branch without geographic restriction. Current federal law authorizes interstate
acquisitions of banks and bank holding companies without geographic limitation. Bank holding companies may acquire banks in any state
without regard to state law except for state laws requiring a minimum time a bank must be in existence to be acquired. The Virginia Act
generally permits out of state bank holding companies or banks to acquire Virginia banks or bank holding companies subject to regulatory
approval. These laws have the effect of increasing competition in banking markets.

Monetary Policy. The commercial banking business is affected not only by general economic conditions but also by the monetary policies of the
Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve�s monetary policies have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks in the past
and are expected to continue to do so in the future. In view of unsettled conditions in the national and international economy and money markets,
as well as governmental fiscal and monetary policies their impact on interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand or the business and earnings of
the Bank is unpredictable.

Federal Reserve System. Depository institutions that maintain transaction accounts or nonpersonal time deposits are subject to reserve
requirements. These reserve requirements are subject to adjustment by the Federal Reserve. Because required reserves must be maintained in the
form of vault cash or in a non-interest-bearing account at, or on behalf of, a Federal Reserve Bank, the effect of the reserve requirement is to
reduce the amount of the institution�s interest-earning assets.

Transactions with Affiliates. Transactions between banks and their affiliates are governed by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act.
These provisions restrict the amount and provide conditions with respect to loans, investments, transfers of assets and other transactions between
New Peoples and the Bank.
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Loans to Insiders. The Bank is subject to rules on the amount, terms and risks associated with loans to executive officers, directors, principal
shareholders and their related interests.

Community Reinvestment Act. Under the Community Reinvestment Act, depository institutions have an affirmative obligation to assist in
meeting the credit needs of their market areas, including low and moderate-income areas, consistent with safe and sound banking practice. The
Community Reinvestment Act emphasizes the delivery of bank products and services through branch locations in its market areas and requires
banks to keep data reflecting their efforts to assist in its community�s credit needs. Depository institutions are periodically examined for
compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act and are periodically assigned ratings in this regard. Banking regulators consider a depository
institution�s Community Reinvestment Act rating when reviewing applications to establish new branches, undertake new lines of business, and/or
acquire part or all of another depository institution. An unsatisfactory rating can significantly delay or even prohibit regulatory approval of a
proposed transaction by a bank holding company or its depository institution subsidiaries. A bank holding company will not be permitted to
become a financial holding company and no new activities authorized under the GLBA (see below) may be commenced by a holding company
or by a bank financial subsidiary if any of its bank subsidiaries received less than a �satisfactory� rating in its latest Community Reinvestment Act
examination. The Bank received a rating of �Satisfactory� at its last Community Reinvestment Act performance evaluation, as of August 8, 2011.

Other Laws. Banks and other depository institutions also are subject to numerous consumer-oriented laws and regulations. These laws, which
include the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 and the Fair Housing Act, require compliance by
depository institutions with various disclosure and consumer information handling requirements. These and other similar laws result in
significant costs to financial institutions and create potential liability for financial institutions, including the imposition of regulatory penalties
for inadequate compliance.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (�GLBA�) covers a broad range of issues, including a repeal of most of
the restrictions on affiliations among depository institutions, securities firms and insurance companies.

For example, the GLBA permits unrestricted affiliations between banks and securities firms. It also permits bank holding companies to elect to
become financial holding companies, which can engage in a broad range of financial services, including securities activities such as
underwriting, dealing, investment, merchant banking, insurance underwriting, sales and brokerage activities. In order to become a financial
holding company, a bank holding company and all of its affiliated depository institutions must be well-capitalized, well-managed and have at
least a satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating. We converted to bank holding company status on January 1, 2009 from �financial
holding company.� We believe we adequately provide the products and services our customers currently need or want as a bank holding
company.

Essentially GLBA removed many of the limitations on affiliations between commercial banks and their holding companies and other financially
related business that had been in place since the Depression. Recently, this effect of GLBA has been the subject of controversy and cited as one
of the causes of the financial services crisis. As a result, The Dodd-Frank Act (as discussed later) addressed some of the criticized aspects of
GLBA, but not in a way that would materially affect us.

The GLBA also provides that the states continue to have the authority to regulate insurance activities, but prohibits the states in most instances
from preventing or significantly interfering with the ability of a bank, directly or through an affiliate, to engage in insurance sales, solicitations
or cross-marketing activities.

USA Patriot Act. The USA Patriot Act provides for the facilitation of information sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions
for the purpose of combating terrorism and money laundering. Regulatory authorities must consider the effectiveness of a financial institution�s
anti-money laundering activities, for example, its procedures for effective customer identification, when reviewing bank mergers and
acquisitions. Various other laws and regulations require the Bank to cooperate with governmental authorities in respect to counter-terrorism
activities. Although it does create a reporting obligation and cost of compliance for the Bank, the USA Patriot Act has not materially affected
New Peoples� products, services or other business activities.

Privacy and Fair Credit Reporting. Financial institutions, such as the Bank, are required to disclose their privacy policies to customers and
consumers and require that such customers or consumers be given a choice (through an opt-out notice) to forbid the sharing of nonpublic
personal information about them with nonaffiliated third persons.
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The Bank also requires business partners with whom it shares such information to have adequate security safeguards and to abide by the
redisclosure and reuse provisions of applicable law. In addition to adopting federal requirements regarding privacy, individual states are
authorized to enact more stringent laws relating to the use of customer information. To date, Virginia has not done so. These privacy laws create
compliance obligations and potential liability for the Bank.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the �Sarbanes-Oxley Act�) is intended to increase corporate responsibility, provide
enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties by publicly traded companies and to protect investors by improving the accuracy
and reliability of corporate disclosures made pursuant to the securities law. The changes required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and its
implementing regulations are intended to allow shareholders to monitor the performance of companies and their directors more easily and
effectively.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally applies to all domestic companies, such as New Peoples, that file periodic reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (�SEC�) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act includes significant additional
disclosure requirements and expanded corporate governance rules and the SEC has adopted extensive additional disclosures, corporate
governance provisions and other related rules pursuant to it. New Peoples has expended, and will continue to expend, considerable time and
money in complying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008. EESA was enacted in response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial
markets. Pursuant to the EESA, the U.S. Treasury was given the authority to, among other things, purchase up to $700 billion of mortgages,
mortgage-backed securities and certain other financial instruments from financial institutions for the purpose of stabilizing and providing
liquidity to the U.S. financial markets.

Pursuant to EESA, the Department of the Treasury implemented the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program (the �TARP
Capital Purchase Program�) under which the Treasury agreed to make $250 billion of capital available to U.S. financial institutions in the form of
preferred stock (from the $700 billion authorized by the EESA). Numerous requirements have been imposed on TARP participating financial
institutions, particularly requirements related to executive compensation. We did not elect to apply to participate in TARP.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The ARRA was enacted on February 17, 2009. The ARRA includes a wide variety of
programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide for extensive infrastructure, energy, health, and education needs. In addition, the
ARRA imposes certain new executive compensation and corporate governance obligations on all current and future TARP Capital Purchase
Program recipients until the institution has redeemed the preferred stock, which TARP Capital Purchase Program recipients are now permitted to
do under the ARRA without regard to the three year holding period and without the need to raise new capital, subject to approval of its primary
federal regulator. Because we did not participate in TARP, we are not affected by these changes.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank�s deposits are insured by the Deposit insurance Fund, as administered by the FDIC, to the
maximum amount permitted by law. In October 2008, deposits at FDIC-insured institutions temporarily became insured up to at least $250,000
per depositor. The Dodd-Frank Act passed in 2010 made this increase permanent. In addition, it provides for unlimited federal deposit insurance
until December 31, 2012 for non-interest bearing transaction accounts at all insured depository institutions. Due to the increased number of bank
failures resulting from the credit crisis and severe recession, FDIC premiums have materially increased and are likely to increase further. This is
a significant expense for us and is likely to continue to be.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. The Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law on July 21, 2010. Its wide ranging
provisions affect all federal financial regulatory agencies and nearly every aspect of the American financial services industry. Among the
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act that directly impact the Company is the creation of an independent Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(CFPB), which has the ability to write rules for consumer protections governing all financial institutions. All consumer protection responsibility
formerly handled by other banking regulators is consolidated in the CFPB. It will also oversee the enforcement of all federal laws intended to
ensure fair access to credit. For smaller financial institutions such as the Company and the Bank, the CFPB will coordinate its examination
activities through their primary regulators.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains provisions designed to reform mortgage lending, which includes the requirement of additional disclosures for
consumer mortgages. In addition, the Federal Reserve has issued new rules that have the effect of limiting the fees charged to merchants for
debit card transactions. The result of these rules will be to limit the amount of interchange fee income available explicitly to larger banks and
indirectly to us. The Dodd-Frank Act also contains provisions that affect corporate governance and executive compensation.
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Although the Dodd-Frank Act provisions themselves are extensive, the ultimate impact on the Company of this massive legislation is unknown.
The Act provides that several federal agencies, including the Federal Reserve and the Securities and Exchange Commission, shall issue
regulations implementing major portions of the legislation, and this process is ongoing.

Future Regulatory Uncertainty. Because federal and state regulation of financial institutions changes regularly and is the subject of constant
legislative debate, New Peoples cannot forecast how regulation of financial institutions may change in the future and impact its operations. New
Peoples fully expects that the financial institution industry will remain heavily regulated and that additional laws or regulations may be adopted
further regulating specific banking practices.

Subsequent Events

We have considered subsequent events through the date of the financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Not applicable.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties
At December 31, 2011, the Company�s net investment in premises and equipment in service was $3 million. Our main office and operations
center is located in Honaker, Virginia. This location contains a full service branch, and our administration and operations center.

The Bank owns all of its 27 full service branches. The owned properties in Virginia are located in Abingdon, Big Stone Gap, Bluefield, Bland,
Bristol, Castlewood, Chilhowie, Clintwood, Gate City, Grundy, Haysi, Honaker, Jonesville, Lebanon, Norton, Pennington Gap, Pound,
Pounding Mill, Richlands, Tazewell, and Weber City. Offices in Princeton, West Virginia and Bloomingdale and Jonesborough, Tennessee are
also owned by the Bank.

The Bank owns a location in Dungannon, Virginia that half of the location was used for a branch location until its closure during 2010. The
other half of the location is currently being leased. The Bank owns additional property in Princeton, West Virginia that is being developed for a
future full service branch location, and currently serves as a loan administration office. The Princeton location is anticipated to operate as a full
service branch in the distant future.

We believe that all of our properties are maintained in good operating condition and are suitable and adequate for our operational needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In the course of operations, we may become a party to legal proceedings. We became aware of a lawsuit against the Bank in April 2010. This
case involves a claim against the Bank by a joint venture between Bank customers, some of whom are former members of senior management,
and three investors. The allegation is that the joint venture, VFI, should have priority over the Bank�s deed of trust in order for VFI�s unrecorded
and unrecordable ground lease to be enforceable for its full ten year term. There are also additional claims for damages resulting from
allegations that the Bank�s representatives imputed liability to the Bank based upon breach of fiduciary duty, fraud, and collaboration. The parties
agreed to litigate the ground lease issue first and are now in negotiations to resolve all pending issues due to the fact that the business associated
with the building has ceased and the building is vacant. Management and Bank�s counsel believe VFI�s position is not supported by law or the
facts presented.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) Market Information
Registrar and Transfer Company is the stock transfer agent for New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. The common stock of New Peoples is quoted on
the Over The Counter Bulletin Board (OTCBB) under the symbol �NWPP� beginning July 12, 2011. The volume of trading of shares of common
stock is very limited. Trades in our common stock occur sporadically on a local basis and typically small volumes of stock is traded.

The high and low prices at which our common stock has traded known to us for each quarter in the past two years are set forth in the table
below. These prices are obtained through inquiry of shareholders transferring stock and by our listing on the OTCBB. Other transactions may
have occurred at prices about which we are not aware.

2011 2010
High Low High High

1st quarter $ 10.00 $ 4.00 $ 10.00 $ 6.67
2nd quarter 5.00 5.00 10.00 6.00
3rd quarter 3.00 3.00 10.00 6.00
4th quarter 3.00 3.00 8.00 4.00

The most recent sales price of which management is aware was $3.00 per share on February 6, 2012.

(b) Holders
On February 24, 2012, there were approximately 4,431 shareholders of record.

(c) Dividends
In order to preserve capital to support our growth in the past we have not paid cash dividends. The declaration of dividends in the future will
depend on our earnings and capital requirements and compliance with regulatory mandates. We are subject to certain restrictions imposed by the
reserve and capital requirements of federal and Virginia banking statutes and regulations. Moreover, the Written Agreement we have with the
banking regulators prohibits the Company from paying any cash dividends and the Bank�s ability to pay dividends to the Company. So long as
these restrictions remain in place the Company will not pay any cash dividends. Thereafter, the Company may or may not pay cash dividends
depending on various factors including capital needs, earnings, and other factors our Board of Directors deems relevant. As a result, we do not
anticipate paying a dividend on our common stock in 2012. See Note 3, Note 16 and Note 23 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of dividend limitations and capital requirements.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Caution About Forward Looking Statements

We make forward looking statements in this annual report that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These forward looking statements include
statements regarding our profitability, liquidity, allowance for loan losses, interest rate sensitivity, market risk, growth strategy, and financial and
other goals. The words �believes,� �expects,� �may,� �will,� �should,� �projects,� �contemplates,� �anticipates,� �forecasts,� �intends,� or other similar words or
terms are intended to identify forward looking statements. The forward-looking information is based on various factors and was derived using
numerous assumptions. Important factors that may cause actual results to differ from projections include:

� the success or failure of our efforts to implement our business plan;

� achieving and maintaining compliance with the Written Agreement between us and the banking regulators;

� any required increase in our regulatory capital ratios;

� satisfying other regulatory requirements that may arise from examinations, changes in the law and other similar factors;

� any required increase to our loan loss reserve;

� the difficult market conditions in our industry;

� the unprecedented levels of market volatility;

� the effects of soundness of other financial institutions;

� the uncertain outcome of recently enacted legislation to stabilize the U.S. financial system;

� the potential impact on us of recently enacted legislation;

� the lack of a market for our common stock;

� the ability to successfully manage our growth or implement our growth strategies if we are unable to identify attractive markets,
locations or opportunities to expand in the future;

� success in increasing capital to support our financial condition resulting from the recession;

� maintaining cost controls and asset qualities as we open or acquire new branches;
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� the successful management of interest rate risk;

� changes in interest rates and interest rate policies;

� reliance on our management team, including our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

� our ability to attract additional talent we may need;

� changes in general economic and business conditions in our market area;

� risks inherent in making loans such as repayment risks and fluctuating collateral values;

� competition with other banks and financial institutions, and companies outside of the banking industry, including those companies
that have substantially greater access to capital and other resources;

� demand, development and acceptance of new products and services;

� problems with technology utilized by us;

� changing trends in customer profiles and behavior;

� changes in governmental regulations, tax rates and similar matters; and

� other risks which may be described in our future filings with the SEC.
Because of these uncertainties, our actual future results may be materially different from the results indicated by these forward looking
statements. In addition, our past results of operations do not necessarily indicate our future results. We expressly disclaim any obligation to
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

For additional discussion of risk factors that may cause our actual future results to differ materially from the results indicated within forward
looking statements, please see Item 1A � Risk Factors herein.
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General

The following commentary discusses major components of our business and presents an overview of our consolidated financial position at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 as well as results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. This discussion should be
reviewed in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and other statistical information presented
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

New Peoples generates a significant amount of its income from the net interest income earned by the Bank. Net interest income is the difference
between interest income and interest expense. Interest income depends on the amount of interest-earning assets outstanding during the period
and the interest rates earned thereon. The Bank�s interest expense is a function of the average amount of deposits and borrowed money
outstanding during the period and the interest rates paid thereon. The quality of the assets further influences the amount of interest income lost
on nonaccrual loans and the amount of additions to the allowance for loan losses. The Bank also generates noninterest income from service
charges on deposit accounts and commissions on insurance and investment products sold.

Written Agreement

The Company and the Bank entered into a written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond and the Virginia Bureau of Financial
Institutions. Under this Agreement, the Bank has agreed to develop and submit for approval within specified time periods written plans to:
(a) strengthen board oversight of management and the Bank�s operation; (b) if appropriate after review, to strengthen the Bank�s management and
board governance; (c) strengthen credit risk management policies; (d) enhance lending and credit administration; (e) enhance the Bank�s
management of commercial real estate concentrations; (f) conduct ongoing review and grading of the Bank�s loan portfolio; (g) improve the
Bank�s position with respect to loans, relationships, or other assets in excess of $1 million which are now or in the future become past due more
than 90 days, which are on the Bank�s problem loan list, or which are adversely classified in any report of examination of the Bank; (h) review
and revise, as appropriate, current policy and maintain sound processes for maintaining an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses;
(i) enhance management of the Bank�s liquidity position and funds management practices; (j) revise its contingency funding plan; (k) revise its
strategic plan; and (l) enhance the Bank�s anti-money laundering and related activities.

In addition, the Bank has agreed that it will: (a) not extend, renew, or restructure any credit that has been criticized by the Reserve Bank or the
Bureau absent prior board of directors approval in accordance with the restrictions in the Agreement; (b) eliminate all assets or portions of assets
classified as �loss� and thereafter charge off all assets classified as �loss� in a federal or state report of examination, which has been done.

The Company and the Bank have agreed to submit capital plans to maintain sufficient capital at the Company, on a consolidated basis, and the
Bank, on a stand-alone basis, and to refrain from declaring or paying dividends without prior regulatory approval. The Company has agreed that
it will not take any other form of payment representing a reduction in the Bank�s capital or make any distributions of interest, principal, or other
sums on subordinated debentures or trust preferred securities without prior regulatory approval. The Company may not incur, increase or
guarantee any debt without prior regulatory approval and has agreed not to purchase or redeem any shares of its stock without prior regulatory
approval.

Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company and the Bank have appointed a committee to monitor compliance. The directors of the
Company and the Bank have recognized and unanimously agree with the common goal of financial soundness represented by the Agreement and
have confirmed the intent of the directors and executive management to diligently seek to comply with all requirements of the Written
Agreement.

Written Agreement Progress Report

At December 31, 2011, we believe we have made good progress in our compliance efforts under the Agreement and we are aggressively
working to comply with the Agreement and have timely submitted each required plan by its respective deadline. We have hired an independent
consultant to assist us in these efforts and the following actions have taken place:

1. With regard to corporate governance, we have established a weekly Director�s Loan Committee to oversee all loan approvals and all
loan renewals, extensions and approvals for loans risk rated Special Mention or worse, as well as, exposures exceeding the Chief
Credit Officer�s lending authority, This has enabled the Board to increase its oversight of the Bank�s largest credit exposures and
problem credits, and enhanced the monitoring and compliance with all loan policies and procedures. Secondly, we have enhanced
our reporting of credit quality to the board. Furthermore, we have adopted formal charters for our Nominating, Compliance,
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2. The requirement to assess the Board and management has been completed by an independent party. A report has been issued to the
Board and recommendations are being followed. In September 2010, our President and CEO was added as a member of the Board
and in November 2010, Eugene Hearl was added as a member of the Board. Mr. Hearl has over 40 years banking experience as
President and CEO for two community banks and Regional President of a large regional financial institution.

In addition, training is a key initiative of both the Board of Directors and employees. Further training of the Board has been implemented and
will be ongoing.

A formal management succession plan has been developed and approved by the Board of Directors.

3. In the month of September 2010, a newly revised strategic plan and a capital plan were completed and submitted to our regulators.
The 2011 Budget was submitted to our regulators in the fourth quarter of 2010.

A newly revised strategic plan for the years 2012 through 2014 was completed and submitted to the regulators in November 2011. The 2012
Budget was submitted to our regulators also in the fourth quarter of 2011.

4. Loan policies have been revised; an online approval and underwriting system for loans has been implemented; underwriting,
monitoring and management of credits and collections have been enhanced; frequency of external loan reviews increased; and the
focus on problem loans intensified at all levels in the organization. As a result, we are more timely in identifying problem loans. In
the future, continuing these procedures should strengthen asset quality substantially. Further training of lending personnel is ongoing
regarding proper risk grading of credits and identification of problem credits.

5. Enhanced loan concentration identification and new procedures for monitoring and managing concentrations have been
implemented. Loan concentration targets have been established and efforts continue to reduce higher risk concentrations. In
particular construction and development loans and commercial real estate loans have been reduced and continue to decrease toward
acceptable levels as determined by the new policies.

6. To strengthen management of credit quality and loan production, we added a new Chief Credit Officer, Stephen Trescot, in the first
quarter of 2011 who brings vast credit administration experience to our management team. Sharon Borich, our former Chief Credit
Officer, assumed the role of Senior Lending Officer with oversight of loan production and business development which is her area of
expertise. In addition to new lending policies and procedures, the management of all real estate development projects and draws has
been centralized. We have segregated the duties of lenders for greater specialization of commercial and retail lending responsibilities.
As a result we have formed a Commercial Loan division that is supervised by the Senior Vice President and Senior Lending Officer.
The retail loans are primarily the responsibility of branch personnel who report to branch managers and respective area managers.

The credit analysis function has been restructured and is a part of credit administration. The credit analysis function and independent appraisal
reviews are now lead by a former seasoned lender who serves as Vice President and Credit Officer. This individual oversees a staff of four credit
analysts and a certified licensed appraiser who serves as Appraisal Review Manager. The credit analysts review new and renewed loan
relationships of $250 thousand or more prior to approval and annually reviews relationships of $500 thousand or more. The independent
Appraisal Review Manager reviews the quality of appraisals on behalf of the Bank by reviewing the methods, assumptions, and value
conclusions of internal and external appraisals. In addition, this data is used to determine whether an external appraiser should be utilized for
future work.

7. We have retained an independent third party to perform loan reviews on a quarterly basis in 2010 and 2011 and have engaged them
to perform this function in 2012. The third party loan review company has also conducted two loan portfolio stress tests for the Bank
to obtain a better understanding of potential loan losses over a two year period.

8. To support the focus on problem credit management the Bank further developed, in March, 2011, a Special
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Assets department which reports to the Chief Credit Officer. Presently, the department has four workout specialists/Vice Presidents,
one Vice President managing other real estate owned properties, an analyst, and two support personnel. Substantially all the
relationships in the Bank with total commitments in excess of $500,000 which are risk rated Special Mention or worse are assigned
to this department. This department is organizationally structured to manage workout situations, collections, other real estate owned,
nonperforming assets, watch list credits, and the Bank�s legal department. New reporting and monitoring is conducted monthly by
this division. Material changes to Special Asset credits are reported to the Board at the time of occurrence and, quarterly, the Board
receives written action plans and status updates of the Bank�s twenty largest problem credits. A monthly management watch list
committee has been established to actively manage and monitor these credits.

9. A new allowance for loan loss model was implemented and reviewed independently during 2010. The Board has approved
a new allowance for loan loss policy. We have shifted duties for maintaining the allowance for loan loss model and credit
reporting to a more experienced employee. The allowance for loan loss and the methodology supporting the results are
approved quarterly by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ratified by the Board.

10. We have significantly increased our asset based liquidity sources throughout 2010 and 2011 to meet financial obligations. A new
liquidity risk management policy has been adopted and a revised contingency funding plan has been created. We have lost all of our
federal funds lines of credit, but we have added an internet certificate of deposit funding source to increase contingent funding
sources. We believe that we have adequate liquidity in normal and stressed situations. We are further developing an investment
portfolio, as well.

11. In the fourth quarter of 2009, we ceased the declaration of dividends from the Bank to the Company. We also deferred interest
payments on our trust preferred securities issuances.

12. Anti-money laundering and bank secrecy act programs and training have been enhanced.
Overview

At December 31, 2011, total assets were $780.4 million, total loans were $597.8 million, and total deposits were $708.3 million at December 31,
2011. The Company had a total net loss after tax of $8.9 million or $0.89 per basic share and per diluted share for the year ended December 31,
2011 as compared to a net loss of $9.1 million, or $0.91 per basic and per diluted share for the year ended December 31, 2010. The annualized
return on average assets for the fiscal year 2011 was (1.07)% as compared to (1.05)% for the same period in 2010. The annualized return on
average equity was (24.35)% for the fiscal year 2011 and (19.60)% for the same period in 2010.

During the year 2011, we strategically decreased total assets, total loans and higher cost deposits to improve our capital position. As a result of
shrinking the Bank, we returned to well-capitalized status in the first quarter of 2011 and have maintained that status throughout the year. The
following Bank ratios existed at December 31, 2011 as compared to December 31, 2010, respectively: Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5.99% versus
6.00%; Tier 1 risk based capital ratio of 9.28% versus 8.50%; and total risk based capital ratio of 10.56% versus 9.79%.

Total assets decreased $72.2 million in 2011, or 8.47%, from $852.6 million at December 31, 2010. Total loans decreased $110.0 million in
2011, or 15.54%, from $707.8 million at December 31, 2010. This is primarily the result of our strategy to shrink the loan portfolio to improve
our capital position, the slow economic recovery, particularly in our market area and more stringent underwriting guidelines that we have
established. Total deposits decreased $57.8 million, or 7.54%, from $766.1 million at December 31, 2010. The largest decrease in deposits has
taken place in time deposits which have decreased from $510.1 million at December 31, 2010 to $445.7 million at December 31, 2011. This
$64.4 million decrease in time deposits, or 12.63%, is due to our shift in pricing these deposits to the middle of the pricing in our market area
versus the higher end where we have traditionally been when we were experiencing high loan growth.

For the year ending December 31, 2011, we experienced a net loss of $8.9 million as compared to $9.1 million for the same period in 2010. In
the year 2011, the net loss was primarily related to four areas: lower net interest income, increased other real estate owned expenses, a one-time
goodwill impairment loss and a valuation allowance on our deferred tax asset. We maintain a strong net interest margin of 4.29% in 2011 as
compared to 4.35% in 2010. However, the decreased volume of earning assets in 2011 and high levels of nonperforming assets
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decreased net interest income to $32.2 million in 2011 from $34.1 million in 2010. Other real estate owned expenses also increased in 2011 to
$5.6 million from $2.2 million. The majority of this is due to decreased real estate market value primarily in out of market loans originated in the
past. We also determined that our goodwill is more likely than not to be totally impaired at December 31, 2011 due to our decreased stock price.
In addition, this goodwill was determined to be more likely than not to be impaired due to the decreased capital levels that we have experienced
because of historical losses. This $4.1 million expense is a one-time expense. Finally, we incurred a valuation allowance on our deferred tax
asset totaling $2.7 million which has a direct impact on the net loss in 2011. We may be able to reverse the valuation allowance in the future as
earnings improve resulting in taxable income to offset net loss tax carryforwards.

The ratio of nonperforming assets to total assets is 7.55% at December 31, 2011 as compared to 7.02% at December 31, 2010. Nonperforming
assets, which include nonaccrual loans, other real estate owned and past due loans greater than 90 days still accruing interest, were nearly the
same level for both years. At December 31, 2011, nonperforming assets totaled $58.9 million as compared to $59.8 million at December 31,
2010. The majority of these assets are real estate development projects both inside and outside of our market area. Ones outside our market area
are primarily in the coastal Carolinas; however, this amount is only $2.5 million at December 31, 2011 as compared to $7.6 million at
December 31, 2010. In addition, there are also some similar projects located in Northeastern Tennessee and one in eastern West Virginia. We are
undertaking aggressive efforts to work out these credits. This will take some time, but overall we believe we are making progress.

During 2011, we have made significant progess in identifying the risks in our loan portfolio. In addition, we have improved our lending policies
and further trained our lending staff on these policies and procedures. Each of these steps are critical to minimize future losses and to strengthen
asset quality of the Bank. Our allowance for loan loss at December 31, 2011 is $18.4 million, or 3.07% as compared to $25.0 million, or 3.53%
at December 31, 2010. The provision for loan losses decreased to $ 8.0 million in 2011 as compared to $22.3 million in 2010. We continue to
maintain a higher level in the allowance for loan loss in light of the current economic circumstances, including the anemic recovery and
continued increases in non-performing loans and believe that this level is adequate. Future provisions may be deemed necessary, however. Net
charge-offs year-to-date for 2011 as a percentage of total average loans were 2.24% as compared to 2.14% in 2010. Impaired loans increased
slightly to $91.8 million with an estimated allowance of $6.0 million for potential losses at December 31, 2011 as compared to $90.6 million in
impaired loans with an estimated allowance of $12.8 million at the end of 2010. In working with our customers, troubled debts restructured
increased in 2011 to $29.1 million as compared to $13.9 million at December 31, 2010.

New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. and its subsidiary New Peoples Bank, Inc. has 27 branch locations throughout Southwest Virginia, southern West
Virginia, and northeastern Tennessee providing traditional banking, investment and insurance services to its customers.

Critical Accounting Policies

Certain critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements. Our
most critical accounting policy relates to our provision for loan losses, which reflects the estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our borrowers were to further deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, our estimates would be updated, and additional provisions could be required. For further discussion of the estimates
used in determining the allowance for loan losses, we refer you to the section on �Provision for Loan Losses� in this discussion. For further
discussion of our other critical accounting policies, see Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, found in Item 8 to this annual report on Form 10-K.

Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin

The Company�s primary source of income, net interest income, decreased $2.0 million, or 5.76% from 2010 to 2011. The decrease in net interest
income is due primarily to a reduction in loans during 2011 and the level of nonearning assets, i.e. nonaccrual loans and other real estate owned
properties. Loan interest income decreased $6.6 million, or 13.81%, from $47.8 million in 2010 to $41.2 million in 2011. Interest expense
decreased $4.3 million, or 30.88%, from $13.9 million for the year ending 2010 to $9.6 million in 2011 as a result of deposits re-pricing at lower
interest rates at maturity, and a shift in the deposit mix whereby our higher cost time deposits were replaced with lower cost deposit products.
The net interest margin for the year ending December 31, 2011 was 4.29% as compared to 4.35% for the same period in 2010. The net interest
margin, however, was trending upward during the last half of 2011.
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The following table shows the rates paid on earning assets and deposit liabilities for the periods indicated.

Net Interest Margin Analysis

Average Balances, Income and Expense, and Yields and Rates

(Dollars in thousands)

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2011

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2010

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2009

Average
Balance

Income/
Expense

Yields/
Rates

Average
Balance

Income/
Expense

Yields/
Rates

Average
Balance

Income/
Expense

Yields/
Rates

ASSETS
Loans (1), (2), (3) $ 659,298 $ 41,176 6.25% $ 742,026 $ 47,775 6.44% $ 747,971 $ 50,188 6.71% 
Federal funds sold 6,202 9 0.15% 25,763 44 0.17% 10,648 26 0.24% 
Interest bearing deposits 74,000 184 0.25% 8,349 12 0.14% 124 �  �  % 
Other investments (3) 10,952 400 3.65% 7,590 197 2.61% 7,134 164 2.30% 

Total Earning Assets 750,452 41,769 5.57% 783,728 48,028 6.13% 765,877 50,378 6.57% 

Less: Allowance for loans losses (20,805) (18,607) (10,245) 
Non-earning assets 101,972 97,997 87,531

Total Assets $ 831,619 $ 863,118 $ 843,163

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS�
EQUITY
Deposits
Demand � Interest bearing $ 57,675 $ 155 0.27% $ 56,791 $ 250 0.44% $ 39,384 $ 233 0.59% 
Savings 103,346 460 0.45% 92,622 779 0.84% 84,215 994 1.18% 
Time deposits 485,072 7,717 1.59% 523,990 11,112 2.12% 522,439 15,491 2.97% 
Other Borrowings 24,151 838 3.47% 29,721 1,303 4.39% 30,937 1,312 4.24% 
Trust Preferred Securities 16,496 436 2.64% 16,496 454 2.75% 16,496 533 3.23% 

Total interest bearing liabilities 686,740 9,606 1.40% 719,620 13,898 1.93% 693,471 18,563 2.68% 

Non-interest bearing deposits 102,957 92,943 95,372
Other liabilities 5,338 4,307 4,278

Total Liabilities 795,035 816,870 793,121
Stockholders� Equity 36,584 46,248 50,042

Total Liabilities and Stockholders�
Equity $ 831,619 $ 863,118 $ 843,163

Net Interest Income $ 32,163 $ 34,130 $ 31,815

Net Interest Margin 4.29% 4.35% 4.14% 

Net Interest Spread 4.17% 4.20% 3.89% 
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(1) Non-accrual loans have been included in the average balance of loans outstanding.
(2) Loan fees have been included in interest income on loans.
(3) Tax exempt income is not significant and has been treated as fully taxable.
Net interest income is affected by changes in both average interest rates and average volumes of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. The following table sets forth the amounts of the total changes in interest income and expense which can be attributed to rate (change
in rate multiplied by old volume) and volume (change in volume multiplied by old rate) for the periods indicated.
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Volume and Rate Analysis

(Dollars in thousands)

2011 Compared to 2010 2010 Compared to 2009
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Volume
Effect

Rate
Effect

Change
in

Interest
Income/
Expense

Volume
Effect

Rate
Effect

Change
in

Interest
Income/
Expense

Interest Income:
Loans $ (5,326) $ (1,273) $ (6,599) $ (399) $ (2,014) $ (2,413) 
Federal funds sold (33) (2) (35) 37 (19) 18
Interest bearing deposits 94 78 172 �  12 12
Other investments 87 116 203 10 23 33

Total Earning Assets (5,178) (1,081) (6,259) (352) (1,998) (2,350) 

Interest Bearing Liabilities:
Demand 4 (99) (95) 103 (86) 17
Savings 90 (409) (319) 99 (314) (215) 
All other time deposits (825) (2,570) (3,395) 46 (4,425) (4,379) 
Other borrowings (244) (221) (465) (52) 43 (9) 
Trust Preferred Securities �  (18) (18) �  (79) (79) 

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities (975) (3,317) (4,292) 196 (4,861) (4,665) 

Change in Net Interest Income $ (4,203) $ 2,236 $ (1,967) $ (548) $ 2,863 $ 2,315

Loans

Our primary source of income comes from interest earned on loans receivable. Loan production slowed in 2011 as evidenced by total loans
decreasing $110.0 million, or 15.54%, including net charge offs of $14.7 million. This is the result of slower loan demand, intentional shrinking
of the loan portfolio to increase regulatory capital ratios, and resolution of problem loans. We continue to serve our customers, and although the
total loan portfolio has shrunk, we have renewed existing credits and made new loans as well to qualified borrowers. We plan to decrease the
loan portfolio in the near future as we reduce our exposure to certain risks and decrease nonperforming loans. Total loans decreased $55.8
million in 2010 from 2009. A schedule of loans by type is set forth immediately below. Approximately 79.20% of the loan portfolio is secured
by real estate at the end of 2011.

Loans receivable outstanding are summarized as follows:

Loan Portfolio

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 85,798 $ 109,418 $ 118,844 $ 110,060 $ 121,198
Real estate � construction 32,389 52,307 71,854 64,595 38,420
Real estate � mortgage 441,107 489,314 504,071 483,471 463,079
Installment loans to individuals 38,522 56,755 68,801 63,048 59,563

Total $ 597,816 $ 707,794 $ 763,570 $ 721,174 $ 682,260
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Our loan maturities as of December 31, 2011 are shown in the following table:

Maturities of Loans

(Dollars in thousands)
Less than
One Year

One to Five
Years

After Five
Years Total

Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 27,056 $ 48,493 $ 10,249 $ 85,798
Real estate � construction 7,694 18,270 6,425 32,389
Real estate � mortgage 91,915 249,729 99,463 441,107
Installment loans to individuals 7,140 27,953 3,429 38,522

Total $ 133,805 $ 344,445 $ 119,566 $ 597,816

Loans with fixed rates $ 43,934 $ 118,553 $ 117,568 $ 280,055
Loans with variable rates 89,871 225,892 1,998 317,761

Total $ 133,805 $ 344,445 $ 119,566 $ 597,816

The above table reflects the earlier of the maturity or re-pricing dates for loans at December 31, 2011. In preparing this table, no assumptions are
made with respect to loan prepayments. Loan principal payments are included in the earliest period in which the loan matures or can be
re-priced. Principal payments on installment loans scheduled prior to maturity are included in the period of maturity or re-pricing.

Provision for Loan Losses

The calculation of the allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting policy. The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based
upon management�s judgment and analysis. The following factors are included in our evaluation of determining the adequacy of the allowance:
risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, current and historical loss experience, concentrations, internal factors, such as internal practices and
lending procedures, and external factors, such as general economic conditions.

The allowance for loan losses decreased to $18.4 million at December 31, 2011 as compared to $25.0 million at December 31, 2010. The
allowance for loan losses at the end of 2011 was approximately 3.07% of total loans as compared to 3.53% at the end of 2010. Net loans charged
off for 2011 were $14.7 million, or 2.24% of average loans, and $15.9 million, or 2.14% of average loans, in 2010. The provision for loan losses
was $8.0 million for 2011 as compared with $22.3 million for 2010.

Certain risks exist in the Bank�s loan portfolio. Historically, we have experienced significant annual loan growth until the past couple of years.
However, there might be loans that have single pay maturities or demand loans that may be too new to have exhibited signs of weakness. Also,
past expansions into new markets increase potential credit risk. A majority of our loans are collateralized by real estate located in our market
area. It is our policy to sufficiently collateralize loans to help minimize loss exposures in case of default. The recent negative trends in the
national real estate market and economy pose threats to our portfolio. With the exception of real estate development type properties which have
experienced more deterioration in market values, the local residential and commercial real estate market values have shown some deterioration
but remain relatively stable. National real estate markets have experienced a more significant downturn and this has impacted our portfolio for
certain out-of-market loans in the Coastal Carolina, northeastern Tennessee, and eastern West Virginia markets. Prior to 2008, we had purchased
participation construction loans in the Coastal Carolina area. The totals of these credits were $2.5 million at December 31, 2011 and $7.6 million
at December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2011 $55 thousand of the allowance for loan losses was allocated to these credits. The $5.1 million
decrease in these credits was the result of a $1.8 million charge off on a subdivision property and golf course, a $1.4 million payoff on a hotel
property which experienced a $428 thousand charge off in 2011, and a total of $1.3 million in charge offs due to new appraised values obtained
in 2011 for three development properties. This market area poses higher risk to potential future write-downs if the real estate market conditions
do not show improvements. It is uncertain as to when or if local real estate values will be more significantly impacted. We do not believe that
there will be a severely negative effect in our market area, but because of the uncertainty we deem it prudent to assign more of the allowance to
these types of loans. Our market area is somewhat diverse, but certain areas are more reliant upon agriculture, coal mining and natural gas. As a
result, increased risk of loan impairments is possible if these industries experience a significant downturn although we do not believe this to be
likely at least in the near future. We consider these factors to be the primary higher risk characteristics of the loan portfolio.
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Loans are initially risk rated by the originating loan officer. If deteriorations in the financial condition of the borrower and the capacity to repay
the debt occur, along with other factors, the loan may be downgraded. This is to be determined by the loan officer. Guidance for the evaluation is
established by the regulatory authorities who periodically review the Bank�s loan portfolio for compliance. Classifications used by the Bank are
exceptional, very good, standard, acceptable, transitory risk, other assets especially mentioned, substandard, doubtful and loss. For the years
2010 and 2011, we engaged a third party loan review firm to conduct quarterly loan reviews and have engaged them to perform this function in
2012. Upon their review, loans risk ratings may change from the rating assigned by the respective lender. We have experienced fewer rating
changes in more recent reviews indicating better risk identification for the loan portfolio in light of the experience from the severe recession.

All loans classified as special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss are individually reviewed for impairment. In determining impairment,
collateral for loans classified as substandard, doubtful and loss is reviewed to determine if the collateral is sufficient for each of these credits,
generally through obtaining an appraisal. We consider an appraisal to be outdated when the appraisal is greater than 12 months old and the credit
exhibits signs of weakness that warrant the possibility of relying on the collateral for repayment. An independent appraisal department reviews
each appraisal to ensure compliance with USPAP requirements. The appraisal is further reviewed by the loan officer and Chief Credit Officer for
reasonableness. If the appraisal value is questionable, an independent third party review of the appraisal is obtained. On adversely classified
loans of all types, we may deem it necessary to obtain appraisals annually. In the past year, we have given higher priority to construction and
development and commercial real estate loans as they are more sensitive to market deterioration. Concentrated efforts through the Special Assets
division on these problem credits are underway and current appraisals are being obtained on a timely basis as required. If appraisals are obtained
�as is,� we further discount the appraisals with an estimated selling cost of 10% for commercial and development properties and 6% for residential
mortgages. If a current appraisal has not been obtained, we generally discount the most recent appraisal value by age: greater than one year
through two years � 10%; two years to three years � 20%; greater than 3 years � 30%. For distressed out of market loans, we compare the credit to a
similar current appraisal and discount accordingly until a current appraisal is obtained. In determining the FAS 5 component of our allowance,
we do not directly consider the potential for outdated appraisals since that portion of our allowance is based on the analysis of the performance
of loans with similar characteristics, external and internal risk factors. We consider the overall quality of our underwriting process in our internal
risk factors, but the need to update appraisals is associated with loans identified as impaired under FAS 114. If an appraisal is older than one
year, a new external certified appraisal may be obtained and used to determine impairment. If an exposure exists, a specific allowance is directly
made for the amount of the potential loss in addition to estimated liquidation and disposal costs. The evaluation is inherently subjective as it
requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. Impaired loans increased to $91.8 million
with a valuation allowance of $6.0 million at December 31, 2011 as compared to $90.6 million with a valuation allowance of $12.8 million at
December 31, 2010. Of the $91.8 million recorded as impaired loans, $33.9 million were nonperforming loans, which includes nonaccrual loans
and past due 90 days or more. Impaired loans increased $1.2 million, or 1.29%, from $90.6 million recorded as impaired loans at December 31,
2010. We determined we had $30.0 million in loans that required a valuation allowance of $6.0 million at December 31, 2011. At December 31,
2010 we had $45.7 million in loans that required a valuation allowance of $12.8 million. The $15.7 million decrease in loans requiring a
valuation allowance was the result of $5.0 million decrease in commercial loans, $2.0 million increase in real estate loans, and a decrease of
$12.6 million in real estate construction loans that required a valuation allowance. Management is aggressively working to reduce the impaired
credits at minimal loss.

23

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 37



Table of Contents

Although risk classifications and the level of downgrades may indicate a worsening of the asset quality of the loan portfolio, we believe that the
enhancements we have made in the risk identification process that we have implemented through improved policies, quality external
independent loan reviews, new credit administration and experience from the severe recession support a better demonstration of the loan
portfolio than in the past. The corresponding allowance for loan loss at December 31, 2011 decreased from December 31, 2010. This is a result
of the following factors. The allowance for loan loss increased at December 31, 2010 significantly due to subsequent events in 2011 that
revealed exposures resulting primarily from updated appraisals obtained on out of market loans that were significantly devalued and were later
charged off in 2011. The level of out of market loans have drastically declined and development loans have also decreased; therefore, the risk
associated with them has reduced requiring lesser reserves. In addition, we changed methodology of determining historical loss factors by
applying our historical loss rates instead of a weighted approach that was based on the greater of Virginia peers or our own historical loss
rates. This is due to the fact that we did not have any historical loss rates for certain types of loans in time past, but now a loss trend has
developed and provides better support than the previous methodology. Management implemented the following internal control procedures for
timely reporting of changes in collateral value on impaired loans to management responsible for financial reporting:

1. A Disclosure Control Committee has been established consisting of the following officers: Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Credit Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Senior Lending Officer, Controller, In-house Legal Counsel, and Director of
Internal Audit. This Committee will meet quarterly to discuss loan portfolio and problem asset quality issues, operation risks, legal
issues, subsequent events, suspicious activities, and reported disclosures.

2. The Chief Credit Officer (�CCO�) of the Bank is assigned the responsibility for monitoring all assets classified as impaired. The CCO
is responsible for determining when appraisals or evaluations will be needed on impaired loans and other real estate owned
properties, and for reporting any reductions in collateral values to the Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�) on a quarterly basis prior to the
filing of the quarterly and annual reports with the SEC. Our other real estate owned property department maintains a tickler of when
new appraisals are to be obtained. Appraisals subject to annual review are ordered on or about the first of the month preceding the
month of annual renewal. For those that have an annual renewal due in the month following quarter end or year end, the appraisal is
ordered two months prior to the reporting period end to help ensure timely receipt of appraisals and reduce the likelihood of an
appraisal being obtained in the subsequent event period prior to the public filing of financial information.

3. When appraisals are received from the third party appraisal firm, a copy of the appraisal is promptly logged on a register designating
the date of receipt by our independent appraisal review department which presently consists of a certified licensed appraiser. The
appraisal is provided to the Loan Officer and the Loan Operations Department, with the Loan Officer responsible to promptly place
the appraisal in the customer file, update valuations on the Bank�s database, provide the information to the ALLL model coordinator
for an impairment analysis and forward a copy to the CCO.

4. The independent appraisal review department of the Bank will immediately notify the CCO and the Loan Officer of the results of an
appraisal on an impaired or suspected impaired loan or other real estate owned property. After the CCO and Loan Officer review the
appraisal, a determination will be made as to the reasonableness of the appraisal. The final determination as to reasonableness will be
the responsibility of the CCO. All appraisals of loans greater than $2.0 million are reviewed by a third-party appraisal review
company. Upon a determination of reasonableness, then the CCO will notify the CFO, Controller and Allowance for Loan Loss
model coordinator of any deterioration in the appraised value. A new impairment test will be performed and reviewed by the CCO
and CFO to determine if an additional allowance reserve is needed for this credit relationship, which will be provided to the
Controller to make general ledger adjustments and financial statement revisions prior to issuance.

5. Prior to release of financial information, the CFO will contact the CCO to ensure no appraisals have been received or are being
reviewed, the result of which might be material to the financial statement of the Company. If there are any material differences, a
collaborative effort of Senior Management and the independent appraisal reviewer will be made to determine what the impairment in
the ALLL needs to be for recognition or the write-down in OREO value that is needed for the period end currently being reported to
the public.
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Loans delinquent greater than 90 days still accruing interest and loans in non-accrual status present higher risks. At December 31, 2011, there
were 170 loans in non-accrual status totaling $42.3 million, or 7.08% of total loans. At December 31, 2010, there were 113 loans in non-accrual
status totaling $45.8 million, or 6.47% of total loans. The amounts of interest that would have been recognized on these loans were $1.3 million
and $1.2 million in the years 2011 and 2010, respectively. There were 47 loans past due 90 days or greater and still accruing interest totaling
$1.5 million, or 0.25% of total loans at December 31, 2011. There were 66 loans past due 90 days or greater and still accruing interest totaling
$1.7 million in 2010. It is our policy to stop accruing interest on a loan, and to classify that loan as non-accrual, under the following
circumstances: (a) whenever we are advised by the borrower that scheduled payment or interest payments cannot be met, (b) when our best
judgment indicates that payment in full of principal and interest can no longer be expected, or (c) when any such loan or obligation becomes
delinquent for 90 days unless it is both well secured and in the process of collection. There were $29.1 million in loans classified as troubled
debt restructurings as of December 31, 2011 as compared to $13.9 million in loans classified as troubled debt restructurings as of December 31,
2010. We do not have any commitments to lend additional funds to non-performing debtors. Following is a summary of non-accrual and past
due loans greater than 90 days still accruing interest:

Non-Accrual and Past Due Loans

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Non-accruing loans
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 10,633 $ 5,970 $ 1,027 $ 100 $ 1,250
Real estate � construction 5,583 15,460 13,727 2,875 351
Real estate � mortgage 26,099 22,986 9,670 3,269 1,128
Installment loans to individuals 1 1,365 289 170 217

Total Non-accruing loans 42,316 45,781 24,713 6,414 2,946

Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing 1,504 1,693 3,875 33 267

Total $ 43,820 $ 47,474 $ 28,588 $ 6,447 $ 3,213

Percent of total loans 7.33% 6.71% 3.74% 0.89% 0.47% 
In addition to impaired loans, the remaining loan portfolio is evaluated based on past due history, economic conditions, and internal processes.
During 2011, we changed methodology of determining historical loss factors by applying our historical loss rates instead of a weighted approach
that was based on the greater of Virginia peers or our own historical loss rates. Previously, we did not have sufficient historical loss rates for
certain types of loans, but a loss trend has now developed and provides better support than previous data used. Economic data currently used
includes national and local regional unemployment information, local housing price changes, gross domestic product growth, and interest rates
are external factors. Lastly, we also evaluate our internal processes of underwriting and consider the inherent risks present in the portfolio due to
past and present lending practices. In the past, these factors were not directly allocated to a particular loan category and were considered
unallocated in the breakdown data in the table below. During 2011, however, we further analyzed our loan portfolio and the various unallocated
internal and external factors. From our analysis, we determined that certain unallocated factors were relevant to certain sectors of the loan
portfolio and some to each sector. These factors were allocated accordingly. As economic conditions, performance of our loans and internal
processes change, it is possible that future increases may be needed to the allowance for loan losses. The following table provides a summary of
the activity in the allowance for loan losses.

Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses

(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
Activity 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Beginning Balance $ 25,014 $ 18,588 $ 6,904 $ 6,620 $ 4,870
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Provision charged to expense 7,959 22,328 12,841 1,500 3,840

Advances made on loans with off balance sheet provision 153 �  �  �  �  
Loan Losses:
Commercial, financial and agricultural (4,022) (1,911) (129) (591) (1,701) 
Real estate - construction (7,245) (10,002) (446) (44) (2) 
Real estate � mortgage (5,446) (3,867) (367) (256) (179) 
Installment loans to individuals (694) (728) (334) (420) (284) 

Total loan losses (17,407) (16,508) (1,276) (1,311) (2,166) 

Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 224 530 37 18 20
Real estate � construction 1,296 �  8 �  �  
Real estate - mortgage 1,018 6 21 17 6
Installment loans to individuals 123 70 53 60 50

Total recoveries 2,661 606 119 95 76

Net charge offs (14,746) (15,902) (1,157) (1,216) (2,090) 

Balance at End of Period $ 18,380 $ 25,014 $ 18,588 $ 6,904 $ 6,620

Net charge offs as a % of average loans 2.79% 2.14% 0.15% 0.17% 0.34% 

We have allocated the allowance according to the amount deemed to be reasonably necessary to provide for the possibility of losses being
incurred within each of the categories of loans. The allocation of the allowance as shown in the following table should not be interpreted as an
indication that loan losses in future years will occur in the same proportions or that the allocation indicates future loan loss trends. Furthermore,
the portion allocated to each loan category is not the total amount available for future losses that might occur within such categories since the
total allowance is a general allowance applicable to the entire portfolio.
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The allocation of the allowance for loan losses is based on our judgment of the relative risk associated with each type of loan. We have allocated
52% of the allowance to real estate loans, which constituted 73.79% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2011. Mortgage loans are secured by
real estate whose value tends to be easily ascertainable. These loans are made consistent with appraisal policies and real estate lending policies,
which detail maximum loan-to-value ratios and maturities.

We have allocated 21% of the allowance to real estate construction loans, which constituted 5.42% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2011.
Construction loans are secured by real estate with values that are dependent upon market and economic conditions. Values may not always be
easily ascertainable as evidenced by the current market conditions. These loans are made consistent with appraisal policies and real estate
lending policies which detail maximum loan-to-value ratios and maturities. Our allocation remained comparable to the 20% in 2010 despite the
fact construction loans decreased $19.9 million from 2010 to 2011 due to the $7.2 million in charge offs that impacts our historical loss rate.

We have allocated 18% of the allowance to commercial loans, which constituted 14.35% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2011. This
allocation decreased as a percentage of the allowance for loan losses as a result of the $23.8 million decrease in commercial loans during 2011.

We have allocated 4% of the allowance to consumer installment loans, which constituted 6.44% of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2011. The
reason for the decrease in the allocation was the result of the $18.1 million decrease in these loans during 2011.

The following table shows the balance and percentage of our allowance for loan losses (or �ALLL�) allocated to each major category of loans.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Amount
% of
ALLL

%of
Loans Amount

% of
ALLL

%of
Loans Amount

% of
ALLL

% of
Loans

Commercial $ 3,322 18% 14.35% $ 5,323 21% 15.48% $ 1,710 9% 15.56% 
R/E � const. 3,848 21% 5.42% 4,913 20% 7.39% 8,036 43% 9.41% 
R/E � mortg. 9,578 52% 73.79% 6,882 27% 69.13% 3,525 19% 66.02% 
Installment 781 4% 6.44% 1,733 7% 8.00% 1,501 8% 9.01% 
Unallocated 851 5% 6,163 25% 3,816 21% 

Total $ 18,380 100% 100.00% $ 25,014 100% 100.00% $ 18,588 100% 100.00% 

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Amount
% of
ALLL

% of
Loans Amount

% of
ALLL

% of
Loans

Commercial $ 3,866 56% 15.26% $ 3,254 49% 17.76% 
R/E � const. 621 9% 8.96% 199 3% 5.63% 
R/E � mortg. 1,036 15% 67.04% 1,200 18% 67.88% 
Installment 1,381 20% 8.74% 1,967 30% 8.73% 
Unallocated �  �  �  �  

Total $ 6,904 100% 100.00% 6,620 100% 100.00% 

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned increased $2.8 million, or 22.24%, to $15.1 million at December 31, 2011 from $12.3 million at December 31, 2010. We
anticipate total other real estate owned to increase in the near future as we foreclose on real estate collateralized loans. All properties are being
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marketed for sale by commercial and residential realtors under the direction of our Special Assets division. During 2011, we were able to sale
$5.9 million of our properties as compared to sales of $3.7 million in 2010. Future sales of these properties are contingent upon an economic
recovery; consequently, it is difficult to estimate the duration of our ownership of these assets. We have designated employees to monitor other
real estate owned properties to ensure proper fair market values of these assets and to ensure that maintenance and improvements are made to
make these properties more marketable. During 2011 we had to record writedowns on other real estate owned properties in the amount of $4.0
million compared to $1.4 million in 2010. Substantially all of the $4.0 million in writedowns was related to a $1.2 million writedown on a
commercial subdivision property located in Pigeon Forge, Tennessee and a $2.1 million writedown on a commercial subdivision property
located in the Coastal Carolina area.

26

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 42



Table of Contents

Investment Securities

Total investment securities increased to $32.4 million at December 31, 2011 from $4.7 million at December 31, 2010 as we have intentionally
increased the investment portfolio of the Bank. All securities are classified as available-for-sale for liquidity purposes. Investment securities with
a carrying value of $15.7 million and $892 thousand at December 31, 2011 and 2010, were pledged to secure public deposits, overnight payment
processing and for other purposes required by law.

As we curtail loans, we continue to build an investment portfolio. We anticipate increasing the size of the portfolio during 2012. The portfolio
will be comprised of short to mid-term investments.

The carrying values of investment securities and the different types of investments are shown in the following table:

Investment Securities Portfolio

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2011 2010

Available for Sale
Amortized

Cost
Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

U.S. Government Agencies $ 21,405 $ 21,633 $ 3,001 $ 2,970
Taxable municipals 1,465 1,552 894 899
Tax-exempt municipals 1,043 1,054 �  �  
Mortgage backed securities 8,144 8,195 781 789

Total Securities AFS $ 32,057 $ 32,434 $ 4,676 $ 4,658

The amortized cost, fair value and weighted average yield of investment securities at December 31, 2011 are shown by contractual maturity and
do not reflect principal paydowns for amortizing securities, in the following schedule. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Maturities of Securities

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars are in thousands)

Securities Available for Sale
Amortized

Cost
Fair
Value

Weighted
Average
Yield

Due in one year or less $ �  $ �  �  % 
Due after one year through five years 171 176 2.59% 
Due after five years through fifteen years 8,377 8,615 3.11% 
Due after fifteen years 23,509 23,643 2.59% 

Total $ 32,057 $ 32,434 2.72% 

Deposits

Total deposits were $708.3 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of $57.8 million, or 7.54%, from $766.1 million at December 31, 2010.
This decrease is attributed to our plan to decrease higher cost deposits in order to improve earnings and increase capital ratios. Most of the
decrease has been in time deposits which are our highest cost deposit funding source. During this econcomic recession period, we have
decreased our interest rates on deposits consistent with our local market mid-range levels, given that loan demand has waned in the past couple
of years and the need for funding has decreased. As a result, savings deposits, which includes money market deposits, have decreased as well.
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We have, however, focused on increasing demand deposits through our attractive consumer and commercial deposit accounts. As a result,
demand deposits have increased $20.2 million, or 13.68%, to $168.1 million at December 31, 2011 as compared to $147.9 million at
December 31, 2010.

Time deposits of $100,000 or more equaled approximately 23.61% of deposits at the end of 2011 and 22.89% of deposits at the end of 2010.

We have brokered deposits totaling $2.7 million with a term of 10 years. These deposits were used to fund a particular 10 year balloon mortgage
product. Internet accounts are limited to customers located in the surrounding
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geographical area. The average balance of and the average rate paid on deposits is shown in the net interest margin analysis above. Total CDARs
time deposits decreased to $8.2 million in 2011 as compared to $17.0 million in 2010 primarily due to lower interest rates offered by us.

Maturities of time certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more outstanding are summarized as follows:

Maturities of Time Deposits of $100 Thousand and More

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2011

Three months or less $ 39,494
Over three months through six months 31,062
Over six months through twelve months 40,480
Over one year 56,203

Total $ 167,239

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income decreased $410 thousand, or 6.91%, from $5.9 million in 2010 to $5.5 million in 2011. The primary reasons for the decrease
is from $136 thousand decrease in insurance commissions, a $122 thousand decrease in bank owned life insurance income and a $252 thousand
difference in the gain on sale of fixed assets. Service charges and fees increased in 2011 from 2010. Service charges on deposit accounts,
primarily overdraft fees, decreased $213 thousand, while fees on ATM and debt card network fees increased $328 thousand due to increased
volume.

Noninterest income as a percentage of average assets remained relatively the same. The ratio was 0.66% in 2011 as compared to 0.69% in 2010.
We anticipate this percentage to remain flat during 2012 due to regulatory actions regarding these types of income sources.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expenses increased $7.5 million, or 23.60%, to $39.4 million in 2011 from $31.9 million in 2010. Following are explanations of the
increase.

Management evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis as of November 30. On that date, the most recent trade in the Company�s
common stock was $3 per share. Based on this market value, we determined goodwill was not impaired. However, subsequent to December 31,
2011 we became aware of a trade in the Company�s stock at $1.50 per share. Based on this information, we determined that it was appropriate
under generally accepted accounting standards to re-evauate goodwill for impairment. Based on this reassessment, at the end of 2011, we
determined goodwill was more likely than not impaired. This determination was made based on the estimated fair value of the assets and
liabilities of the Company. In addition, our capital levels have continued to decrease in the past three years as we have sustained periods of net
losses. Also, our assets and liabilities are being priced more in line with market interest rates versus a higher interest rate that we have been able
to offer in the past. We anticipate fair values of our assets and liabilities to match more closely to tangible book values resulting in less fair value
of capital, as well. These factors in aggregate, are the reasons management determined goodwill was impaired and as a result, a one-time
non-recurring expense of $4.1 million was realized in 2011.

Other real estate owned and repossessed vehicle expenses increased $3.4 million, or 155.47%, to $5.6 million in 2011 from $2.2 million in 2010.
The increase is related to a decrease in real estate market values resulting in write-downs and an increase in foreclosures and repossessions in
2011. We re-assessed the values of the properties in other real estate owned in 2011 and wrote down these assets by $4.0 million to reflect fair
market value changes in the properties since the original date that the assets were acquired in 2010 or the prior year balance for properties that
continue to be held. In the year 2011, we had a net loss on the sale of other real estate owned property of $218 thousand compared to a net loss
of $202 thousand in 2010.

These two factors are the primary reasons that non-interest expenses increased in 2011.
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Salaries and employee benefits increased from $15.0 million in 2010 to $15.7 million in 2011. In the year 2010, there was a net reduction of
total salaries totaling $358 thousand related to the reversal of an accrual salary continuation for a former bank executive. The one time reversal
was realized in 2010 and not in 2011; therefore, the change in retirement contribution expenses increased year-to-year by $413 thousand. In
addition, total salaries
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increased $187 thousand in the year 2011. Although we have had a reduction in full-time equivalent employees in 2011, there was an increase in
higher compensated employees needed for asset quality improvement. In December 2011, we had a 10% reduction in force and we expect
approximately $1.0 million in cost savings in the year 2012 as a result of this reduction.

In 2011, FDIC assessment expense decreased $408 thousand, or 16.85%, from $2.4 million in 2010 to $2.0 million in 2011. This is the result of
a decrease in the assessment base that became effective in April 2011 and also a reduction of total deposits in 2011.

Other operating expenses decreased $360 thousand, or 6.31%, to $5.3 million in 2011 from $5.7 million in 2010. The decrease is primarily
related to decreased professional fees incurred from legal and consultant fees during 2011. These fees decreased as most of these expenses were
associated with initial compliance of the Written Agreement entered into during 2010. In addition, in 2010 a non-recurring $483 thousand
reserve for the remaining available funds on an under-collateralized construction line of credit was expensed due to the possibility of providing
additional funding to the customer to complete the construction project and minimize other losses. We anticipate the other noninterest expense to
remain flat or slightly decrease in 2012 as we engage fewer consultants and we realize cost savings from improving operational efficiencies.

The ratio of noninterest expense as a percentage of average assets slightly increased in 2011 to 4.74% as compared to 3.70% in 2010. We expect
greater efficiencies to result as we maximize the performance of our branches and as the economy improves. Our efficiency ratio, which is
defined as noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus noninterest income, was 104.61% in 2011 as compared to 79.28%
for 2010 primarily the result of increased nointerest expenses related to goodwill impairment and other real estate owned expenses.

Life Insurance

We have life insurance policies on the life of one key officer and three former key officers. The Bank is the beneficiary under each policy. The
total cash surrender value of the policies was $11.4 million and $11.0 million at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Total
income for the policies during 2011 was $340 thousand as compared to $462 thousand for the year ending 2010.

Income Taxes

Due to timing differences between book and tax treatment of several income and expense items, a deferred tax asset of $7.2 million existed at
December 31, 2011 as compared to a deferred tax asset of $8.0 million at December 31, 2010. The $800 thousand difference is primarily related
to a $2.7 million valuation allowance recognized in 2011. Direct charge-offs contributed to a reduction of the tax asset and are permitted as tax
deductions. In addition, writedowns on other real estate owned property are expensed for book purposes but are not deductible for tax purposes
until disposition of the property. Goodwill expense also was realized for book purposes but continues to only be tax deductible based on the
statutory requirements; thus, creating a deferred tax asset. The net impact of these deferrals are not expected to be realized in a three year period
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; consequently, a valuation allowance was recorded and expensed in the current
year. When, and if, taxable income increases in the future and during the net operating loss carryforward period, this valuation allowance may be
reversed and used to decrease tax obligations in the future. Our income tax expense was computed at the normal corporate income tax rate of
34% of taxable income included in net income. We do not have significant nontaxable income or nondeductible expenses.

Capital Resources

Our total capital at the end of 2011 was $28.9 million compared to $37.5 million in 2010. The decrease was $8.7 million, or 23.05%. The Bank
had fallen below well capitalized status, as defined by the capital guidelines of bank regulations, at the end of 2010, but returned to well
capitalized at the end of the first quarter of 2011 and thereafter. New Peoples capital as a percentage of total assets was 3.70% at December 31,
2011 compared to 4.40% at December 31, 2010. The decrease in New Peoples capital is due to the net loss incurred in 2011 primarily the result
of the goodwill impairment, other real estate owned writedowns, and the valuation allowance on deferred taxes.

New Peoples did not apply to participate in the federal Troubled Asset Relief Program, or TARP, funds as we thought participation might not be
in the best long-term interest of our stockholders.
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Total assets decreased in 2011 and we anticipate further decreasing assets to be the trend in 2012. Our primary source of capital comes from
retained earnings. We developed a new strategic plan and capital plan in 2011. Under current economic conditions, we believe it is prudent to
increase capital to absorb potential losses that may occur if asset quality deteriorates further. We are aware that capital needs and requirements
are affected by the level of problem assets, growth, earnings and other factors. Retained earnings are not alone sufficient to provide for this
economic cycle and we believe we will need access to additional sources of capital. As part of our initiative to improve regulatory capital ratios,
we are further reducing our higher risk assets, which results in a shrinking loan portfolio. Deposit growth is primarily focused on growing core
deposits, which are mainly transaction accounts, commercial relationships and savings products. We are focused on improving earnings by
maintaining a strong net interest margin and decreasing overhead expenses. These options we are fully implementing to increase capital.
However, these efforts alone may not provide us adequate capital if further loan losses are realized. We are exploring a common stock offering.

We currently have two outstanding borrowings totaling $5.45 million plus accrued interest to two directors. The maturity date of these notes has
been extended to June 30, 2012. The Company is obligated to convert the debt into the Company�s common stock if, before the stated maturity,
the Company conducts an offering of its common stock on the same terms, including price, on which it is offered. If the Company does not
conduct an offering prior to the stated maturity, the Company has the option, but not the obligation, to convert the debt into shares of its common
stock within 30 days of the stated maturity at a price per share to be established by the Company�s Board of Directors. Additional capital at the
Company level may be obtained upon New Peoples election to convert the notes to common stock.

No cash dividends have been paid historically and none are anticipated in the foreseeable future. Earnings will continue to be retained to build
capital.

Liquidity

We closely monitor our liquidity and have increased liquid assets in the form of cash, due from banks, federal funds sold, and unpledged
available for sale investments from $86.3 million at December 31, 2010 to $107.3 million at December 31, 2011. We plan to maintain surplus
short-term assets at levels adequate to meet potential liquidity needs during 2012.

At December 31, 2011, all of our investments are classified as available-for-sale, providing an additional source of liquidity in the amount of
$16.7 million, which is net of those securities pledged as collateral. This will primarily serve as a source of liquidity while yielding a higher
return than other short term investment options, such as federal funds sold and overnight deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank. We have
increased our investment portfolio from $4.7 million at December 31, 2010 to $32.4 million at December 31, 2011. This was partially the result
of the Federal Reserve Bank requiring in the third quarter of 2011 that we pledge $13.0 million in securities or loans for our overnight payment
processing. We elected to purchase securities to serve as the collateral for the pledging requirements. In addition, our strategy is to develop an
investment portfolio for the Bank. We foresee purchasing additional securities in the near future as opportunities arise.

Our loan to deposit ratio was 84.40% at December 31, 2011 and 92.39% at year end 2010. We anticipate this ratio to remain below 90% as we
continue to decrease our loan portfolio throughout 2012. We can further lower the ratio as management deems appropriate by managing the rate
of growth in our loan portfolio and by offering special promotions to entice new deposits. This can be done by changing interest rates charged or
limiting the amount of new loans approved.

Available third party sources of liquidity remain intact at December 31, 2011 which includes the following: our line of credit with the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, the brokered certificates of deposit markets, internet certificates of deposit, and the discount window at the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond.

At December 31, 2011, we had borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank totaling $18.0 million as compared to $24.2 million at
December 31, 2010. The $6.2 million decrease was due to a $5.0 million term note which matured in January 2011 and we paid off this note
with liquid funds and the remaining $1.2 million decrease was due to regularly scheduled principal payments. Of these borrowings at
December 31, 2011, none are overnight and subject to daily interest rate changes. Term notes of $10.2 million mature in the year 2012 and we
anticipate paying these off as liquidity is available to do so. Two additional borrowings totaling $7.8 million have a maturity date in the year
2018, but reduce in principal amounts monthly. We also used our line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank to issue a letter of credit for
$7.0 million in 2008 and $3.0 million in 2010 to the Treasury Board of Virginia for collateral on public funds. An additional $17.6 million was
available on December 31, 2011 on the $45.6 million line of credit which is secured by a blanket lien on our residential real estate loans.
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We have access to the brokered deposits market. Currently we have $2.7 million in 10 year term time deposits comprised of $3 thousand
incremental deposits which yield an interest rate of 4.10%. With the exception of CDARS time deposits, we have no other brokered deposits.
Though this has not been a strategy in the past, we may utilize this source in the future as a lower cost source of funds.

We are a member of an internet certificate of deposit network whereby we may obtain funds from other financial institutions at auction. We may
invest funds through this network as well. Currently, we only intend to use this source of liquidity in a liquidity crisis event.

The Bank has access to additional liquidity through the Federal Reserve Bank discount window for overnight funding needs. We may
collateralize this line with investment securities and loans at our discretion, however, we do not anticipate using this funding source except as a
last resort.

Additional liquidity is expected to be provided by loan repayments and core deposit growth that will result from an increase in market share in
our targeted trade area.

With the increased asset liquidity and other external sources of funding, we believe at the Bank level we have adequate liquidity and capital
resources to meet our requirements and needs for the foreseeable future. However, liquidity can be further affected by a number of factors such
as counterparty willingness or ability to extend credit, regulatory actions and customer preferences, some of which are beyond our control.

Concerning the Company�s liquidity, we borrowed $500 thousand from two directors at $250 thousand each. One borrowing occurred at the end
of 2010 and the other in January 2011. These funds were used to meet current liquidity needs of the Company. At December 31, 2010, the
Company had a $4.9 million line of credit from Silverton Bank (then in FDIC receivership) that was scheduled to come due in June 2011. On
March 16, 2011 we received additional borrowings from two directors totaling $4.95 million and were able to retire the Silverton line since
management had been unable to locate another source of repayment. We continue to work on enhancing the Company�s liquidity. At the end of
December 2011, we obtained regulatory approval to extend these director notes until June 30, 2012.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its
customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank�s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit
and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

A summary of the contract amount of the Bank�s exposure to off-balance-sheet risk as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:
Commitments to extend credit $ 29,004 $ 32,165
Standby letters of credit 3,049 4,787

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer�s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by
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the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management�s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. Those lines of
credit may not actually be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Bank is committed.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those
guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and similar
transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
The Bank holds certificates of deposit, deposit accounts, and real estate as collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is
deemed necessary.

Interest Sensitivity

At December 31, 2011, we had a negative cumulative gap rate sensitivity ratio of 38.82% for the one year re-pricing period, compared to
38.98% at December 31, 2010. A negative cumulative gap generally indicates that net interest income would improve in a declining interest rate
environment as liabilities re-price more quickly than assets. Conversely, net interest income would probably decrease in periods during which
interest rates are increasing. We are closely monitoring our position and implementing adjustments periodically to strategically position
ourselves to enhance earnings in current and anticipated interest rate environments. On a quarterly basis, management reviews our interest rate
risk and has decided that the current position is an acceptable risk.

Interest Sensitivity Analysis

December 31, 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

1- 90
Days

91-365
Days

1-3
Years

4-5
Years

6-15
Years

Over 15
Years Total

Uses of funds:
Loans $ 71,916 $ 62,106 $ 230,757 $ 113,471 $ 93,990 $ 25,576 $ 597,816
Federal funds sold 77 �  �  �  �  �  77
Deposits with banks 72,170 �  �  �  �  �  72,170
Investments 8,146 �  2,070 2,134 8,615 15,538 36,503
Bank owned life insurance 11,351 �  �  �  �  �  11,351

Total earning assets $ 163,660 $ 62,106 $ 232,827 $ 115,605 $ 102,605 $ 41,114 $ 717,917

Sources of funds:
Interest Bearing DDA $ 58,459 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 58,459
Savings & MMDA 94,569 �  �  �  �  �  94,569
Time Deposits 114,403 205,089 53,176 70,410 2,580 �  445,658
Trust preferred securities 16,496 �  �  �  �  �  16,496
Other borrowings 5,450 10,000 �  �  7,983 �  23,433

Total interest bearing liabilities $ 289,377 $ 215,089 $ 53,176 $ 70,410 $ 10,563 $ �  $ 638,615

Discrete Gap $ (125,717) $ (152,983) $ 179,651 $ 45,195 $ 92,042 $ 41,114 $ 79,302

Cumulative Gap $ (125,717) $ (278,700) $ (99,049) $ (53,854) $ 38,188 $ 79,302

Cumulative Gap as % of Total
Earning Assets (17.51)% (38.82)% (13.80)% (7.50)% 5.32% 11.05% 
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not applicable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.

Honaker, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of
December 31, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2011. The Company�s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New
Peoples Bankshares, Inc. as of December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company�s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 29, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion.

/S/ ELLIOTT DAVIS, LLC
      CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Galax, Virginia

February 29, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.

Honaker, Virginia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management�s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (b) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011,
based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheet of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders�
equity, and cash flows for the year then ended and our report expressed an unqualified opinion.

/S/ ELLIOTT DAVIS, LLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Galax, Virginia

February 29, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.

Honaker, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.�s management
is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New
Peoples Bankshares, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), New Peoples
Bankshares, Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 11, 2011
(except for the effects of the material weakness described in paragraphs six and seven of that report, as to which the date is June 23, 2011)
expressed an adverse opinion.

/S/  BROWN, EDWARDS AND COMPANY, L. L. P.
       CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Christiansburg, Virginia

March 11, 2011, except for

Notes 3, 7, 8, 11, 21, 23, 24 and 26,

as to which the date is June 23, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.

Honaker, Virginia

We have audited New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established
in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). New
Peoples Bankshares, Inc.�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our report dated March 11, 2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based upon the COSO criteria. The Company has subsequently determined that a deficiency in controls relating to their
process and procedures used to estimate the allowance for loan losses and valuation of other real estate owned existed as of the previous
assessment date, and has further concluded that such deficiency represented a material weakness as of December 31, 2010. As a result,
management revised its assessment, as presented in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, to
conclude that the Company�s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2010. Accordingly, our opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, as expressed herein, is different from that
expressed in our previous report.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company�s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management�s assessment. The Company�s management
identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting relating to their process and procedures used to estimate the allowance
for loan losses. This material weakness resulted in the restatement of the Company�s annual consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, New
Peoples Bankshares, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria
established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). We have not audited the changes in internal control discussed in Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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which have been made in an effort to remediate the identified material weakness.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity, and cash flows of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2010. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the Company�s 2010 consolidated financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated March 11, 2011
except for Notes 3, 7, 8, 11, 21, 23, 24 and 26, as to which the date is June 23, 2011, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements (as restated).

/S/  BROWN, EDWARDS AND COMPANY, L. L. P.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Christiansburg, Virginia

March 11, 2011 (except for the matters discussed

in paragraphs six and seven above, as to which the

date is June 23, 2011)
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE and SHARE DATA)

2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 18,306 $ 14,369
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 72,170 42,549
Federal funds sold 77 25,611

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 90,553 82,529
Investment Securities available-for-sale 32,434 4,658
Loans receivable 597,816 707,794
Allowance for loan losses (18,380) (25,014) 

Net Loans 579,436 682,780
Bank premises and equipment, net 33,141 34,141
Equity securities (restricted) 3,573 3,878
Other real estate owned 15,092 12,346
Accrued interest receivable 3,067 3,700
Life insurance investments 11,351 11,011
Goodwill and other intangibles 123 4,346
Deferred taxes, net 7,220 8,037
Other assets 4,394 5,201

Total Assets $ 780,384 $ 852,627

LIABILITIES
Deposits
Demand deposits
Noninterest bearing $ 109,629 $ 87,839
Interest-bearing 58,459 60,022
Savings deposits 94,569 108,119
Time deposits 445,658 510,100

Total Deposits 708,315 766,080
FHLB advances 17,983 24,183
Accrued interest payable 1,796 1,720
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,471 1,475
Line of credit borrowing �  4,900
Other borrowings 5,450 250
Trust preferred securities 16,496 16,496

Total Liabilities 751,511 815,104
STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Common stock - $2.00 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; and 10,010,178 shares issued and outstanding for
2011 and 2010, respectively 20,020 20,020
Additional paid-in-capital 21,689 21,689
Retained earnings (deficit) (13,085) (4,175) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 249 (11) 
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Total Stockholders� Equity 28,873 37,523

Total Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity $ 780,384 $ 852,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

2011 2010
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Loans including fees $ 41,176 $ 47,775
Federal funds sold 9 44
Interest-earning deposits with banks 184 12
Investments 301 111
Dividends on equity securities (restricted) 99 86

Total Interest and Dividend Income 41,769 48,028

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Demand 155 250
Savings 460 779
Time deposits below $100,000 4,768 7,000
Time deposits above $100,000 2,949 4,112
FHLB advances 644 1,057
Other borrowings 194 246
Trust Preferred Securities 436 454

Total Interest Expense 9,606 13,898

NET INTEREST INCOME 32,163 34,130
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES (Note 7) 7,959 22,328

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 24,204 11,802

NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges 2,488 2,701
Fees, commissions and other income 2,096 2,248
Insurance and investment fees 600 523
Life insurance investment income 340 462

Total Noninterest Income 5,524 5,934

NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 14) 15,735 15,007
Occupancy and equipment expense 4,533 4,552
Advertising and public relations 445 412
Data processing and telecommunications 1,654 1,616
FDIC Assessment 2,014 2,422
Other real estate owned and repossessed vehicles, net 5,577 2,183
Impairment of goodwill 4,122 �  
Other operating expenses 5,342 5,702
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Total Noninterest Expenses 39,422 31,894

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (9,694) (14,158) 
INCOME TAX BENEFIT (Note 11) (784) (5,093) 

NET LOSS $ (8,910) $ (9,065) 

Loss Per Share
Basic $ (0.89) $ (0.91) 

Fully Diluted $ (0.89) $ (0.91) 

Average Weighted Shares of Common Stock
Basic 10,010,178 10,009,468
Fully Diluted 10,010,178 10,009,468

The accompany notes are an intergral part of this statement.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(IN THOUSANDS INCLUDING SHARE DATA )

Shares
of

Common
Stock

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid in
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumu-lated
Other

Compre-hensive
Income
(Loss)

Total

Stockholders�
Equity

Compre-hensive
Income
(Loss)

Balance, December 31, 2009 10,009 $ 20,018 $ 21,683 $ 4,890 $ 28 $ 46,619 $ (3,705) 
Net Loss (9,065) (9,065) (9,065) 
Unrealized loss (net of deferred tax of
$20) on available-for-sale securities (39) (39) (39) 
Stock options exercised 1 2 6 8

Balance, December 31, 2010 10,010 20,020 21,689 (4,175) (11) 37,523 (9,104) 

Net Loss (8,910) (8,910) (8,910) 
Unrealized gain (Net of deferred tax of
$134) on available-for-sale securities 260 260 260

Balance, December 31, 2011 10,010 $ 20,020 $ 21,689 $ (13,085) $ 249 $ 28,873 $ (8,650) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(IN THOUSANDS)

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss $ (8,910) $ (9,065) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 2,562 2,678
Provision for Loan Losses 7,959 22,328
Impairment of Goodwill 4,122 �  
Income (less expenses) on Life Insurance (340) (462) 
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets 126 (117) 
Loss on sale of foreclosed real estate 218 202
Adjustment of carrying value of foreclosed real estate 4,023 1,427
Accretion of bond premiums/discounts 70 8
Deferred tax (benefit) expense 683 (2,616) 
Amortization of core deposit intangible 101 168
Net change in:
Interest receivable 633 591
Other assets 807 (3,790) 
Accrued interest payable 76 103
Accrued expense and other liabilities (4) (707) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 12,126 10,748
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease in loans 82,453 27,826
Purchase of securities available-for-sale (31,647) (4,656) 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of securities available-for-sale 4,195 2,536
Sale of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 305 118
Payments for the purchase of property and equipment (1,921) (2,825) 
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 233 1,082
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 5,945 3,716

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 59,563 27,797

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common stock options exercised �  8
Net decrease in line of credit borrowings (4,900) �  
Net increase in other borrowings 5,200 250
Net change in:
Demand deposits 20,227 16,774
Savings deposits (13,550) 17,652
Time deposits (64,442) (29,060) 
Net decrease in FHLB borrowings (6,200) (1,200) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (63,665) 4,424

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,024 42,969
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 82,529 39,560
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 90,553 $ 82,529

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Paid During the Year for:
Interest $ 9,682 $ 14,001
Taxes $ �  $ 1,259
Supplemental Disclosure of Non Cash Transactions:
Other real estate acquired in settlement of foreclosed loans $ 12,932 $ 12,047
Loans made to finance sale of foreclosed real estate $ 1,000 $ 260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Nature of Operations � New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. (�The Company�) is a bank holding company whose principal activity is the ownership and
management of a community bank. New Peoples Bank, Inc. (�The Bank�) was organized and incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth
of Virginia on December 9, 1997. The Bank commenced operations on October 28, 1998, after receiving regulatory approval. As a state
chartered member bank, the Bank is subject to regulation by the Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and the Federal Reserve Bank. The Bank provides general banking services to individuals, small and medium size businesses and
the professional community of southwestern Virginia, southern West Virginia, and eastern Tennessee. On June 9, 2003, the Company formed
two wholly owned subsidiaries, NPB Financial Services, Inc. and NPB Web Services, Inc. On July 7, 2004 the Company established NPB
Capital Trust I for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities. On September 27, 2006, the Company established NPB Capital Trust 2 for
the purpose of issuing additional trust preferred securities. NPB Financial Services, Inc. was a subsidiary of the Company until January 1, 2009
when it became a subsidiary of the Bank.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Consolidation Policy � The consolidated financial statements include the Company, the Bank, NPB Financial Services, Inc., and NPB Web
Services, Inc. (Hereinafter, collectively referred to as �The Company.�) All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated. In accordance with ASC 942, NPB Capital Trust I and 2 are not included in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates � The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant
changes in the economic environment and market conditions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents � Cash and cash equivalents as used in the cash flow statements include cash and due from banks, interest-bearing
deposits with banks, and federal funds sold.

Investment Securities � Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. If management has the intent
and the Company has the ability at the time of purchase to hold securities until maturity, they are classified as held to maturity and carried at
amortized historical cost. Securities not intended to be held to maturity are classified as available for sale and carried at fair value. Securities
available for sale are intended to be used as part of the Company�s asset and liability management strategy and may be sold in response to
changes in interest rates, prepayment risk or other similar factors.

The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income using the effective interest method over the period to
maturity. Realized gains and losses on dispositions are based on the net proceeds and the adjusted book value of the securities sold, using the
specific identification method. Realized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale are included in noninterest income and, when applicable,
are reported as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, in other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and losses on investment securities
available for sale are based on the difference between book value and fair value of each security. These gains and losses are credited or charged
to other comprehensive income, net of tax, whereas realized gains and losses flow through the statement of operations.

Loans � Loans are carried on the balance sheet at unpaid principal balance, net of any unearned interest and the allowance for loan losses. Interest
income on loans is computed using the effective interest method, except where serious doubt exists as to the collectibility of the loan, in which
case accrual of the income is discontinued.

It is the Company�s policy to stop accruing interest on a loan, and classify that loan as non-accrual under the following circumstances:
(a) whenever we are advised by the borrower that scheduled payment or interest payments cannot be met, (b) when our best judgment indicates
that payment in full of principal and interest can no longer be expected, or (c) when any such loan or obligation becomes delinquent for 90 days
unless it is both well secured and in the process of collection. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are place on nonaccrual or
charged
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Loans (Continued) � off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash basis or cost-recovery
method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due
are brought current and prospects for future contractual payments are reasonably assured.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower�s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for
commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan�s effective interest rate, the
loan�s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk � The Company identifies a concentration as any obligation, direct or indirect, of the same or
affiliated interests which represent 25% or more of the Company�s capital structure, or $8.3 million as of December 31, 2011. Most of the
Company�s activities are with customers located within the southwest Virginia, southern West Virginia, and northeastern Tennessee region.
Certain concentrations may pose credit risk. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

Allowance for Loan Losses � The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that, in management�s judgment, is adequate to absorb credit
losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The loan portfolio is analyzed periodically and loans are assigned a risk rating. Allowances for impaired
loans are generally determined based on collateral values or the present value of expected cash flows. A general allowance is made for all other
loans not considered impaired as deemed appropriate by management. In determining the adequacy of the allowance, management considers the
following factors: the nature of the portfolio, credit concentrations, trends in historical loss experience, specific impaired loans, the estimated
value of any underlying collateral, prevailing environmental factors and economic conditions, and other inherent risks. While management uses
available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in
collateral values and changes in estimates of cash flows on impaired loans. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance is increased by a provision for loan losses, which is charged to expense and reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectability of all or part of the principal is unlikely. Past due
status is determined based on contractual terms.

Bank Premises and Equipment � Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Type Estimated useful life
Buildings 39 years
Paving and landscaping 15 years
Computer equipment and software 3 to 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and other equipment 5 to 7 years

Advertising Cost � Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred.
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Stock Options�The Company records compensation related to stock options pursuant to ASC 718 which requires the estimated fair market value
of the expense to be reflected over the period the award is earned which is presumed to be the vesting period.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Income Taxes � Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net
deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various
balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. If all or a portion of the net deferred tax asset is
determined to be unlikely to be realized, a valuation allowance is established to reduce the net deferred tax asset to the amount that is more likely
than not to be realized.

In the event the Company has unrecognized tax expense in future accounting periods, the Company will recognize interest in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses. There were no interest or penalties related to an unrecognized tax position for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, other than interest and penalties, the reversal of the Company�s treatment by
taxing authorities would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would defer or accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority. The
Company�s tax filings for years ended 2008 through 2011 are currently open to audit under statutes of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service
(�IRS�) and the Virginia Department of Taxation.

Financial Instruments � Off-balance-sheet instruments - In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to
extend credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded.

Comprehensive Income � Generally accepted accounting principles require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in
net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as
a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share � Basic earnings per share computations are based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each year.
Dilutive earnings per share reflects the additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had
been issued. Potential common shares that may be issued relate to outstanding options and are determined by the Treasury Method.

For the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, potential common shares were anti-dilutive and were not included in the calculation. Basic
and diluted net loss per common share calculations follows:

(Amounts in Thousands, Except

Share and Per Share Data)

For the years ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Net loss available to common shareholders $ (8,910) $ (9,065)
Weighted average shares outstanding 10,010,178 10,009,468

Weighted average dilutive shares outstanding 10,010,178 10,009,468

Basic loss per share $ (0.89) $ (0.91)
Diluted loss per share $ (0.89) $ (0.91)

Other Real Estate Owned � Other real estate owned represents properties acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of foreclosure. At
the time of acquisition, these properties are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell. Expenses incurred in
connection with operating these properties and subsequent write-downs, if any, are charged to expense. Subsequent to foreclosure, management
periodically considers the adequacy of the reserve for losses on the property. Gains and losses on the sales of these properties are credited or
charged to income in the year of the sale.
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Business Combinations - For purchase acquisitions accounted for as a business combination, the Company is required to record the assets
acquired, including identified intangible assets and liabilities assumed at their fair value, which in many instances involves estimates based on
third party valuations, such as appraisals, or internal valuations based on discounted cash flow analyses or other valuation techniques. The
determination of the useful lives of intangible assets is subjective, as is the appropriate amortization method for such intangible assets. In
addition, purchase acquisitions may result in goodwill, which is subject to ongoing periodic impairment testing based
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Business Combinations (Continued) � on the fair value of net assets acquired compared to the carrying value of goodwill. Changes in
acquisition multiples, the overall interest rate environment, or the continuing operations of the assets acquired could have a significant impact on
the periodic impairment testing. For additional discussion concerning our valuation of intangible assets, see Note 13, �Intangible Assets.�

Reclassification � Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years� financial statements to place them on a comparable basis with the
current year. Net income and stockholders� equity previously reported were not affected by these reclassifications.

Subsequent Events � The Company has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or disclosure through the date these
consolidated financial statements were issued.

NOTE 3 FORMAL WRITTEN AGREEMENT:
Effective July 29, 2010, the Company and the Bank entered into a written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond (�Reserve
Bank�) and the Virginia State Corporation Commission Bureau of Financial Institutions (the �Bureau�) called (the �Written Agreement�). At
December 31, 2011, we believe we have made good progress in our compliance efforts under the Written Agreement and all of the written plans
required to date, as discussed in the following paragraphs, have been submitted on a timely basis.

Under the terms of the Written Agreement, the Bank has agreed to develop and submit for approval within specified time periods written plans
to: (a) strengthen board oversight of management and the Bank�s operation; (b) if appropriate after review, to strengthen the Bank�s management
and board governance; (c) strengthen credit risk management policies; (d) enhance lending and credit administration; (e) enhance the Bank�s
management of commercial real estate concentrations; (f) conduct ongoing review and grading of the Bank�s loan portfolio; (g) improve the
Bank�s position with respect to loans, relationships, or other assets in excess of $1 million which are now or in the future become past due more
than 90 days, which are on the Bank�s problem loan list, or which are adversely classified in any report of examination of the Bank; (h) review
and revise, as appropriate, current policy and maintain sound processes for maintaining an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses;
(i) enhance management of the Bank�s liquidity position and funds management practices; (j) revise its contingency funding plan; (k) revise its
strategic plan; and (l) enhance the Bank�s anti-money laundering and related activities.

In addition, the Bank has agreed that it will: (a) not extend, renew, or restructure any credit that has been criticized by the Reserve Bank or the
Bureau absent prior board of directors approval in accordance with the restrictions in the Written Agreement; (b) eliminate all assets or portions
of assets classified as �loss� and thereafter charge off all assets classified as �loss� in a federal or state report of examination, unless otherwise
approved by the Reserve Bank.

Under the terms of the Written Agreement, both the Company and the Bank have agreed to submit capital plans to maintain sufficient capital at
the Company, on a consolidated basis, and the Bank, on a stand-alone basis, and to refrain from declaring or paying dividends without prior
regulatory approval. The Company has agreed that it will not take any other form of payment representing a reduction in the Bank�s capital or
make any distributions of interest, principal, or other sums on subordinated debentures or trust preferred securities without prior regulatory
approval. The Company may not incur, increase or guarantee any debt without prior regulatory approval and has agreed not to purchase or
redeem any shares of its stock without prior regulatory approval.

Under the terms of the Written Agreement, the Company and the Bank have appointed a committee to monitor compliance with the Written
Agreement. The directors of the Company and the Bank have recognized and unanimously agree with the common goal of financial soundness
represented by the Written Agreement and have confirmed the intent of the directors and executive management to diligently seek to comply
with all requirements of the Written Agreement.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 4 DEPOSITS IN AND FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD TO BANKS:
The Bank had federal funds sold and cash on deposit with other commercial banks amounting to $72.3 million and $68.2 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Deposit amounts at other commercial banks may, at times, exceed federally insured limits.

NOTE 5 INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities (all available-for-sale) are as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands)
Amortized

Cost

Gross

Unrealized
Gains

Gross

Unrealized
Losses

Approximate

Fair
Value

December 31, 2011
U.S. Government Agencies $ 21,405 $ 238 $ 10 $ 21,633
Taxable municipals 1,465 89 2 1,552
Tax-exempt municipals 1,043 11 �  1,054
Mortgage backed securities 8,144 67 16 8,195

Total Securities AFS $ 32,057 $ 405 $ 28 $ 32,434

December 31, 2010
U.S. Government Agencies $ 3,001 $ �  $ 31 $ 2,970
Taxable municipals 894 5 �  899
Mortgage backed securities 781 8 �  789

Total Securities AFS $ 4,676 $ 13 $ 31 $ 4,658

The following table details unrealized losses and related fair values in the available-for-sale portfolio. This information is aggregated by the
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Less than 12 Months
12 Months or

More Total

(Dollars are in thousands)
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

December 31, 2011
U.S. Government Agencies $ 5,592 $ 10 $ �  $ �  $ 5,592 $ 10
Taxable municipals 572 2 �  �  572 2
Mtg. backed securities 4,055 16 �  �  4,055 16

Total Securities AFS $ 10,219 $ 28 $ �  $ �  $ 10,219 $ 28

December 31, 2010
U.S. Government Agencies $ 2,970 $ 31 $ �  $ �  $ 2,970 $ 31
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At December 31, 2011, the available-for-sale portfolio included eleven investments for which the fair market value was less than amortized cost.
At December 31, 2010, the available-for-sale portfolio included four investments for which the fair market value was less than amortized cost.
Management evaluates securities for other than temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or
market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less
than cost, (2) the financial conditions and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment
in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. No securities had an other than temporary
impairment.

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2011, by contractual maturity, are shown in the following schedule.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.
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(Dollars are in thousands)

Securities Available for Sale
Amortized

Cost
Fair
Value

Weighted

Average
Yield

Due in one year or less $ �  $ �  �  % 
Due after one year through five years 171 176 2.59% 
Due after five years through fifteen years 8,377 8,615 3.11% 
Due after fifteen years 23,509 23,643 2.59% 

Total $ 32,057 $ 32,434 2.72% 
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 5 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED):

Investment securities with a carrying value of $15.7 million and $892 thousand at December 31, 2011 and 2010, were pledged to secure public
deposits, overnight payment processing and for other purposes required by law.

The Bank, as a member of the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank, is required to hold stock in each. These equity securities
are restricted from trading and are recorded at a cost of $3.6 million and $3.9 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 6 LOANS:
Loans receivable outstanding at December 31, are summarized as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 170,789 $ 198,259
Construction and land development 32,389 52,307
Residential 1-4 family 255,998 274,396
Multifamily 14,320 16,659
Farmland 40,106 49,323

Total real estate loans 513,602 590,944
Commercial 39,327 50,358
Agriculture 6,147 9,488
Consumer installment loans 38,522 56,755
All other loans 218 249

Total loans $ 597,816 $ 707,794

Loans receivable on nonaccrual status at December 31, are summarized as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 19,169 $ 19,655
Construction and land development 5,583 15,460
Residential 1-4 family 4,829 3,165
Multifamily 2,101 166
Farmland 5,257 1,909

Total real estate loans 36,939 40,355
Commercial 4,522 4,061
Agriculture 854 1,352
Consumer installment loans 1 13
All other loans �  �  
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Total loans receivable on nonaccrual status $ 42,316 $ 45,781

Total interest income not recognized on nonaccrual loans for 2011 and 2010 was $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively. Total interest
income recognized on nonaccrual loans for 2011 and 2010 was $1.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

47

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 77



Table of Contents

NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 LOANS: (CONTINUED):

The following table presents information concerning the Company�s investment in loans considered impaired as of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010:

As of December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands)

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized
Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

With no related allowance recorded:
Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 32,370 $ 1,356 $ 31,633 $ 33,175 $ �  
Construction and land development 14,288 125 6,954 12,838 �  
Residential 1-4 family 6,406 315 8,221 8,296 �  
Multifamily 619 31 613 613 �  
Farmland 13,005 435 10,364 10,554 �  
Commercial 2,958 60 3,529 4,070 �  
Agriculture 396 1 521 817 �  
Consumer installment loans 4 1 9 9 �  
All other loans �  �  �  �  �  
With an allowance recorded:
Real estate secured:
Commercial 9,887 691 14,482 14,973 2,794
Construction and land development 2,917 87 2,289 2,310 474
Residential 1-4 family 5,111 277 6,473 6,764 1,052
Multifamily �  �  �  �  �  
Farmland 2,354 119 4,192 4,192 605
Commercial 1,982 75 1,857 1,857 649
Agriculture 758 28 641 641 448
Consumer installment loans 41 3 43 43 24
All other loans �  �  �  �  �  

Total $ 93,096 $ 3,604 $ 91,821 $ 101,152 $ 6,046

As of December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)
Recorded
Investment

Unpaid

Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

With no related allowance recorded:
Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 23,791 24,645 �  
Construction and land development 8,585 12,594 �  
Residential 1-4 family 3,347 3,352 �  
Multifamily �  �  �  
Farmland 7,615 7,615 �  
Commercial 1,646 2,167 �  
Agriculture 3 3 �  
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Consumer installment loans �  �  �  
All other loans �  �  �  
With an allowance recorded:
Real estate secured:
Commercial 13,837 14,006 3,847
Construction and land development 14,913 16,253 3,926
Residential 1-4 family 4,626 4,626 953
Multifamily 510 510 42
Farmland 6,993 6,993 627
Commercial 3,254 3,254 2,295
Agriculture 1,482 1,482 1,120
Consumer installment loans 46 46 23
All other loans �  �  �  

Total $ 90,648 $ 97,546 $ 12,833

The average recorded investment in impaired loans was $63.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Interest income recognized on
impaired loans for December 31, 2010 was $4.0 million.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 LOANS (CONTINUED):

An age analysis of past due loans receivable was as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands)

Loans
30-59

Days

Past
Due

Loans
60-89

Days

Past
Due

Loans

90 or
More

Days

Past
Due

Total

Past
Due
Loans

Current
Loans

Total
Loans

Accruing

Loans

90 or

More

Days

Past
Due

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 9,754 $ 2,294 $ 7,771 $ 19,819 $ 150,970 $ 170,789 $ �  
Construction and land development 595 238 5,280 6,113 26,276 32,389 �  
Residential 1-4 family 9,471 1,412 4,101 14,984 241,014 255,998 1,129
Multifamily �  1,777 218 1,995 12,325 14,320 �  
Farmland 2,841 624 3,800 7,265 32,841 40,106 �  

Total real estate loans 22,661 6,345 21,170 50,176 463,426 513,602 1,129
Commercial 551 34 2,938 3,523 35,804 39,327 117
Agriculture 268 88 458 814 5,333 6,147 3
Consumer installment Loans 822 133 221 1,176 37,346 38,522 222
All other loans 26 9 33 68 150 218 33

Total loans $ 24,328 $ 6,609 $ 24,820 $ 55,757 $ 542,059 $ 597,816 $ 1,504

As of December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)

Loans
30-59

Days

Past
Due

Loans
60-89

Days

Past
Due

Loans
90 or
More

Days
Past Due

Total

Past
Due
Loans

Current
Loans

Total
Loans

Accruing

Loans
90 or
More
Days

Past
Due

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 6,331 $ 1,878 $ 9,673 $ 17,882 $ 180,377 $ 198,259 $ 6
Construction and land development 556 1,523 8,150 10,229 42,078 52,307 �  
Residential 1-4 family 9,445 4,374 2,554 16,373 258,023 274,396 1,326
Multifamily 61 162 �  223 16,436 16,659 �  
Farmland 2,512 244 810 3,566 45,757 49,323 �  

Total real estate loans 18,905 8,181 21,187 48,273 542,671 590,994 1,332
Commercial 1,851 1,015 1,880 4,746 45,612 50,358 90
Agriculture 244 327 127 698 8,790 9,488 73
Consumer installment Loans 1,394 572 207 2,173 54,582 56,755 195
All other loans 32 15 3 50 199 249 3
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Total loans $ 22,426 $ 10,110 $ 23,404 $ 55,940 $ 651,854 $ 707,794 $ 1,693
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 LOANS (CONTINUED):

The Company categorizes loans receivable into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt
such as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends,
among other factors. The Company analyzes loans and leases individually by classifying the loans receivable as to credit risk. The Company
uses the following definitions for risk ratings:

Pass - Loans in this category are considered to have a low likelihood of loss based on relevant information analyzed about the ability of the
borrowers to service their debt and other factors.

Special Mention - Loans in this category are currently protected but are potentially weak, including adverse trends in borrower�s operations,
credit quality or financial strength. Those loans constitute an undue and unwarranted credit risk but not to the point of justifying a substandard
classification. The credit risk may be relatively minor yet constitute an unwarranted risk in light of the circumstances. Special mention loans
have potential weaknesses which may, if not checked or corrected, weaken the loan or inadequately protect the Company�s credit position at
some future date.

Substandard - A substandard loan is inadequately protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified as substandard must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of
the debt; they are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful - Loans classified Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified Substandard, plus the added characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values highly questionable and
improbable.

Based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk category of loans receivable was as follows:

As of December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands) Pass
Special
Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 112,694 $ 18,377 $ 39,573 $ 145 $ 170,789
Construction and land development 23,203 1,224 7,962 �  32,389
Residential 1-4 family 209,863 17,137 27,730 1,268 255,998
Multifamily 11,727 1,909 684 �  14,320
Farmland 21,715 4,957 13,022 412 40,106

Total real estate loans 379,202 43,604 88,971 1,825 513,602
Commercial 32,018 2,045 4,227 1,037 39,327
Agriculture 4,743 678 726 �  6,147
Consumer installment loans 36,107 900 1,484 31 38,522
All other loans 218 �  �  �  218

Total $ 452,288 $ 47,227 $ 95,408 $ 2,893 $ 597,816

As of December 31, 2010 Pass Substandard Doubtful Total
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(Dollars are in thousands) Special
Mention

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 147,549 $ 14,550 $ 33,808 $ 2,352 $ 198,259
Construction and land development 28,802 4,095 19,410 �  52,307
Residential 1-4 family 254,884 5,204 13,014 1,294 274,396
Multifamily 15,733 359 567 �  16,659
Farmland 30,748 4,308 14,062 205 49,323

Total real estate loans 477,716 28,516 80,861 3,851 590,944
Commercial 44,261 1,092 4,325 680 50,358
Agriculture 8,091 161 232 1,004 9,488
Consumer installment loans 56,170 122 434 29 56,755
All other loans 249 �  �  �  249

Total $ 586,487 $ 29,891 $ 85,852 $ 5,564 $ 707,794
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 7 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES:
A summary of transactions in the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

(Dollar are in thousands) 2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 25,014 $ 18,588
Provision for loan losses 7,959 22,328
Advances made on loans with off balance sheet provision 153 �  
Recoveries of loans charged off 2,661 606
Loans charged off (17,407) (16,508) 

Balance, End of period $ 18,380 $ 25,014

Percentage of Loans 3.07% 3.53% 
The following table details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the period ended December 31, 2011. Allocation of
a portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other categories.

As of December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands)
Beginning
Balance

Charge
Offs Recoveries Advances Provisions

Ending
Balance

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 5,141 $ (4,147) $ 877 $ �  $ 3,800 $ 5,671
Construction and land development 4,913 (7,245) 1,296 153 4,731 3,848
Residential 1-4 family 1,699 (1,299) 141 �  3,218 3,759
Multifamily 42 �  �  �  106 148
Farmland 922 (511) 66 �  474 951

Total real estate loans 12,717 (13,202) 2,380 153 12,329 14,377
Commercial 3,281 (2,480) 140 �  942 1,883
Agriculture 1,120 (1,031) 18 �  379 486
Consumer installment loans 1,733 (694) 123 �  (381) 781
All other loans �  �  �  �  2 2
Unallocated 6,163 �  �  �  (5,312) 851

Total $ 25,014 $ (17,407) $ 2,661 $ 153 $ 7,959 $ 18,380

Allowance for Loan Losses Recorded Investment in Loans

As of December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands)

Individually

Evaluated

for
Impairment

Collectively

Evaluated

for
Impairment Total

Individually

Evaluated

for
Impairment

Collectively

Evaluated

for
Impairment Total

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 2,794 $ 2,877 $ 5,671 $ 46,115 $ 124,674 $ 170,789
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Construction and land development 474 3,374 3,848 9,243 23,146 32,389
Residential 1-4 family 1,052 2,707 3,759 14,694 241,304 255,998
Multifamily �  148 148 613 13,707 14,320
Farmland 605 346 951 14,556 25,550 40,106

Total real estate loans 4,925 9,452 14,377 85,221 428,381 513,602
Commercial 649 1,234 1,883 5,386 33,941 39,327
Agriculture 448 38 486 1,162 4,985 6,147
Consumer installment loans 24 757 781 52 38,470 38,522
All other loans �  2 2 �  218 218
Unallocated �  851 851 �  �  �  

Total $ 6,046 $ 12,334 $ 18,380 $ 91,821 $ 505,995 $ 597,816
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 7 ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED):

The following table details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the period ended December 31, 2010. Allocation of
a portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other categories.

As of December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)
Beginning
Balance

Charge
Offs Recoveries Advances Provisions

Ending
Balance

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 2,153 $ (2,083) $ 5 $ �  $ 5,066 $ 5,141
Construction and land development 8,036 (10,002) �  �  6,879 4,913
Residential 1-4 family 1,372 (1,719) 1 �  2,045 1,699
Multifamily �  (65) �  �  107 42
Farmland 344 (55) �  �  633 922

Total real estate loans 11,905 (13,924) 6 �  14,730 12,717
Commercial 1,366 (1,370) 509 �  2,776 3,281
Agriculture �  (486) 21 �  1,585 1,120
Consumer installment loans 1,501 (728) 70 �  890 1,733
All other loans �  �  �  �  �  �  
Unallocated 3,816 �  �  �  2,347 6,163

Total $ 18,588 $ (16,508) $ 606 $ �  $ 22,328 $ 25,014

Allowance for Loan Losses Recorded Investment in Loans

As of December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)

Individually
Evaluated

for
Impairment

Collectively
Evaluated

for
Impairment Total

Individually
Evaluated

for
Impairment

Collectively
Evaluated

for
Impairment Total

Real estate secured:
Commercial $ 3,847 $ 1,294 $ 5,141 $ 37,628 $ 160,631 $ 198,259
Construction and land development 3,926 987 4,913 23,498 28,809 52,307
Residential 1-4 family 953 746 1,699 7,973 266,423 274,396
Multifamily 42 �  42 510 16,149 16,659
Farmland 627 295 922 14,608 34,715 49,323

Total real estate loans 9,395 3,322 12,717 84,217 506,727 590,944
Commercial 2,295 986 3,281 4,900 45,458 50,358
Agriculture 1,120 �  1,120 1,485 8,003 9,488
Consumer installment loans 23 1,710 1,733 46 56,709 56,755
All other loans �  �  �  �  249 249
Unallocated �  6,163 6,163 �  �  �  

Total $ 12,833 $ 12,181 $ 25,014 $ 90,648 $ 617,146 $ 707,794
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In determining the amount of our allowance, we rely on an analysis of our loan portfolio, our experience and our evaluation of general economic
conditions, as well as the requirements of the written agreement and other regulatory input. If our assumptions prove to be incorrect, our current
allowance may not be sufficient to cover future loan losses and we may experience significant increases to our provision.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 8 TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURINGS:
As a result of adopting the amendments in ASU 2011-02, the Company reassessed all restructurings that occurred on or after the beginning of
the fiscal year of adoption (January 1, 2011) to determine whether they are considered troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) under the amended
guidance. The determination is based on whether the restructuring constitutes a concession and whether the debtor is experiencing financial
difficulties as both events must be present. The following table presents information related to loans modified as troubled debt restructurings
during the year ended December 31, 2011.

For the year ended
December 31, 2011

Troubled Debt Restructurings

(Dollars are in thousands)
# of
Loans

Pre-Mod.
Recorded
Investment

Post-Mod.
Recorded
Investment

Real estate secured:
Commercial 14 $ 14,651 $ 14,321
Construction and land development 2 179 176
Residential 1-4 family 14 2,914 2,893
Multifamily 2 454 452
Farmland �  �  �  

Total real estate loans 32 18,198 17,842
Commercial 6 1,111 1,081
Agriculture 2 390 390
Consumer installment loans 9 168 155
All other loans �  �  �  

Total 49 $ 19,867 $ 19,468

During the year ended 2011, the Company modified 49 loans that were considered to be troubled debt restructurings. We extended the terms for
26 of these loans and the interest rate was lowered for 24 of these loans.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

That Subsequently Defaulted
For the year ended
December 31, 2011

During the Period

(Dollars are in thousands)

#

of
Loans

Recorded
Investment

Real estate secured:
Commercial 3 $ 1,691
Construction and land development �  �  
Residential 1-4 family 1 113
Multifamily �  �  
Farmland �  �  

Total real estate loans 4 1,804
Commercial �  �  
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Agriculture �  �  
Consumer installment loans �  �  
All other loans �  �  

Total 4 $ 1,804

In determination of the allowance for loan losses, management considers troubled debt restructurings and subsequent defaults in these
restructurings in its estimate. If the loan is over $100 thousand, the Company evaluates the loan for possible further impairment. As a result the
allowance may be increased, adjustments may be made in the allocation of the allowance, or charge-offs may be taken to futher writedown the
carrying value of the loan.

At December 31, 2011 there were $29.1 million in loans that are classified as troubled debt restructurings compared to $13.9 million at
December 31, 2010.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 9 BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:
Bank premises and equipment at December 31, are summarized as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Land $ 10,421 $ 10,569
Buildings and improvements 24,043 21,619
Furniture and equipment 13,874 13,153
Vehicles 504 707
Construction in progress 232 2,176

49,074 48,224
Less accumulated depreciation (15,933) (14,083) 

Bank Premises and Equipment $ 33,141 $ 34,141

Depreciation expense for 2011 and 2010 was $2.6 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2010, construction in progress included the costs of buildings for a new branch in Princeton, West Virginia. The Princeton
location is anticipated to operate as a full service branch location at a future date and was placed in service in 2011 as an administrative office.
Also included in construction in progress at December 31, 2010 are the costs of the building and equipment purchased for a new branch in
Grundy, Virginia, which replaced the existing Grundy, Virginia location due to the condemnation of the property by the Virginia Department of
Transportation. The new branch in Grundy, Virginia was completed and put into service on January 31, 2011.

NOTE 10 OTHER TIME DEPOSITS:
The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000 was $167.2 million and $175.3 million at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. We have brokered deposits totaling $2.7 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At December 31,
2011, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows (dollars are in thousands):

2012 $ 319,335
2013 39,133
2014 14,044
2015 41,223
2016 29,211
After five years 2,712

Total $ 445,658
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT):
The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Current expense (benefit) $ (1,467) $ (2,389) 
Deferred benefits 683 (2,704) 

Net income benefits $ (784) $ (5,093) 

The deferred tax expense (benefit) resulting from temporary differences for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

(Dollar are in thousands) 2011 2010
Organization and start-up cost $ �  $ �  
Provision for loan losses 2,255 (2,287) 
Provision for loan commitments 164 (164) 
Depreciation 294 144
Deferred compensation expense 17 126
Accrued employee benefits (10) 155
Nonaccrual loan interest 492 (415) 
Other real estate owned (1,038) (485) 
Net operating loss carryforward (2,621) �  
Goodwill (1,308) �  
Valuation allowance 2,723 �  
Other tax adjustment (285) 222

Deferred Income Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 683 $ (2,704) 

The net deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from temporary differences as of December 31 are summarized as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Deferred Tax Assets
Allowance for loan losses $ 6,249 $ 8,504
Provision for loan commitments �  164
Deferred compensation 120 137
Accrued employee benefits 86 76
Nonaccrual loan interest 95 587
Other real estate owned 1,523 485
Amortization of core deposits 151 135
Amortization of goodwill 981 �  
Capitalized interest and repair expense 48 13
Net operating loss carryforward 2,621 �  
AMT carryforward 252 �  
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale �  6
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Total Assets, gross 12,126 10,107
Valuation allowance (2,723) �  

Total Assets, net 9,403 10,107

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Accelerated depreciation 1,798 1,504
Amortization of goodwill �  327
Prepaid expenses 202 185
Deferred loan costs 55 54
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 128 �  

Total Liabilities, gross 2,183 2,070

Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 7,220 $ 8,037
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) (CONTINUED):

The following table summarizes the differences between the actual income tax expense and the amounts computed using the federal statutory tax
rate of 34%:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Income tax expense at the applicable federal rate $ (3,296) $ (4,814) 
Permanent differences resulting from:
Nondeductible expenses 8 8
Tax exempt interest income (64) (59) 
State income taxes less federal tax effect 84 48
Bank owned life insurance (116) (157) 
Deferred tax valuation allowance change, net 2,723 �  
Other adjustments (123) (119) 

Income Tax Expense (benefit) $ (784) $ (5,093) 

Management reviewed the December 31, 2011 deferred tax calculation to determine the need for a valuation allowance. A valuation allowance is
provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In management�s opinion, based on a
three year taxable income projection, tax strategies which would result in potential securities gains and the effects of off-setting deferred tax
liabilities, it is more likely than not that all the deferred tax assets, net of the $2.7 million allowance, would be realizable. Included in deferred
tax assets are the tax benefits derived from net operating loss carryforwards totaling $2.6 million. Management expects to utilize all of these
carryforwards prior to expiration.

NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
During the year, officers and directors (and companies controlled by them) were customers of and had loan transactions with the Bank in the
normal course of business which amounted to $4.0 million at December 31, 2011 and $5.6 million at December 31, 2010. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, total principal additions were $3.4 million and principal payments were $4.9 million, including renewals and advances on
revolving lines of credit. During the year ended December 31, 2010, total principal additions were $5.2 million and principal payments were
$5.3 million, including renewals and advances on revolving lines of credit. These transactions were made on substantially the same terms as
those prevailing for other customers and did not involve any abnormal risk. Total related party deposits held at the Bank were $10.9 million and
$15.0 million at the end of years 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In December, 2010 the parent company borrowed $250,000 from Director Scott White which matures in one year unless extended by the mutual
agreement of the Company and note holder. The note may be converted, in whole, at any time during its term at the election of the parent
company into shares of the common stock of the Company at market value. The note bore interest at the variable rate of interest equal to the
Wall Street Journal prime rate, which was 3.25% at December 31, 2010. In January, 2011, the parent company received an additional $250,000
loan from Director Lynn Keene on identical terms. The purpose of these borrowings was to provide cash for operating expenses of the parent
company. On March 16, 2011, two of the Company�s directors, Harold Lynn Keene and B. Scott White, loaned the Company a total of $4.95
million which, after receiving regulatory approval, the Company used to retire the indebtedness to the FDIC as receiver for Silverton Bank. The
loans were unsecured and had a stated maturity of December 31, 2011 with interest payable at maturity or conversion at the variable rate equal
to the Wall Street Journal prime rate which was 3.25% on December 31, 2011. The Company was obligated to convert the debt into the
Company�s common stock if, before the stated maturity, the Company conducts an offering of its common stock at the price per share at which it
is offered. If the Company did not conduct an offering prior to the stated maturity, the Company had the option, but not the obligation, to convert
the debt into shares of its common stock within 30 days of the stated maturity at a price per share to be established by the Company�s Board of
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Directors. On December 21, 2011, with regulatory approval the Company refinanced this indebtedness on the same terms except that the
maturity date of the borrowings was extended to June 30, 2012. The Company believes this indebtedness is on more favorable terms to the
Company than could be obtained from unrelated parties.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED):

During 2010, the branch location in Grundy, Virginia which was part of a condominium in which the Bank and Director Michael McGlothlin
owned the only units was condemned by the Virginia Department of Transportation. The value of the Bank�s interest in its condemned
condominium units was $892 thousand and the value of Director McGlothlin�s interest in his condemned condominium unit was $455 thousand
as appraised by the Virginia Department of Transportation. Subsequently, a new building was constructed on adjacent property with the
condemnation proceeds. The parties intend the new building to be subject to a condominium agreement, the terms of which have not been
finalized although they are likely to be substantially similar to the terms of the previous condominium arrangement. The Bank�s branch in the
new building was opened on January 31, 2011 and a portion of the building comparable to his condemned unit was occupied by Director
McGlothlin at this time as well. Throughout 2011 additional work was conducted by the contractor. Minor projects remained at the end of 2011.
Final settlement of the transaction is expected to occur in early 2012 upon the receipt of new land surveys and independent appraisal reports
necessary to determine cost allocation between the Bank and Director McGlothlin, taking into consideration the use of the condemnation
proceeds attributable to the parties� respective interests in the condemned building to acquire the adjacent property and construct the new
building. When this net allocation is determined the parties intend that the ultimate amount attributable to each will be proportional to their
interests in the condemned building . At this point it is indeterminable what the net settlement amount will be until this critical information is
received.

NOTE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
In 2007, the Bank completed the acquisition of two branches in which certain intangible assets were identified related to the value of core
deposits. The estimated fair value of the core deposits was determined based on the present value of future cash flow related to those deposits
considering the industry standard �financial instrument� type present value methodology. All-in costs and runoff balances by year were discounted
by term specific Federal Home Loan Bank advance rates used as a measure of the best available approximate alternative costs of funds. The
estimated economic advantage embedded in the acquired deposits as compared to alternative values is the core deposit intangible.

(Dollars are in thousands)

Gross
Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying

Value
December 31, 2011
Amortizable core deposit intangibles $ 810 $ 687 $ 123
Unamortizable goodwill $ �  $ �  $ �  
December 31, 2010
Amortizable core deposit intangibles $ 810 $ 586 $ 224
Unamortizable goodwill $ 4,122 $ �  $ 4,122

Amortization expense related to these intangibles is based upon the average economic life of the core deposits. The estimates of expense for the
periods are as indicated below using the sum of the years� digits method of amortization.

(Dollars are in thousands)
Estimated amortization expense
For year ended December 31, 2012 $ 70
For year ended December 31, 2013 45
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For year ended December 31, 2014 8

Total $ 123

Goodwill is tested in accordance with ASC 350 at least annually, as of November 30, to determine if there is any impairment. Based on the
results of that test, goodwill was determined to not be impaired. However, due to a trade in the Company�s common stock that occurred after year
end 2011 and other factors, Management determined that there was indication that goodwill may be impaired. Accordingly, goodwill was also
tested for impairment as of December 31, 2011. As a result of this test, it was determined that an impairment charge of $4.1 million was
necessary, which resulted in a complete write-off of the goodwill.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 14 RETIREMENT PLANS:
The Company has established a qualified defined contribution plan that covers all full time employees. Under the plan, the Company matches
employee contributions up to a maximum of 5% of their salary for 2011 and 2010. The Company contributed $504 thousand and $530 thousand
to the defined contribution plan for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Effective January 1, 2012 the qualified defined contribution plan was modified
where the Company matches employee contributions up to a maximum of 3% of their salary.

In addition, in 2002, the Bank established a salary continuation plan for key executives, which is funded by single premium life insurance
policies. During the first quarter of 2010, we reversed a $398 thousand accrual due to the termination of a key executive. Expenses related to the
plan were $55 thousand and $41 thousand for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 15 STOCK OPTION PLAN:
New Peoples� Stock Option Plan (�the Plan�) was adopted on September 27, 2001. The purpose of the Plan is to reward employees and directors
for services rendered and investment risks undertaken to date and to promote the success of the Company by providing incentives to employees
and directors that will promote the identification of their personal interest with the long-term financial success of the Company and with growth
in shareholder value. The Plan provides that options for up to 1,287,000 shares of the Company�s common stock may be issued to employees and
directors. The exercise price may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the award date. Each award becomes
exercisable in the event of a change in control of the Company. All options are subject to exercise or forfeiture if the Company�s capital falls
below minimum requirements, as determined by its primary state or federal regulator. The Plan expired on May 31, 2011. All options granted
and outstanding are fully vested. The Company did not grant any options in 2011, 2010 and 2009. No stock options were exercised in 2011. The
intrinsic values of stock options exercised were $2 thousand for 2010.

Information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2011 follows:

Exercise Price

Number

Outstanding

And
Exercisable

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual
Life

Weighted

Average
Exercise

$  6.99 108,367 1.51 years $ 6.99
$  9.44 86,742 2.93 years $ 9.44
$  11.54 266,664 3.97 years $ 11.54

Totals 461,773 3.23 years $ 10.08

A summary of the status of the Company�s stock option plan is presented below:

2011 2010 2009

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding and exercisable, Beginning of year 771,344 $ 8.81 920,256 $ 8.77 962,791 $ 8.80
Exercised �  �  (1,141) 6.88 (135) 5.25
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Forfeited (154,382) 8.58 (147,771) 8.58 (42,400) 9.50
Expired (155,189) 5.25 �  �  �  �  

Outstanding and exercisable, end of year 461,773 $ 10.08 771,344 $ 8.81 920,256 $ 8.77
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 16 DIVIDEND LIMITATIONS ON SUBSIDIARY BANK:
The principal source of funds of the Company is dividends paid by the Bank. The Federal Reserve Act restricts the amount of dividends the
Bank may pay. Approval by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System is required if the dividends declared by a state member bank,
in any year, exceed the sum of (1) net income of the current year and (2) income net of dividends for the preceding two years. In October 2009, a
restriction prohibiting the payment of dividends from the Bank to the Company was imposed by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond.
Therefore, no dividends will be available to the Company from the Bank until such restriction is removed.

NOTE 17 LEASING ACTIVITIES:
The Company�s leasing activities consist of the leasing of land and buildings under agreements in which the Bank is lessee. These leases have
been classified as operating leases.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments in thousands, required under non-cancelable operating leases that have
initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2011:

Year ending December 31:
2012 $ 12
2013 13
2014 13
2015 13
2016 13
Thereafter 11

Total minimum payments required $ 75

Rental commitments of less than one year are not included in the above schedule. Rentals charged to operations under operating leases were $13
thousand and $30 thousand for the years ended 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 18 AVAILABLE LINES OF CREDIT AND FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES:
The Bank has the ability to borrow up to an additional $17.6 million from the Federal Home Loan Bank under a line of credit which is secured
by a blanket lien on residential real estate loans. The Bank had no overnight borrowings subject to daily rate changes from the Federal Home
Loan Bank at December 31, 2011 or 2010. All other borrowings are at fixed rates.

The Bank had $18.0 million in term borrowings with the Federal Home Loan Bank at December 31, 2011 and $24.2 million at December 31,
2010. The borrowings consist of convertible notes totaling $10.2 million at December 31, 2011 with a weighted average interest rate of 4.04%
and $15.2 million at December 31, 2010 with a weighted average interest rate of 3.76%. The convertible notes have a quarterly Bermudan call
feature and mature in 2012. Two additional borrowings totaling $7.8 million and $9.0 million were outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010
respectively. These borrowings were obtained in 2008 to fund various real estate loans. These borrowings have fixed rates with an average
weighted interest rate of 4.07%, with monthly principal and interest through 2018.

A letter of credit for $7.0 million was issued in 2008 and a letter of credit for $3.0 million was issued in 2010 to the Treasury Board of Virginia
for collateral on public funds. No draws on the letters of credit have been issued. The letters of credit are considered draws on our Federal Home
Loan Bank line of credit which is secured by a blanket lien on residential real estate loans.
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NOTE 19 LEGAL CONTINGENCIES:
Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business which, in the opinion of management, will have no material effect
on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK:
In the normal course of business, the Bank has outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit, which are not included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Bank�s exposure to credit loss in the
event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is
represented by the contractual or notional amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making such commitments as
it does for instruments that are included in the balance sheet.

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk were as follows:

(Dollars are in thousands) 2011 2010
Commitments to extend credit $ 29,004 $ 32,165
Standby letters of credit 3,049 4,787

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer at either a fixed or variable interest rate as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer�s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management�s credit evaluation. Collateral held varies
but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Standby
letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank�s policy for obtaining
collateral, and the nature of such collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit.

NOTE 21 LINE OF CREDIT:
In June 2008, the Company obtained a three year revolving line of credit totaling $6.5 million from Silverton Bank. The interest rate is priced at
Wall Street Journal Prime and will change as the Wall Street Journal Prime rate changes, subject to a floor rate of 5.00%. The interest rate at
December 31, 2010 was 5.00%. Collateral for the line of credit is the subsidiary, New Peoples Bank, Inc. common stock. The line of credit was
paid off and closed in 2011. The balance at December 31, 2010 was $4.9 million. The purpose of the line of credit was for general operations
and capital injections to the subsidiaries.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 22 TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES AND DEFERRAL OF INTEREST PAYMENTS:
On September 27, 2006, the Company completed the issuance of $5.2 million in floating rate trust preferred securities offered by its wholly
owned subsidiary, NPB Capital Trust 2. The proceeds of the funds were used for general corporate purposes, which Include capital management
for affiliates and the acquisition of two branch banks. The securities have a floating rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 177 basis points, which resets
quarterly, with a current rate at December 31, 2011 of 2.17%.

On July 7, 2004, the Company completed the issuance of $11.3 million in floating rate trust preferred securities offered by its wholly owned
subsidiary, NPB Capital Trust I. The proceeds of the funds were used for general corporate purposes which included capital management for
affiliates, retirement of indebtedness and other investments. The securities have a floating rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 260 basis points, which
resets quarterly, with a current rate at December 31, 2011 of 3.00%.

Under the terms of the subordinated debt transactions, the securities mature in 30 years and are redeemable, in whole or in part, without penalty,
at the option of the Company after five years. Due to the ability to defer interest and principal payments for 60 months without being considered
in default, the regulatory agencies consider the trust preferred securities as Tier 1 capital up to certain limits.

In October 2009, a restriction to pay dividends from the Bank to the Company was issued by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond. As a
result, dividends on trust preferred securities issued by the Company shall be deferred until such restriction is removed. Dividends in arrears on
the trust preferred securities were $993 thousand and $557 thousand as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 23 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS:
The Company and the Bank are subject to various capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum
capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and, possibly, additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Company�s and the Bank�s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also
subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are
not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of December 31, 2011, the Company and the Bank meet all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2011 the Bank was well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following
tables. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed the Bank�s category.
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NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 23 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED):

The Company�s and the Bank�s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Actual

Minimum
Capital

Requirement

Minimum to Be
Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

Corrective Action
Provisions

(Dollars are in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2011:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
The Company $ 45,856 9.15% 40,104 8% $ N/A N/A
The Bank 53,070 10.56% 40,189 8% 50,236 10% 
Tier 1 Capital Risk Weighted Assets:
The Company 32,941 6.57% 20,052 4% N/A N/A
The Bank 46,641 9.28% 20,095 4% 30,142 6% 
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets:
The Company 33,461 4.23% 31,658 4% N/A N/A
The Bank 46,641 5.99% 31,160 4% 38,950 5% 
December 31, 2010:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
The Company $ 53,020 8.87% 47,825 8% $ N/A N/A
The Bank 58,466 9.79% 47,786 8% 59,732 10% 
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets:
The Company 39,108 6.54% 23,913 4% N/A N/A
The Bank 50,777 8.50% 23,893 4% 35,839 6% 
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets:
The Company 39,108 4.62% 33,857 4% N/A N/A
The Bank 50,777 6.00% 33,857 4% 42,321 5% 

NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES:
ASC 820,�Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures� provides a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting
principles and requires disclosures about the fair value of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet in periods subsequent to initial
recognition, whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis (for example, available for sale investment securities) or on a nonrecurring
basis (for example, impaired loans and other real estate acquired through foreclosure).

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures also establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilities include debt and equity securities and
derivative contracts that are traded in an exchange market, as well as U. S. Treasury, other U. S. Government and agency mortgage-backed debt
securities that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter markets.
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Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities include debt securities with quoted prices that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded
instruments and derivative
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED):

contracts whose value is determined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data. This category generally includes certain derivative contracts and impaired loans.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets and
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment
or estimation. For example, this category generally includes certain private equity investments, retained residual interests in securitizations,
residential mortgage servicing rights, and highly structured or long-term derivative contracts.

Investment Securities Available for Sale � Investment securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value
measurement is based upon quoted prices. The Company�s available for sale securities, totaling $32.4 million and $4.7 million at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively, are the only assets whose fair values are measured on a recurring basis using Level 2 inputs from an independent
pricing service.

Loans � The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company is predominantly an asset based lender with real
estate serving as collateral on a substantial majority of loans. From time to time a loan is considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is
established. Loans which are deemed to be impaired and require a reserve are primarily valued on a non-recurring basis at the fair values of the
underlying real estate collateral. Such fair values are obtained using independent appraisals, which management evaluates and determines the
fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, or an appraised value does not
include estimated costs of disposition and management must make an estimate, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3.
The aggregate carrying amount of impaired loans carried at fair value were $85.8 million and $77.8 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Foreclosed Assets � Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets. Foreclosed assets are carried at
the lower of the carrying value or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent observable market prices or appraised values of the collateral
with a third party estimate of disposition costs, which the Company considers to be level 2 inputs. When the appraised value is not available,
management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, or
an appraised value does not include estimated costs of disposition and management must make an estimate, the Company records the foreclosed
asset as nonrecurring Level 3. The aggregate carrying amount of foreclosed assets were $15.1 million and $12.3 million at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED):

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows as of December 31, 2011 (for purpose of this table the impaired loans are shown net
of the related allowance):

(Dollars are in thousands)

Quoted market
price in
active

markets
(Level 1)

Significant 
other

observable

inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

(On a recurring basis)
Available for sale investments
U.S. Government Agencies $ �  $ 21,633 $ �  
Taxable municipals �  1,552 �  
Tax-exempt municipals �  1,054 �  
Mortgage backed securities �  8,195 �  
(On a non-recurring basis)
Other real estate owned �  �  15,092
Impaired loans
Real estate secured:
Commercial �  �  43,321
Construction and land development �  �  8,769
Residential 1-4 family �  �  13,642
Multifamily �  �  613
Farmland �  �  13,951
Commercial �  �  4,737
Agriculture �  �  714
Consumer installment loans �  �  28
All other loans �  �  �  

Total $ �  $ 32,434 $ 100,867

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows as of December 31, 2010 (for purpose of this table the impaired loans are shown net
of the related allowance):

(Dollars are in thousands)

Quoted market
price in
active

markets
(Level 1)

Significant other
observable 

inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

(On a recurring basis)
Available for sale investments
U.S. Government Agencies $ �  $ 2,970 $ �  
Taxable municipals �  899 �  
Mortgage backed securities �  789 �  
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(On a non-recurring basis)
Other real estate owned �  �  12,346
Impaired loans
Real estate secured:
Commercial �  �  33,781
Construction and land development �  �  19,572
Residential 1-4 family �  �  7,020
Multifamily �  �  468
Farmland �  �  13,981
Commercial �  �  2,605
Agriculture �  �  365
Consumer installment loans �  �  23
All other loans �  �  �  

Total $ �  $ 4,658 $ 90,161
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NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED):

The changes in other real estate owned Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are summarized as follows (dollars in
thousands):

(Dollars are in thousands)

2011

Other Real
Estate Owned

2010

Other Real
Estate Owned

Balance, January 1 $ 12,346 $ 3,675
Transfers into Level 3 �  1,969
Acquired in settlement of loans 12,932 12,047
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned (5,945) (3,716) 
Gain (Loss) on sale of other real estate owned (218) (202) 
Adjustments to carrying value (4,023) (1,427) 

Balance, December 31 $ 15,092 $ 12,346

Transfers into Level 3 during the year ended December 31, 2010 were related to management adjustments to third party appraisals. Management
estimated the fair value of impaired loans and other real estate owned to be further impaired and thereby below the appraised value, resulting in
no observable market price. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis are summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2011

(Dollars are in thousands)

Other Real
Estate
Owned

Impaired
Loans Total

Balance, January 1 $ 12,346 $ 77,815 $ 90,161
Transfers into Level 3 12,932 7,960 20,892
Included in earnings (4,241) �  (4,241) 
Sales and other reductions (5,945) �  (5,945) 

Balance, December 31 $ 15,092 $ 85,775 $ 100,867

December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)

Other Real
Estate
Owned

Impaired
Loans Total

Balance, January 1 $ 3,675 $ �  $ 3,675
Transfers into Level 3 14,016 77,815 91,831
Included in earnings (1,629) �  (1,629) 
Sales and other reductions (3,716) �  (3,716) 

Balance, December 31 $ 12,346 $ 77,815 $ 90,161
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NOTE 24 FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED):

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practical to estimate the value
is based upon the characteristics of the instruments and relevant market information. Financial instruments include cash, evidence of ownership
in an entity, or contracts that convey or impose on an entity that contractual right or obligation to either receive or deliver cash for another
financial instrument.

The following summary presents the methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Company�s financial instruments
presented below. The information used to determine fair value is highly subjective and judgmental in nature and, therefore, the results may not
be precise. Subjective factors include, among other things, estimates of cash flows, risk characteristics, credit quality, and interest rates, all of
which are subject to change. Since the fair value is estimated as of the balance sheet date, the amounts that will actually be realized or paid upon
settlement or maturity on these various instruments could be significantly different.

The carrying value of cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, interest-bearing deposits, deposits with no stated maturities, trust preferred
securities and accrued interest approximates fair value. The estimated fair value of investment securities was based on closing market prices. The
remaining financial instruments were valued based on the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at various rates in effect for
similar instruments during the months of December 2011 and 2010.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Financial Assets
Cash and due from bank $ 18,306 $ 18,306 $14,369 $ 14,369
Interest bearing deposits with banks 72,170 72,170 42,549 42,549
Federal funds sold 77 77 25,611 25,611
Investment securities 32,434 32,434 4,658 4,658
Equity securities (restricted) 3,573 3,573 3,878 3,878
Net Loans 588,888 579,436 700,420 682,780
Accrued Interest receivable 3,067 3,067 3,700 3,700
Life insurance investments 11,351 11,351 11,011 11,011

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

(Dollars are in thousands)
Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

Financial Liabilities
Demand Deposits
Non-interest bearing $ 109,629 $ 109,629 $87,839 $ 87,839
Interest-bearing 58,459 58,459 60,022 60,022
Savings deposits 94,569 94,569 108,119 108,119
Time deposits 451,312 445,658 513,090 510,100
FHLB advances 17,756 17,983 23,611 24,183
Accrued interest payable 1,796 1,796 1,720 1,720
Line of credit borrowing �  �  4,900 4,900
Other borrowings 5,450 5,450 250 250
Trust preferred securities 16,496 16,496 16,496 16,496

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 110



66

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 111



Table of Contents

NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 25 RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS:
The following is a summary of recent authoritative announcements:

In July 2010, the Receivables topic of the Accounting Standards Codification (�ASC�) was amended by Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�)
2010-20 to require expanded disclosures related to a company�s allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its financing receivables. The
amendments require the allowance disclosures to be provided on a disaggregated basis. The Company is required to include these disclosures in
their interim and annual financial statements. See Notes 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements for the required disclosures.

Disclosures about Troubled Debt Restructurings (�TDRs�) required by ASU 2010-20 were deferred by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(�FASB�) in ASU 2011-01 issued in January 2011. In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-02 to assist creditors with their determination of
when a restructuring is a TDR. The determination is based on whether the restructuring constitutes a concession and whether the debtor is
experiencing financial difficulties as both events must be present. Disclosures related to TDRs under ASU 2010-20 have been presented in Note
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2010, the Intangibles topic of the ASC was amended to modify Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test for reporting units with zero
or negative carrying amounts. For those reporting units, an entity is required to perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely
than not that a goodwill impairment exists. Any resulting goodwill impairment should be recorded as a cumulative-effect adjustment to
beginning retained earnings upon adoption. Impairments occurring subsequent to adoption should be included in earnings. The amendment was
effective for the Company on January 1, 2011 and did not have a material effect on the financial statements.

In September 2011, the Intangibles topic was again amended to permit an entity to consider qualitative factors to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform
the two-step goodwill impairment test. This pronouncement is not expected to have a significant impact to the Company as goodwill has been
determined to be impaired as of December 31, 2011.

In April 2011, the criteria used to determine effective control of transferred assets in the Transfers and Servicing topic of the ASC was amended
by ASU 2011-03. The requirement for the transferor to have the ability to repurchase or redeem the financial assets on substantially the agreed
terms and the collateral maintenance implementation guidance related to that criterion were removed from the assessment of effective control.
The other criteria to assess effective control were not changed. The amendments are effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2012 but
are not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements.

ASU 2011-04 was issued in May 2011 to amend the Fair Value Measurement topic of the ASC by clarifying the application of existing fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements and by changing particular principles or requirements for measuring fair value or for disclosing
information about fair value measurements. The amendments will be effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2012 but are not expected
to have a material effect on the financial statements.

The Comprehensive Income topic of the ASC was amended in June 2011. The amendment eliminates the option to present other comprehensive
income as a part of the statement of changes in stockholders� equity and requires consecutive presentation of the statement of net income and
other comprehensive income. The amendments will be applicable to the Company on January 1, 2012 and will be applied retrospectively. In
December 2011, the topic was further amended to defer the effective date of presenting reclassification adjustments from other comprehensive
income to net income on the face of the financial statements. Companies should continue to report reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income consistent with the presentation requirements in effect prior to the amendments while FASB redeliberates future
requirements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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NOTE 26 PARENT CORPORATION ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(Dollars in Thousands)

2011 2010
ASSETS
Due from banks $ 211 $ 201
Investment in subsidiaries 51,854 58,970
Other assets 2,224 3,470

Total Assets $ 54,289 $ 62,641

LIABILITIES
Accrued interest payable $ 1,138 $ 557
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,332 2,915
Other borrowed money 5,450 5,150
Trust preferred securities 16,496 16,496

Total Liabilities 25,416 25,118

STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Common stock-$2.00 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 10,010,178 shares issued and outstanding for 2011
and 2010, respectively 20,020 20,020
Additional paid capital 21,689 21,689
Retained earnings (deficit) (13,085) (4,175) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 249 (11) 

Total Stockholders� Equity 28,873 37,523

Total Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity $ 54,289 $ 62,641

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(Dollars in Thousands) 2011 2010
Income
Miscellaneous income $ 14 $ 14
Undistributed loss of subsidiaries (7,375) (8,520) 

Total Income (loss) (7,361) (8,506) 
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Expenses
Other borrowed money interest expense 194 246
Trust preferred securities interest expense 436 454
Legal fees 51 31
Accounting fees 68 107
Other operating expenses (150) 2

Total Expenses 599 840

Income (loss) before Income Taxes (7,960) (9,346) 
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 950 (281) 

Net Income (Loss) $ (8,910) $ (9,065) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 26 PARENT CORPORATION ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED):

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

(Dollars and Shares in Thousands) 2011 2010
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss $ (8,910) $ (9,065) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used) in operating activities:
Income of subsidiaries 7,375 8,520
Net change in:
Other assets 1,247 (2,137) 
Other liabilities (2) 2,521

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (290) (161) 
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment in subsidiary �  �  

Net Cash Used (Provided) Investing Activities �  �  
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from (repayments on) line of credit (4,900) �  
Proceeds from other borrowings 5,200 250
Dividends received from subsidiary �  �  
Exercise of stock options �  8

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 300 258
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 97
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year 201 104

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 211 $ 201

NOTE 27 SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

2011 Quarters
(Dollars in thousands except per share data) Fourth Third Second First
Income statement
Net interest income $ 8,162 $ 7,742 $ 8,089 $ 8,170
Noninterest income 1,615 1,364 1,234 1,311
Provision for credit losses 1,701 2,801 2,312 1,145
Noninterest expense 13,079 9,113 9,617 7,613
Net income (loss) (5,952) (1,832) (1,675) 549
Earnings (loss) per share, basic (0.59) (0.18) (0.17) 0.05
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Earnings (loss) per share, fully diluted (0.59) (0.18) (0.17) 0.05
Period end balance sheet
Total loans and leases $ 597,816 $ 629,610 $ 664,003 $ 683,025
Total assets 780,384 810,355 821,107 864,665
Total deposits 708,315 731,989 741,153 782,411
Total shareholders� equity 28,873 34,686 36,480 38,086
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NOTE 27 SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED):

2010 Quarters
(Dollars in thousands except per share data) Fourth Third Second First
Income statement
Net interest income $ 8,750 $ 8,315 $ 8,719 $ 8,346
Noninterest income 1,601 1,543 1,413 1,377
Provision for credit losses 8,947 9,441 1,950 1,990
Noninterest expense 9,626 7,242 7,874 7,152
Net income (loss) (5,224) (4,496) 242 413
Earnings (loss) per share, basic (0.52) (0.45) 0.02 0.04
Earnings (loss) per share, fully diluted (0.52) (0.45) 0.02 0.04
Period end balance sheet
Total loans and leases $ 707,794 $ 732,209 $ 740,130 $ 758,364
Total assets 852,627 848,118 859,625 867,683
Total deposits 766,080 756,298 762,094 770,284
Total shareholders� equity 37,523 42,801 47,278 47,016

70

Edgar Filing: NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES INC - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 117



Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
As reported on a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 12 2011, on March 28, 2011 the Audit Committee received
notification from Brown Edwards & Company, LLP (�Brown Edwards�), the Company�s then current independent registered public accounting
firm, indicating that it declined to stand for re-appointment after completion of the audit for the Company�s 2010 fiscal year.

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, and during the period from January 1, 2011 through March 28, 2011,
the Company had (i) no disagreements with Brown Edwards on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure,
or auditing scope or procedure, any of which that, if not resolved to Brown Edwards� satisfaction, would have caused it to make reference to the
subject matter of any such disagreement in connection with its reports for such years and interim periods and (ii) no reportable events within the
meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K during the two most recent fiscal years or the subsequent interim period.

Brown Edwards� reports on the Company�s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31,
2010, did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or
accounting principles.

The Company provided Brown Edwards a copy of the disclosures it made on the Current Report on Form 8-K prior to filing with the SEC and
requested that Brown Edwards furnish the Company with a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether or not Brown Edwards agrees with the
above statements. A copy of such letter, dated April 11, 2011 is filed as Exhibit 16.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10K.

The decision to change the Company�s registered public accounting firm was approved by the Audit Committee.

Brown Edwards� report on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 did contain an
adverse opinion relating to two material weaknesses in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. The Company did not disagree
with the adverse opinion. As of December 31, 2011, we have determined that we have fully remediated both material wekanesses.

On May 9, 2011 the Company engaged Elliott Davis, LLC (�Elliott Davis�) to serve as the Company�s independent registered public accountants
with respect to the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, and during the period from January 1, 2012 through February 29, 2012, the Company had
(i) no disagreements with Elliott Davis on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or
procedure, any of which that, if not resolved to Elliott Davis� satisfaction, would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of any
such disagreement in connection with its reports for such year and interim period and (ii) no reportable events within the meaning of
Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K during the most recent fiscal year or the subsequent interim period.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc.
New Peoples� internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to management and the Board of Directors regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Because of these inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation, and may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Management assessed the effectiveness of New Peoples� internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
�Internal Control - Integrated Framework.� Based on this assessment management concluded that the internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the last fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures that is designed to ensure that material information is accumulated and
communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on
that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were operating
effectively as of December 31, 2011.

Item 9B. Other Information
None

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2012

Joe M. Carter, 74, is a retired general manager of Daugherty Chevrolet in Gate City, Virginia which he served 43 years in this role from 1965
to April 2008. Mr. Carter is a 1958 graduate of the Whitney Business School formerly located in Kingsport, Tennessee. He served as an advisory
Board member of the former Peoples Bank, Inc. and its successors, Premier Bank � Central, NA and First Virginia Bank Southwest until his
resignation in 1998. Mr. Carter is a Trustee of Thomas Village Baptist Church for the past 26 years and its Treasurer for the past thirteen years.
He also has served on the Scott County Economic Development Board of Directors from 1998 to 2000. He has been a director since 1998 and
served on the Audit Committee from 1998 until 2004. He currently serves on the Director Loan Committee and Asset Liability Management
Committee of the Bank. Mr. Carter�s experience in the automotive industry and consumer finance assists the Board of Directors in understanding
these businesses which are important in the Company�s markets.

Harold Lynn Keene, 57, is President of Keene Carpet, Inc. since 1976 to present and former President of Harold Keene Coal Co., Inc. since
1984 until its sale in January 2011. Mr. Keene received his bachelor of science degree in accounting from East Tennessee State University in
1976. He formerly served as a bank director for Peoples Bank, Inc. from 1987 and its successor bank Premier Bank-Central, NA until 1997 in
which he was an Audit Committee member during his entire tenure and Chairman of the Board for two years. He served as an advisory board
member with First Virginia Bank Southwest from 1997 to 1998. He has been a director of New Peoples and its Audit Committee Chairman since
1998. Mr. Keene also serves on the Executive Committee, the Offering Committee, the Nominating Committee, Director Loan Committee,
Asset Liability Management Committee and Compliance Committee and has been Chairman of the Board for two years. Mr. Keene�s experience
in banking, in particular, but also in the coal industry, provide an important resource to the Board of Directors in dealing with bank and finance
related matters and the coal industry, an important market for the Company.

Fred W. Meade, 77, is President and Owner of Big M Stores, Inc., a retail department store and flooring business since 1973 and is also
involved in real estate development and rental properties since 1980. He served as a Board member of Southwest Bank of Virginia from 1971
until it sold in 1980. He subsequently served as an advisory board member for the former Bank of Virginia and Signet Bank from 1980 until
1997. Mr. Meade is a member of the Russell County Economic Development board for the past twenty years. In addition, he has served as a
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the Board of Directors of the Russell County Chamber of Commerce. He is a life-long resident of Russell County. Mr. Meade serves as a deacon
of the First Baptist Church of St. Paul, Virginia. He has been a director since 1998 and has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors for the
Company and the Bank for two years. He currently is a member of the Executive Committee, the Director Loan Committee, the Nominating
Committee and the Compensation Committee. Mr. Meade�s experience in the retail business, real estate, economic development, and bank board
experience are very important to the Board of Directors.

Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2013

Tim W. Ball, 52, is President, Owner and Operator of Ball Coal Company since 1985 to present, owner of Tim Ball Trucking Company from
1985 to present, and President of Tim Ball Farming Corporation from 1987 to present. Mr. Ball is a 1982 graduate from Emory and Henry
College. He is active in various community service. He has been a director since 1999. Mr. Ball�s experience in the coal industry, farming and
community involvement serve well for the Board of Directors because many of the Company�s customers are involved in the coal industry or
farm-related businesses.

Michael G. McGlothlin, 60, is President of the Appalachian College of Pharmacy from 2005 to 2006 and 2008 to present. He also serves as
President of Watkins Branch Development, LTD and The Inn on Garden Creek, LTD from 2006 to present. Mr. McGlothlin serves as Secretary
and Director of MGM Methane Corporation from 2009 to present. Mr. McGlothlin serves as Trustee and as Treasurer of the Appalachian School
of Law (Trustee 2005 to present and Treasurer 2005 to present). Mr. McGlothlin serves as a Trustee and as Secretary of the McGlothlin
Foundation from 1998 to present. He has been the owner of Michael G. McGlothlin, Attorney-at-Law in Grundy, Virginia since 2002. Prior to
that, he was a partner in the Law Firm of McGlothlin and Wife from 1984 to 2002. He served as Commonwealth Attorney for Buchanan County,
Virginia from 1980 to 1983 and as County Attorney for Buchanan County, Virginia from 1984 to 1989 and from 1992 to February 2011. He
currently serves as counsel to the County Attorney for Buchanan County, Virginia, and the Buchanan County Board of Supervisors. He was a
partner in the Law Firm of McGlothlin, McGlothlin and McGlothlin from 1977 to 1979. Mr. McGlothlin is past President of the Buchanan
County Bar Association. Mr. McGlothlin is a 1974 graduate of the University of Virginia and a 1977 graduate of the Marshall Wythe School of
Law of the College of William and Mary.

He served as a member of the College Board of Virginia of the University of Virginia at Wise, formerly known as Clinch Valley College
Advisory Board, from 1985 to 2010. He is a past President of the Kiwanis Club and a past Chairman of the Breaks District of the Sequoyah
Council of the Boy Scotts of America. He is a former member of the Virginia Board of Forestry from 2002 to 2006 and the Great Southwest
Group Home Commission from 1983 to 1992.

Mr. McGlothlin has been a Director of the Company and the Bank since 1998 and currently serves as Chairman of the Board and sits on the
Executive, Compliance, Nominating and Offering Committees of the Board. Mr. McGlothlin�s experience as an attorney, administrator, and
organizational and community leader provide the Board with a broad range of professional experience and his community involvement assists
the Board in understanding the communities it serves and developing relationships within those communities.

B. Scott White, 66, is self-employed as a cattle rancher in Castlewood, Virginia, a private investor, and formerly President and CEO of a
multi-state rock quarry, White Stone Company and White�s Pelleting Company, from 1970 until the company was sold in 1997. Mr. White has
also served as General Manager of Sky Blue Tower Company, LLC, a cell phone tower company in southwest Virginia from 2004 to 2008. He
served two years as Chairman of the Board, and currently serves as Chairman of the Compliance Committee. Mr. White serves as a member of
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nominating Committee, the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Offering
Committee of the Company. He has been a director since 1998. Mr. White�s experience as a small business owner and rancher provides
experience to the Board relevant to its small business customer base.

Jonathan H. Mullins, 55, has served as the Company�s and the Bank�s President and Chief Executive Officer since May 19, 2009. He had
previously served as the Bank�s Senior Vice President, Chief Lending Officer and Regional Manager from July 2004 until May 2009. Prior to
this, Mr. Mullins served as the Bank�s Vice President and Branch Manager starting in 1999. He was appointed as a director on July 27, 2010 and
serves on the Executive Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Compliance Committee.

Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2014

John Cox, 55, is the owner of Cox Tractor Company located in Kingsport, Tennessee, a farm equipment business that he has owned and
operated since 1978. Mr. Cox is also a local farmer and entrepreneur. He graduated with
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high honors from the University of Tennessee in 1978, where he obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Cox
has served as a director since 1998 and currently serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank. He is also the
Chairman of the Compensation Committee, a member of the Audit Committee, Executive Committee, Compliance Committee, Asset Liability
Management Committee, Nominating Committee and Offering Committee. Mr. Cox�s tenure on the Board and his experience in agriculture and
agriculturally related small business support the Company�s significant customer base in these markets.

Charles H. Gent, Jr., 52, is self-employed in the logging and farming industry in Honaker, Virginia. He is president of C & R Gent Logging
from 1992 to present. Mr. Gent is also involved in farming and various real estate ventures with his family. He was vice president and owner of
Genwal Coal Company in Utah from the years 1981 to 1989. He is actively involved in several community activities. He has been a director
since 1998 and serves on the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee. Mr. Gent�s experience in logging and mining, as well as real
estate, provides experience to the Board relevant to understanding these businesses in the Company�s rural markets.

Eugene Hearl, 80, is a retired banker that has over 40 years of banking experience serving in capacities as President and CEO for two
community banks, TruPoint Bank and the former Cumberland Bank, and as a Regional President for the former Dominion Bank, all in the
Southwest Virginia market area of the Company. Mr. Hearl was appointed as a director on November 29, 2010 and serves on the Audit
Committee, Director Loan Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee, Compensation Committee, Compliance Committee and the
Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.

A. Frank Kilgore, 59, is an attorney with Frank Kilgore, P.C. in St. Paul, Virginia and serves as General Counsel to the Company and the
Bank. He has been a director since 1998. Mr. Kilgore is the founding Chairman of the Board of Directors of New Peoples Bank, Inc. and serves
on the Compensation Committee. Mr. Kilgore has served the community as an attorney since 1982. He graduated from Clinch Valley College of
the University of Virginia in 1977 with a degree in Appalachian Studies. Throughout his career, Mr. Kilgore has received multiple prestigious
awards for civic accomplishments as well as his environmental activism. Frank Kilgore has also authored and edited multiple books, which
focus primarily on the region of Southwestern Virginia. He is past-Chair and Founder of the Appalachian College of Pharmacy, Oakwood,
Virginia. Mr. Kilgore brings his legal experience, entrepreneurial activities, and leadership in the Appalachia region to the Board of Directors.

Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors

The following biographical information discloses the age and business experience in the past five years for each of our executive officers who
are not directors.

Frank Sexton, Jr., 62, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of both the Company and the Bank since December
2003. He had previously served as the Company�s Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary since 2001 and the Bank�s
Executive Vice President and Cashier since 1998.

C. Todd Asbury, 41, has served as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of both the Company and the Bank since
May 2009. Mr. Asbury has served as Secretary of the Company and the Bank since May 2010. He served as Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer, and Treasurer of the Company and the Bank starting in December 2003.

Stephen Trescot, 63, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank since February 28, 2011 until present.
Mr. Trescot retired from Wachovia Bank in January 2009, after serving as Senior Credit Officer and Senior Loan Review Officer. He was with
Wachovia for thirty-six years. Since retirement, Mr. Trescot served as Senior Vice President, Regional Credit Administrator with Washington
Trust Bank, Senior Vice President, Senior Loan Review Officer with BB and T and as Member, Credit Risk Management, LLC.

Sharon V. Borich, 57, has served as Senior Vice President and Senior Lending Officer of the Bank from February 28, 2011 to present. Prior to
this position, she served as Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank since February 2010. Ms. Borich served as Vice President
and Senior Loan Officer for the Bank from November 2009 to February 2010. Ms. Borich joined the Bank as Vice President and Branch
Manager of the Bluefield, Virginia office in March 2005. Effective February 28, 2011, Ms. Borich no longer qualifies as a named executive
officer.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and certain of our officers to file reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (�SEC�) indicating their holdings of, or transactions in, our equity securities. Based on a review of these reports and
written representations furnished to us, we believe that our directors and officers complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements with respect
to 2011.

Code of Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Ethics for our directors, executive officers, and senior officers who have financial responsibilities.
The Code of Ethics is designed to promote, among other things, honest and ethical conduct, proper disclosure of financial information in our
periodic reports, and compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations by our senior officers who have financial responsibilities. A copy of
the Code of Ethics can be found at our website www.npbankshares.com in the section titled About Us.

Audit Committee

The Company has a standing Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Cox, Gent, Hearl, Keene (Chairman) and
White. The Board in its business judgment has determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee are independent as defined by
NASDAQ Stock Market Listing Rules and applicable SEC regulations. The Board of Directors also has determined that all of the members of
the Audit Committee have sufficient knowledge in financial and auditing matters to serve on the Audit Committee and that Mr. Keene qualifies
as an audit committee financial expert as defined by SEC regulations.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The objectives of the Bank�s executive compensation programs are to fairly reward and retain effective and experienced management. The
compensation programs are designed to reward effectiveness, experience and ability. The Committee establishes current compensation based
primarily on review of competitive salary practices by similarly sized bank organizations in Virginia as listed in the Virginia Bankers�
Association Salary Survey, giving appropriate consideration to regional cost of living differences and strategies. This survey is used as a guide to
determine the base salary and bonus of executive officers. The elements of compensation are as follows: base salary, bonuses, stock options,
deferred compensation, insurance benefits and 401(K) matching contributions as presented in Summary Compensation Table included in the
section entitled �Executive Compensation.� As of December 31, 2011, there was also a salary continuation agreement with the Chief Operating
Officer which had been designed as a long-term incentive to retain his service as an employee. The salary continuation agreement with the
current Chief Operating Officer remains in effect and is discussed below. We pay each element of compensation to maximize the continuity of
management and investment return. The Committee determines the amount of each element of compensation based on the following factors:
regional and statewide comparisons, individual efforts, success and our overall performance. The Committee�s decisions regarding each element
relate to our overall compensation objectives and affect decisions regarding other elements.

The Committee has developed and implemented compensation policies and plans that seek to enhance our profitability and maximize
shareholder value by aligning the financial interests of our senior officers with those of our shareholders. The policies are designed to provide
competitive levels of compensation to attract and retain high quality corporate officers and key employees with outstanding abilities and to
motivate them to perform to the full extent of their abilities. The compensation program is designed to provide levels of compensation that
reflect both the individual�s and the organization�s performance in achieving the organization�s goals and objectives and in helping to build value
for our shareholders. The components of the compensation of our executive officers and the Bank include salaries and bonuses paid by the Bank
and long-term incentives through stock options granted by us. Although no stock options were awarded to the named executive officers in 2011,
each executive has outstanding unexercised options that the Committee believes help align the executives� interests directly to the shareholders�
interests. Salaries are designed to provide basic remuneration for services, to be competitive in our market and to assist in retention. In addition,
annual bonus decisions take into account the achievement of corporate strategic goals, such as profitability, rates of return, asset growth and
asset quality are achieved during the periods evaluated for bonus consideration, further aligning the interests of executive officers and
shareholders

We align performance and compensation based upon strategic goals that are incorporated in our budget and approved by the Board of Directors.
We believe that our conservative but competitive compensation policies and practices are unlikely to create risks that are reasonably likely to
have a materially adverse effect on New Peoples.
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Most of the compensation that we pay consists of annually determined salaries and bonuses. This permits the Board of Directors to review
annually the budget versus actual performance, internal policy limits for various key performance ratios, asset quality ratios, interest rate
sensitivity shocks, liquidity management, and capital levels before compensation is set. All of these components together with continuation of
employment are assessed each year. It is at the discretion of the Board of Directors to pay cash bonuses or any other incentives if goals are met
or exceeded. So, for example in 2011 the Board did not pay bonuses to any employee. We believe that this substantially contemporaneous
approach to determining compensation is not likely to encourage excessive risk taking and in fact allows the Board to align compensation with
business factors such as acceptable versus unacceptable risk taking.

Base Salary and Bonus

Our performance, in general, is considered in determining the amount of annual salary increases. The Committee sets base salaries at levels
competitive with amounts paid to senior executives with comparable qualifications, experience and responsibilities after comparing salary
ranges of similarly sized banks. The Virginia Bankers Association Salary Survey was used for comparison of salaries paid for similar positions
and responsibilities. The Committee also takes into consideration our strategic plans and Company performance, including but not limited to,
branch performance, asset quality, capital management, core deposit growth, efficiency, regulatory compliance, and earnings.

The Committee approves the named executive officers� annual salary based on the above criteria and its assessment of their past performance and
expected future contributions. In addition to the internal measures above, the Board of Directors also reviews our financial performance in
relation to peer group averages in the Virginia Bankers� Association Salary Survey. A subjective approach is used in its evaluation of these
factors, and therefore the Committee does not rely on a formula or weights of specific factors.

For the year 2012, the annual base salary remained the same for each executive group as it was for the year 2011.

No bonuses have been paid for the years 2009 through 2011 and none are anticipated for 2012.

The Chief Executive Officer does not set his own salary or bonus or the salaries or bonuses of the other named executive officers. The CEO is
involved in the other named executive officers� compensation, and provides input to the Committee regarding his own. The CEO also is a
member of the Compensation Committee and has the right to vote on the other named executive officers� compensation, but not his own.
Recommendations are made by the Committee and the final decision resides with the Board of Directors excluding the President and CEO for
his salary or bonus.

Stock Options

The stock option plan expired on May 31, 2011. There remain outstanding options granted to the named executive officers, directors and other
key employees intended to provide a means for this group to increase their personal financial interest in us, thereby stimulating the efforts of
these employees and strengthening their desire to remain with us. The stock option plan permitted the award of incentive stock options and
non-qualified stock options to directors and eligible officers and key employees. The Board of Directors made grants under the stock option plan
on a discretionary basis, taking into consideration the respective scope of accountability and contributions of each director and employee,
including the Chief Executive Officer, to us. In 2011, the Committee did not award any stock options to any of the executive officers or other
employees. Since the change in accounting regulations in 2005 regarding expensing stock options, no stock options have been awarded to any
individuals.

There was no set time for the awarding of stock options, however, for the years in which options were granted, the options have been granted in
January or December. The stock option plan allowed for the awarding of stock options, but no set levels of criteria or performance thresholds are
necessary before options could be granted. We have no set policy regarding recapturing awards if based on financial results that have been
misstated.

The Board is considering whether to propose a new stock option plan or other stock compensation plan for shareholder approval at a future time
yet to be determined.

Other Elements of Compensation

Each named executive officer is provided with the use of a company vehicle.
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On December 18, 2002, the Bank entered into a salary continuation agreement with Frank Sexton, Jr. If Mr. Sexton were to terminate his
employment prior to his 65th birthday, his benefit would be $23,424 annually to be paid in 180 month installments for 15 years; total value is
$245,475 (as of November 1, 2011).

Executive Compensation

The following table shows, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the cash compensation that we paid to the named executive
officers in all capacities in which they served:

Summary Compensation Table

Fiscal Years 2011 and 2010

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($)

Change in
Pension Value

and Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings
($)(1)

All Other
Compensation ($)(2) Total ($)

Jonathan H. Mullins 2011 245,000 �  �  13,208 258,208
President and Chief Executive Officer 2010 220,000 �  �  12,359 232,359

Frank Sexton, Jr. 2011 169,500 �  17,136 8,815 195,451
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 2010 162,516 �  31,570 9,414 203,500

C. Todd Asbury 2011 164,500 �  �  8,477 172,977
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer

2010 157,500 �  �  8,606 166,106

Sharon V. Borich (3) 2011 159,000 �  �  4,741 163,741
Senior Vice President and Senior Lending Officer 2010 122,404 �  �  6,714 129,118

Stephen Trescot (4) 2011 126,923 �  �  �  126,923
Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer 2010 �  �  �  �  �  

(1) These amounts represent the change in the actuarial present value of the accumulated benefit under the salary continuation agreement for
Mr. Sexton.

(2) All benefits that might be considered of a personal nature did not exceed $10,000. All other compensation includes amounts for
Mr. Mullins representing matching contributions under the Bank�s defined contribution plan of $13,208 and $11,615 in 2011 and 2010,
respectively; amounts for Mr. Sexton representing matching contributions in 2011 and 2010 under the Bank�s defined contribution plan of
$8,815 and $8,387, respectively; and amounts for Mr. Asbury representing matching contributions in 2011 and 2010 for the Bank�s defined
contribution plan of $8,477 and $8,046, respectively.

(3) Ms. Borich became Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer in February 2010 and her compensation reflects her pay for 2010
including her compensation as a non-named executive officer and also as a named executive officer. In 2011, Ms. Borich changed roles in
the Bank to become Senior Vice President and Senior Lending Officer. She no longer serves as a named executive officer after the change
in roles effective March 1, 2011.

(4) Mr. Trescot became Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer on March 1, 2011 and his compensation reflects his pay for a
partial year in 2011.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The named executive officers did not receive any grants of plan-based awards during fiscal 2011.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2011

The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31, 2011, the outstanding equity awards at fiscal year-end to the named executive
officers. The named executive officers have not received other stock awards:

Option Awards

Name

Number of 
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options

(#)
Exercisable(1)

Option

Exercise

Price(2)

($)

Option
Expiration 

Date
Jonathan H. Mullins

President and Chief Executive Officer

1,791

1,430

5,363

16,087

6.99

6.99

9.44

11.54

12/31/12

12/31/13

12/13/14

12/20/15

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Frank Sexton, Jr. (3)

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

7,150

5,362

5,363

16,088

6.99

6.99

9.44

11.54

12/31/12

12/31/13

12/13/14

12/20/15

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

C. Todd Asbury

Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer,

Secretary and Treasurer

5,362

16,088

9.44

11.54

12/13/14

12/20/15

(6)

(7)

Sharon V. Borich

Senior Vice President and

Senior Lending Officer

4,290 11.54 12/20/15(7)

(1) The amounts have been adjusted for the 10% stock dividend granted on June 7, 2005 and the 13-for-10 stock split effected in the form of a
stock dividend on September 4, 2007.

(2)
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Stock options were granted at the fair market value of the shares of Common Stock at the grant dates. The grants are exercisable
immediately after they are granted.

(3) On December 31, 2011, 14,300 options awarded and fully vested on December 31, 2001 expired and were forfeited for Frank Sexton, Jr.
(4) Options were awarded and fully vested on December 31, 2002.
(5) Options were awarded and fully vested on December 31, 2003.
(6) Options were awarded and fully vested on December 13, 2004.
(7) Options were awarded and fully vested on December 20, 2005.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

There were no exercises of stock option awards or stock awards that vested for the named executive officers in 2011.
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Pension Benefits

The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31, 2011, information with respect to the salary continuation agreement, which
provide for payments following retirement.

Name Plan Name

Number of Years

of Credited

Service

(#)

Present Value

of
Accumulated

Benefit ($)(1)
Jonathan H. Mullins

President and Chief Executive Officer

N/A �  �  

Frank Sexton, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Salary
Continuation
Agreement

N/A 251,507

C. Todd Asbury

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

N/A �  �  

Sharon V. Borich

Senior Vice President and Senior Lending Officer

N/A �  �  

Stephen Trescot

Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer

N/A __ __

(1) Assumes for Mr. Sexton the following: a retirement age of 65, fixed principal payments for 180 months following retirement, at a discount
rate of 7.50%. Under APB 12, the interest method of accounting is used.

For further information on the salary continuation plans of Mr. Sexton, please refer to the �Other Elements of Compensation� section above.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

We do not have a nonqualified deferred compensation plan for the named executive officers.

Employment or Change in Control Agreements

Neither the Company nor the Bank has entered into an employment agreement or change in control agreement with any of the named executive
officers.

Director Compensation

The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2011, certain information with respect to director compensation for each of the members of
the Board of Directors. The directors did not receive any other compensation during 2011 for their services as directors on the Board.
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Director Compensation for 2011

Name
Fees Earned  or
Paid in Cash(1) ($) Total ($)

Tim W. Ball 9,500 9,500
Joe M. Carter 18,900 18,900
John D. Cox 13,100 13,100
Charles H. Gent, Jr. 11,800 11,800
Eugene Hearl (1) 22,000 22,000
Harold Lynn Keene, Jr. 19,100 19,100
A. Frank Kilgore 10,000 10,000
Michael G. McGlothlin 10,300 10,300
Fred W. Meade 18,200 18,200
Jonathan H. Mullins 12,600 12,600
B. Scott White 14,100 14,100

(1) Each of the directors holds stock options covering shares of our common stock except Director Hearl who joined the Board on
November 29, 2010. Such amounts are all reflected in the Beneficial Ownership Table.
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In 2011, each director was paid $700 per month for service on the Board of Directors and a maximum of $200 per committee meeting for each
committee of which a director is a member, For 2012, each existing director will be paid $700 per Board of Director meeting and $200 per
committee meeting for each committee.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth, as of February 28, 2012, certain information with respect to beneficial ownership of shares of Common Stock by
each of the members of the Board of Directors, by each of the executive officers named in the �Summary Compensation Table� below and by all
directors and executive officers as a group. Beneficial ownership includes shares, if any, held in the name of the individual�s spouse, minor
children or other relatives of the individual living in such person�s home, as well as shares, if any, held in the name of another person under an
arrangement whereby the director or executive officer can vest title in himself at once or at some future time.

Name of Beneficial Owner
Common  Stock

Beneficially Owned(1)

Exercisable

Options

Beneficially
Owned(2)

Total 
Shares

Beneficially
Owned

Percent
of Class(3)

C. Todd Asbury �  21,450 21,450 *
Tim W. Ball 3,432 13,780 17,212 *
Sharon V. Borich �  4,290 4,290 *
Joe M. Carter 23,660 (4) 13,780 37,440 *
John D. Cox** 53,072 (5) 13,780 66,852 *
Charles H. Gent, Jr. 27,170 (6) 10,920 38,090 *
Eugene Hearl** 1,100 �  1,100 *
Harold Lynn Keene** 44,450 8,060 52,510 *
A. Frank Kilgore 96,620 (7) 10,920 107,540 1.05% 
Michael G. McGlothlin** 118,267 13,780 132,047 1.29% 
Fred W. Meade** 38,896 (8) 13,780 52,676 *
Jonathan H. Mullins** 1,100 24,671 25,771 *
Frank Sexton, Jr. 32,461 (9) 33,962 66,423 *
Stephen Trescot �  �  �  *
B. Scott White** 381,929 (10) 8,060 389,989 3.82% 
All Directors and Executive Officers as a group (14 persons) 822,157 191,233 1,013,390 9.93% 

* Percentage of ownership is less than one percent of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.
** Members of the Executive Committee.
(1) Except as otherwise indicated, each director, director nominee or executive officer has sole voting power and investment power with

respect to the shares shown.
(2) Includes options that will become exercisable within 60 days on February 28, 2012.
(3) Based on 10,010,178 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on February 28, 2012
(4) Includes 6,901 shares held by Mr. Carter�s wife.
(5) Includes 12,584 shares held by Mr. Cox�s wife and 31,336 shares held by Cox Ford Tractor, Inc. of which Mr. Cox is Owner.
(6) Includes 2,860 shares held by Mr. Gent�s wife and 2,860 shares Mr. Gent holds as custodian for his child.
(7) Includes 5,200 shares Mr. Kilgore holds as trustee for his grandchildren.
(8) Includes 36,036 shares Mr. Meade holds jointly with his wife.
(9) Includes 440 shares Mr. Sexton holds jointly with his child.
(10) Includes 57,200 shares held by Mr. White�s wife and 2,717 shares Mr. White holds as trustee for his child.
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

As of February 28, 2012, the following persons are known to us that beneficially own five percent or more of the Company�s stock. Other than as
disclosed below, the Company is not aware of any person or group, as those terms are defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, who
beneficially owned more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock as of February 28, 2012.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership Percent of Class

Richard G. Preservati and N. Karen Preservati

Post Office Box 1003,

Princeton, West Virginia 24740 550,000 5.50% 
Equity Compensation Plan

The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2011, with respect to compensation plans under which shares of Common Stock
are authorized for issuance:

Plan Category

Number of Securities
to Be Issued upon

Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights(1)

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights(1)

Number of Securities
Remaining
Available
for Future
Issuance

Under Equity
Compensation Plans(3)

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Shareholders:
2001 Stock Option Plan 461,773 $ 10.08 �  
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Shareholders (2) �  �  �  
Total 461,773 $ 10.08 �  

(1) The total number of both the securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights and the securities remaining
available for future issuance under equity compensation plans, as well as the weighted average exercise price, reflect the ten percent stock
dividend paid on June 7, 2005 and the 13-for-10 stock split effected in the form of a stock dividend on September 4, 2007.

(2) The Company does not have any equity compensation plans that have not been approved by shareholders.
(3) Effective May 31, 2011, the Stock Option Plan expired and no options are available for grants.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence
The Board of Directors has determined that all eleven members are independent as defined by the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock
Market (�NASDAQ�) except Jonathan H. Mullins who serves as the Company and Bank President and CEO. In reaching this conclusion, the
Board of Directors considered that the Company and its subsidiary bank conduct business with companies of which certain members of the
Board of Directors or members of their immediate families are or were directors or officers. In making that determination, the Board of Directors
considered that Director Kilgore provides legal counsel to the Company and subsidiaries and Director Meade�s company provided supplies for
branch locations. The Board also considered that two directors, Scott White and Lynn Keene, have made loans to the Company totalling $5.4
million on terms more favorable to the Company than would be available otherwise, including the fact interest on the loans is not due until
maturity and the loans are convertible into the Company�s common stock at the Company�s option prior to maturity.
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course of business, were required to be on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as comparable transactions to
non-related parties at the time of the extension of credit, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable features, pursuant to Regulation O � Loans to Executive Officers, Directors and Principal Shareholders of Member Banks.

In December, 2010 the parent company borrowed $250,000 from Director Scott White which matures in one year unless extended by the mutual
agreement of the Company and note holder. The note may be converted, in whole, at any time during its term at the election of the parent
company into shares of the common stock of the Company at market value. The note bore interest at the variable rate of interest equal to the
Wall Street Journal prime rate, which was 3.25% at December 31, 2010. In January, 2011, the parent company received an additional $250,000
loan from Director Lynn Keene on identical terms. The purpose of these borrowings was to provide cash for operating expenses of the parent
company. On March 16, 2011 two of the Company�s directors, Harold Lynn Keene and B. Scott White, loaned the Company a total of $4.95
million which, after receiving regulatory approval, the Company used to retire the indebtedness to the FDIC as receiver for Silverton Bank. The
loans were unsecured and had a stated maturity of December 31, 2011 with interest payable at maturity or conversion at the variable rate equal
to the Wall Street Journal prime rate which was 3.25% on December 31, 2011. The Company was obligated to convert the debt into the
Company�s common stock if, before the stated maturity, the Company conducts an offering of its common stock at the price per share at which it
is offered. If the Company did not conduct an offering prior to the stated maturity, the Company had the option, but not the obligation, to convert
the debt into shares of its common stock within 30 days of the stated maturity at a price per share to be established by the Company�s Board of
Directors. On December 21, 2011, with regulatory approval the Company refinanced this indebtedness on the same terms except that the
maturity date of the borrowings was extended to June 30, 2012. The Company believes this indebtedness is on more favorable terms to the
Company than could be obtained from unrelated parties.

During 2010, the branch location in Grundy, Virginia which was part of a condominium in which the Bank and Director Michael McGlothlin
owned the only units was condemned by the Virginia Department of Transportation. The value of the Bank�s interest in its condemned
condominium units was $892 thousand and the value of Director McGlothlin�s interest in his condemned condominium unit was $455 thousand
as appraised by the Virginia Department of Transportation. Subsequently, a new building was constructed on adjacent property with the
condemnation proceeds. The parties intend the new building to be subject to a condominium agreement, the terms of which have not been
finalized although they are likely to be substantially similar to the terms of the previous condominium arrangement. The Bank�s branch in the
new building was opened on January 31, 2011 and a portion of the building comparable to his condemned unit was occupied by Director
McGlothlin at this time as well. Throughout 2011 additional work was conducted by the contractor. Minor projects remained at the end of 2011.
Final settlement of the transaction is expected to occur in early 2012 upon the receipt of new land surveys and independent appraisal reports
necessary to determine cost allocation between the Bank and Director McGlothlin, taking into consideration the use of the condemnation
proceeds attributable to the parties� respective interests in the condemned building to acquire the adjacent property and construct the new
building. When this net allocation is determined the parties intend that the ultimate amount attributable to each will be proportional to their
interests in the condemned building. . At this point it is indeterminable what the net settlement amount will be until this critical information is
received.

We have not adopted a formal policy that covers the review and approval of related person transactions by our Board of Directors. The Board,
however, does review all related party transactions that are proposed to it for approval. During such a review, the Board will consider, among
other things, the related person�s relationship to us, the facts and the circumstances of the proposed transaction, the aggregate dollar amount of
the transaction, the related person�s relationship to the transaction and any other material information. Our Audit Committee has the
responsibility to review significant conflicts of interest involving directors or executive officers.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Elliott Davis, LLC (�Elliott Davis�) served as our independent registered public accountants with respect to the audit of our consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

Elliott Davis� report on the Company�s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 does not contain any
adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor are they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles. Elliott Davis�
report on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, does not contain any adverse
opinion or disclaimer of opinion.
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Brown, Edwards� report on the Company�s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, does not contain any
adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor are they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles.

AUDIT INFORMATION

The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors. A copy of the Audit Committee charter can be found
on our website www.npbankshares.comis. The members of the Audit Committee are independent as that term is defined in the NASDAQ Stock
Market Listing Rules and applicable SEC regulations.

2011 Fees of Independent Registered Public Accountants � Elliott Davis

Audit Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Elliott Davis for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, and for the review of the financial statements included in the Company�s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,
and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings and engagements, for fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011 were $118,948.

Audit Related Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Elliott Davis for professional services for assurance and related services that are reasonably
related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and not reported under the heading �Audit Fees� above for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2011 were $10,671. During 2011, these services included the performance of audits of the 401-k benefit plan.

Tax Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Elliott Davis for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011 were $6,685. During 2011, these services included preparation of tax returns as necessary and for NPB Capital Trusts
I & 2, as well as tax compliance services.

All Other Fees � None.

Pre-Approved Services � All audit related services, tax services and other services were pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which concluded
that the provision of such services by Elliott Davis was compatible with the maintenance of that firm�s independence in the conduct of their
auditing functions. The Audit Committee has a policy that provides for the pre-approval of all services to be provided by its independent
registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee does not delegate to management its responsibility to pre-approve services performed
by the independent registered public accounting firm. All of the services mentioned above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

2010 Fees of Independent Registered Public Accountants � Brown, Edwards

Audit Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Brown, Edwards for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, and for the review of the financial statements included in the Company�s Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings and engagements, for fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010 were $168,595.

Audit Related Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Brown, Edwards for professional services for assurance and related services that are reasonably
related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and not reported under the heading �Audit Fees� above for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2010 were $13,192. During 2010, these services included the performance of audits of the 401-k benefit plan;
accounting consultations regarding nonperforming assets, deferred taxes, troubled debts restructured, goodwill, and disclosures in Form 10-K.

Tax Fees � The aggregate fees billed by Brown, Edwards for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2010 were $11,250. During 2010, these services included preparation of tax returns as necessary and for NPB Capital
Trusts I & 2, as well as tax compliance services.

All Other Fees � None.

Pre-Approved Services � All audit related services, tax services and other services were pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which concluded
that the provision of such services by Brown, Edwards was compatible with the
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maintenance of that firm�s independence in the conduct of their auditing functions. The Audit Committee has a policy that provides for the
pre-approval of all services to be provided by its independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee does not delegate to
management its responsibility to pre-approve services performed by the independent registered public accounting firm. All of the services
mentioned above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1)     The response to this portion of Item 15 is included in Item 8 above.

(a)(2)     The response to this portion of Item 15 is included in Item 8 above.

(a)(3)     The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes the exhibit index:

  2 Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange dated August 15, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to Form 8-K filed
December 17, 2001)

  3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2004)

  3.2 Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed April 15, 2004)

10.1* New Peoples Bank, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001)

10.2* Form of Non-Employee Director Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K
filed November 30, 2004)

10.3* Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed November 30, 2004)

10.4* Salary Continuation Agreement dated December 18, 2002 between New Peoples Bank, Inc. and Frank Sexton, Jr. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004)

10.5* First Amendment dated June 30, 2003 to Salary Continuation Agreement between New Peoples Bank, Inc. and Frank Sexton, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004)

10.6* Letter Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2009, between the Company and Kenneth D. Hart (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009)

10.7 Written Agreement, effective August 4, 2010, by and among New Peoples Bankshares, Inc., New Peoples Bank, Inc., the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond and the State Corporation Commission Bureau of Financial Institutions (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed August 6, 2010)

14 Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2003)

16.1 Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P.�s letter to Securities & Exchange Commission, dated April 11, 2011

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Elliott Davis, LLC

23.2 Consent of Brown, Edwards and Company, L.L.P.

24 Powers of Attorney (contained on signature page)

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)

32 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

101 The following materials for the Company�s 10-K Report for the year ended December 31, 2011, formatted in XBRL. (i) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholders� Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
tagged as blocks of text (1)
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(b) See Item 15(a)(3) above.
(c) See Items 15(a)(1) and (2) above.
(1) Furnished, not filed.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NEW PEOPLES BANKSHARES, INC.

By: /s/ JONATHAN H. MULLINS
Jonathan H. Mullins
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 29, 2012

By: /s/ C. TODD ASBURY
C. Todd Asbury
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Date: February 29, 2012
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned hereby appoints Jonathan H. Mullins and C. Todd Asbury, and each of them, as attorneys and agents for the
undersigned, with full power of substitution, in his name and on his behalf as a director of New Peoples Bankshares, Inc. (the �Registrant�), to act
and to execute any and all instruments as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or advisable to enable the Registrant to comply with the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and any rules, regulations, policies or requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
�Commission�) in respect thereof, in connection with the preparation and filing with the Commission of the Registrant�s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (the �Report�), and any and all amendments to such Report, together with such other
supplements, statements, instruments and documents as such attorneys or attorney deem necessary or appropriate.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capacity Date

/s/ JONATHAN H. MULLINS President, February 28, 2012
Jonathan H. Mullins Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ C. TODD ASBURY Executive Vice President February 28, 2012
C. Todd Asbury and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s/ TIM BALL Director February 28, 2012
Tim Ball

/s/ JOE CARTER Director February 28, 2012
Joe Carter

/s/ JOHN D. COX Director February 28, 2012
John D. Cox

/s/ CHARLES H. GENT Director February 28, 2012
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Charles H. Gent

/s/ EUGENE HEARL Director February 28, 2012
Eugene Hearl

/s/ HAROLD LYNN KEENE Director February 28, 2012
Harold Lynn Keene
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/s/ FRANK KILGORE Director February 28, 2012
Frank Kilgore

/s/ MICHAEL G. MCGLOTHLIN Chairman, Director February 28, 2012
Michael G. McGlothlin

/s/ FRED MEADE Director February 28, 2012
Fred Meade

/s/ B. SCOTT WHITE Director February 28, 2012
B. Scott White
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